
City of Berwyn 
City Council Meeting 

August 14, 2012 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
AUGUST 14, 2012 

DEAR ATTENDEE ..... THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL WELCOME YOU. PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT THIS IS A 
MEETING OF THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS AS OPPOSED TO A PUBLIC HEARING WHERE A ITENDEES ARE 
ENCOURAGED TO PARTICIPATE. UNLESS INVITED BY THE MAYOR TO SPEAK. YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO 
INTERRUPT. IF YOU ARE RECOGNIZED BY THE MAYOR. PLEASE PREFACE YOUR REMARKS BY STATING YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD. THANK YOU. 

ROBERT J. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

ROLLCALL 
AGENDA 

(A) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MOMENT OF SILENCE 

(B) OPEN FORUM - (TOPIC MUST NOT BE ON THE AGENDA) 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

(C) PRESENTATION OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 
L REGULAR MEETING 7/24/12 - COW-7/24/12 

CD) BID OPENING-TABULATIONS 

(E) BERWYN DEVELOPMENT CORP.-BERWYN TOWNSHIPIHEALTH DISTRICT 
1. BDC-TIP APPLICATION-TONINI'S IT ALlAN MARKET -6950 WINDSOR AVE. 
2. BDC-TIP APPLICATION-WINDSOR LEGAL GROUP-681O-IS WINDSOR AVE. 
3. BDC-TlF APPLICATION-THE WIRE-6815 W. ROOSEVELT ROAD 
4. BDC-ORDINANCEffFG BERWYN-LLC RDA FOR ANDERSON SOUTH 

(F) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
1. DEFERED ITEM# 8 OF 7124112-WAGE REOPENER WITH SEIU - LOCAL 73 
2. BERWYN LIBRARY BOARD REAPPOINTMENTS 

(G) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE CITY CLERK 
1. RETIREMENT OF MILTON F. PERSIN-SECRETARY ZBA 
2. DOLLARS FOR SCHOLARS SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENTS 

(H) COMMUNICATIONS FROM (ZONING) BOARD OF APPEALS 

(I) REPORTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM ALDERMEN. COMMITTEES OTHER BOARDS 
AND COMMISSIONS 

(1) STAFF REPORTS 
1. CITY ATTORNEY-RE: CLAIM NO. VA2012844773 
2. CITY ATTORNEY-RE: 2011 MI 302132 
3. CITY ATTORNEY-RE: 12CV1589 
4. CITY ADMINISTRATOR-AUTHORIZATION TO BID REGARDING ADA HUD GRANT 
5. PROJECT OPERATIONS MANAGER- COMMUTER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT FUNDING 

AGREEMENT 



BERWYN CITY COUNtl L M EETI NG 
AUGUST 14,2012 

6. PROJECT OPERATIONS MANAGER-ORDINANCE~STATE COMPTROLLER'S OFFICE~ 
LOCAL DEBT RECOVERY PROGRAM 

7. ASSISTANT FIRE CHIEF-RECOMMENDATION TO AWARD BID FOR NORTH FIRE 
STATION PARKING LOT PROJECT 

(K) CONSENT A G END A: .... u. rlBolS ON1111i mNSI:IH .... OENU .... "'u~ ,ON$IOtllU,U'1"O lIIi ROInlNl:: IN N .... l1JII.E .... ND 

WILL BE ENAC'1CD IN ONE MOTION. THERE WILL Be NO SEPARATE DISCUSSION OF rnESEIT1!MS UNLESS A COlJN('1L MEM8EJt SO 
IU::QUI:.~"S. IN WHICH HVlollTTHE rrliM WlU. ali RliMOVEO ""-OM TIlE NlNSI'.N'1 Aa~NU"" .... NU m.mUl:ltliU AS 1'1110 fiRST m:M AI-"11iII 
APPROVAl. OI'TlIn roNSf:NT AGr,NOA 

1. BUDGET CHAIR-PAYROLL-811112-$! ,029,203.76 
2. BUDGET CHAIR-PAY ABLES-8/ 14/ 12-$2,374,264.65 
3. BUILDING AND LOCAL IMPROVEMENT PERMITS FOR JULY 2012 
4. BUSINESS LICENSES FOR THE MONTHS OF JUNE & JULY 2012 
5. BLOCK PARTY-3600 BLOCK OF CUYLER-8/18/12-RAIN-8/25/12 
6. BLOCK PARTY-3100 BLOCK OF WENONAH-8/25/12 - RAIN~8126/12 

7. BLOCK PARTY-1200 BLOCK OF HOME-8/18/12 - RAIN-S/19/12 
8. BLOCK PARTY~2100 BLOCK OF CUYLER-8/18/12 
9. BLOCK PARTY-6900 BLOCK OF 30TH PLACE-8118/12 
10. BLOCK PARTY-1300 BLOCK OF WENONAH-9/8/12- RAIN-9/15112 
11. BLOCK PARTY-3100 BLOCK OF MAPLE-8/19/12 
12. BLOCK PARTY -2400 BLOCK OF CLAREN CE-8/18/12-RAIN-SI25/12 
13. BLOCK PARTY-2800 BLOCK OF WENONAH-9/8/12-RAfN-9/9/12 
14. BLOCK PARTY-2600 BLOCK OF HARVEY-9/8/12 
15. BLOCK RUMMAGE SALE-2200 BLOCK OF GROVE-9/8112 & 9/9/12 - 9AM TO 5PM 
16. FIRST CONGREGATIONAL CHRUCH FESTIV AL-8/26112 -9AM TO 5PM 
17. GIRL SCOUTS OF GREATER CHICAGO· FALL PRODUCT -OCTOBER. 2012 

& COOKIE PROGRAM-JANUARY, 2012 
18. FITZGERALD'S OPEN AIR CONCERT-AUGUST 31, 2012-S:00-11:30PM 
19. CICERO-BERWYN LODGE NO. 15lO-S0LICIT FUNDS-l 0/13/12 & 10114/12 
20. G.L.O.B.E. MUSIC & ARTS- SOLICIT FOR PICNIC IN THE PARK-SI26/12 
21. NEW HARVEST CHRISTIAN FELLOWSHIP-COMMUNITY DAY-9/1112-12:00 TO 3PM 
22. ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION ALLIANCE-FOUR STAR BIKE TOUR-8/26/12 
23. PAY YMCA-GYMNASTICS RUMMAGE SALE-AUGUST 18.2012-8:00 TO 3:00PM 

ITEMS SUBMITTED ON TIME 12 

In accordance with the provis1ons of the Americans willt disabilities Act, aoy i C1illidlUll who is in the need of 8 reasonable accommodation in ortler to participate in Of 

benefit from attendance III a public meeting of tile City of ~yn sllOUld contact Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Cleric. 81 70SnS8-2660 as SOOn as possible before lite 
mectini dale. 



e Table of Contents 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

ITEM(S) 

ROLL CALL 
A. Pledge of Allegiance - Moment of Silence 
B. Open Forum 

C. 

Topic must NOT be on the Agenda 

Presentation of Previous Meeting Minutes for Approval 
I. Minutes City Council-7124112 
2. Minutes Committee of Whole - 7/24/12 

D. Bid Opening - Tabulations 

E. 

F. 

G. 

Berwyn Development Corp-Berwyn TownshiplHealth District 
1. BOC-TIF Application~Tonini's Italian Market-6950 Windsor Ave. 
2. BOC-TIF Application-Windsor Legal Group-6810-18 Windsor Ave 
3. BDC-TIF Application-The Wire-6815 w. Roosevelt Rd 
4. BOC-Ordinance-TFG Berwyn-LLC RDA for Anderson South 

Reports and Communications from the Mayor 
I. Deferred Item #8 of 7/24/12 -Wage Reopener with SEIU-Local 73 
2. Berwyn Library Board Reappointments 

Reports and Communications from the City Clerk 
I. Retirement of Milton F. Person-Secretary ZBA 
2. Dollars for Scholars Scholarship Recipients 

H. Communications from (Zoning) Board of Appeals 

PAGES 

1- 4 
1- 2 

1- I 
1- I 
1- I 
1-83 

1- 2 
1- 1 

1- 2 
1- I 

1. Reports and Communications from Aldennen. Committees. other Boards and Commissions 

J. Staff Reports 
I. City Attorney-Re: Claim No. V A20 12844773 
2. City Attomey-Re: 2011 MI302132 
3. City Attomey-Re: 12CVI589 
4. City Administrator-Authorization to Bid Regarding ADA HUD Grant 
5. Projects Operation Manager- Commuter Facility Improvement Funding 

Agreement 
6. Projects Operation Manager-Ordinance-State Comptroller's Office-Local Debt 

Recovery Program 
7. Assistant Fire Chief-Recommendation to Award Bid for North Fire Station 

North Parking Lot Project 

August 14, 2012 

1- I 
1 - 1 
1- I 
1-10 

1-23 

1-31 

1- 5 



K. 

BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Consent Agenda 
( . Budget Chair-Payroll-8/1 112-$1,029,203 .76 
2. Budgel Chair-Payables-8/1 41 I 2-$2.374,264.65 
3. Building Improvement Permits for July, 2012 
4. Business Licenses for the Months of June & July 2012 
5. Block Party-3600 Block of Cuyler-8118/12-Rain Date 8/25112 
6. Block Party-31 00 Block of Wenonah-S/25/12-Rain Date 8126/12 
7. Block Party-1200 Block of Home-8118112 Rain Date 8/19112 
8. Block Party-2100 Block of Cuyler - 8/18/12 
9. Block Party-2300 Block of Highland08/4/12-Rain Date-8/5112 
10. Block Party-l300 Block of Wenonah-9/8/12Rain Date-9/15/12 
II. Block Party-3100 Block of Maple-8/19/12 
12. Block Party-2400 Block of Clarence-8/18/12 Rain Date 8/25112 
13. Block Party-2800 Block of Wenonah-9/8112 Rain Date 9/9/12 
14. Block Party-2600 Block of Harvey-9/8/12 
15. Block Rummage Sale-2200 Block of Grove-9/8/12 & 9/9/12- 9AM to 5PM 
16. First Congregational Church Festival-8126/12 - 9AM To 5pm 
17. Girl Scouts of Greater Chicago-Fall Product Program-October, 2012 & 

Cookie Program-January 2012 
18. Fitzgerald's Open Air Concert-August 31,2012 - 8:00-11 :30 Pm 
19. Cicero-Berwyn Lodge No. 1510-Solicit Funds-lOll 3/12 & 10114/12 
20. G.L.O.B.E. Music & Arts - Solicit for Picnic in the Park - 8/26/12 
21. New Harvest Christian Fellowship-Community Day - 9/1112 - 12:00 to 3PM 
22. Active Transportation Alliance-Four Star Bike Tour-8/26/ 12 
23. PAY YMCA-Rummage Sale-August 18, 2012-8am to 3pm 

August 14, 2012 

1- I 
1- 8 
1- 8 
1- 8 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 2 
1- 1 

1- 2 
1- t 
1- I 
1- 4 
1- 2 
1- 4 
1- I 



A Pledge of Allegiance-Moment of Silence 

B. Open Forum 

(Topic Must Not Be on The Agenda) 



c. Presentation of Previous 
Meeting Minutes for Approval 



ROBERT J. LOVERO 
MAYOR 

MINUTES BERWYN 
CITY COUNCIL 
JULY 24,2012 

THOMAS J. PAVUK 
CITY CLERK 

1. The regular meeting of the Berwyn City Council was called to order by 
Mayor Lovero at 8:00 p.m. Upon the call of the roll, the following 
responded present: Boyajian, Paul, Skryd, Santoy, Avila , Polashek and 
Laureto. Absent; Chapman. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, 
seconded by Skryd, to excuse Alderman Chapman. The motion carried 
by a voice vote. 

2. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited and a moment of silence was had 
for the family of the deceased Walter L. Williams, grandfather of 
Berwyn Police Detective , Karlas Robinzine and for the Men and Women 
on the streets of Berwyn protecting our safety, along with the Men and 
Women in the Armed Forces. 

3. The Open Forum portion of the meeting was announced. The Mayor 
recognized Wayne Parthun and Ben Pennacchio for an Awards 
presentation to Officer James Tadrowski and Cmdr. Michael Cimaglia, 
of the Berwyn Police Department for their life saving efforts during a 
2011 house fire on Oak park Ave. City Clerk announced the "Ride for 
Liberty" to be held at Proksa Park on Sunday, August 5, 2012 to 
benefit Homeless Veterans. Alderman Avila announced the Grand 
Opening of Meijer on August 14, 2012 at 7:00am. 

4. Alderman Laureto made a motion, seconded by Alderman Skryd, to 
approve the Addendum to the Agenda, Item G-1. The motion carried 
by a voice vote. 

5. The minutes of the Berwyn City Council Meeting and the Committee of 
the Whole held on July 10, 2012 were submitted. Thereafter, Skryd 
made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to concur and approve as 
submitted. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. Skryd made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to suspend rules and 
bring forth Item J-3, Motion carried by a voice vote. Item J-3 is a 
communication from Police Chief Ritz requesting the promotion of 
Police Officer Salvador Gamino to rank of Sergeant. Avila made a 
motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and approve as submitted. 
The motion carried by a voice vote. Thereafter, Clerk Pavlik 
administered the Oath of Office. 

1 



BERWYN CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
July 24, 2012 

7. The Berwyn Development Corporation submitted a communication for 
Depot District Pocket Park, 6846 West Windsor Ave. and Bid award. 
The mayor recognized Anthony Griffin, BDC Executive Director, who 
reviewed same. After discussion, Skryd made a motion, seconded by 
Polashek, to concur and approve partial Bid award to Beverly 
Environmental in an amount not to exceed $70,597. The motion 
carried by the following call of the roll; Yea: Boyajian, Skryd, Santoy, 
Polashek, Avila and Laureto. Nay: Paul. Absent: Chapman. Thereafter, 
Skryd made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur with the 
recommendation of the BDC and PjW Director Schiller, to approve 
$36,500 for the purchase of furniture and authorize Public Works to 
purchase same. The motion carried by the following call of the roll; 
Yea: Boyajian, Skryd, Santoy, Polashek, Avila and Laureto. Nay: Paul. 
Absent: Chapman. 

8. The Mayor submitted a communication regarding the Wage Reopener 
with SEIU - local 73. Thereafter, Laureto made a motion, seconded by 
Skryd, to defer the item for 3 weeks. The motion carried by a voice 
vote. 

9. Assistant Fire Chief Molinaro submitted a communication requesting 
permission to seek bids for the North Fire Station Parking Lot. 
Thereafter, Skryd made a motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and 
approve as submitted. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call 
vote. 

10. Fire Chief Q'Halioran submitted a communication regarding Berwyn 
Firefighters Local 506 Collection dates for Muscular Dystrophy Drive 
(M.D.A.). Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to 
concur and grant permission. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

11. The Public Works Director submitted a communication requesting 
approval to purchase a 2013 Ford Explorer (SUV) from Suburban 
Purchasing Cooperative. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, 
seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

12. The Public Works Director submitted a communication regarding 
Necessary Water Meter Reading System Upgrades. Thereafter, 
Boyajian made a motion, seconded by Polashek, to concur and 

2 



BERWYN OTY COUNCil MINUTES 
July 24, 2012 

approve as submitted for payment. The motion carried by a 
unanimous roll call vote. 

13. The City Attorney submitted a communication regarding the 
settlement agreement for Case No.08 CV 6687 in an amount not to 
exceed $650,000.00. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, seconded 
by Laureto, to concur and approve as submitted for payment. The 
motion carried by the following call of the roll. Yea: Boyajian, Paul, 
Polashek, Laureto. Nays: Skryd, Santoy, Avila. Absent: Chapman. 

14. The City Attorney submitted a communication regarding the 
settlement agreement for Case No.11 CV 03096 in an amount not to 
exceed $14,000.00. Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by 
Skryd, to concur and approve as submitted for payment. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

15. The Project Operations Manager submitted a communication regarding 
Waste Management Contract Extension. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion, seconded by Avila, to concur and approve a two year 
extension. The motion carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

16. The Finance Director submitted a communication regarding the 
American Express Reward Program Update. Thereafter, Skryd made a 
motion, seconded by Boyajian, to accept as informational. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll call vote. 

17. The Finance Director submitted a communication regarding the 
disposal of 1997 Seagrave QUint. Thereafter, Boyajian made a motion, 
seconded by Skryd, to concur and approve as submitted. The motion 
carried by a unanimous roll caU vote. 

18. The Director of Community Development submitted a communication 
and a Resolution entitled: 

A RESOLUTUION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN 
INTERGOVERNMENTAT AGREEMENT FOR THE WEST COOK 
COUNTY HOUSING COLLABORATIVE 

Thereafter, Santoy made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to concur and 
Adopt Resolution as presented. The motion carried by a unanimous 
roll call vote. 

3 



BERWYN CITY COUNOl MINUTES 
July 24, 2012 

19. The Consent agenda Items K-1 thru K-13 were submitted 

K-1 Budget Chair- Payrol/-7 /18/12-$998,357. 99-Approved 
K-2 Budget Chair-Payables- 7/24/12-$784,785.80-Approved 
K-3 Boyajian-Hdcp Drop Off Zone-C. Avlla-3235 Highland- Approved 
K-4 Boyajlan-Hdcp Drop Off Zone-M. Arredondo-3248 Cuyler- Approved 
K-5 Block Party-3500 Block of Clinton-8/25/12- Rain date-8/26/12 
K-6 Block Party-6800 Block of 29th PL-8/25/12- Rain date-8/26/12 
K-7 Block Party-3200 Block of Wisconsin-8/18/12-Rain date-8/19/12 
K-8 Block Party-2600 Block of Grove-8/11/12-Rain date 8/18/12 
K-9 Block Party-2300 Block of Highland-8/04/12- Rain date-8/5/12 
K-10 Block Party-1200 Block of Kenilworth-8/25/12 Rain date 9/1/12 
K-l1 St. Odilos-BSA Troop 60-Car Wash-8/11/12 Rain date 8/18/12 
K-12 J. Sterling Morton Homecoming Parade-10/5/12 
K-13 Laureto-Street Closure/Commodore Barry Post#256 8/11/12 

Thereafter, Avila made a motion, seconded by Laureto, to concur and 
approved by Omnibus vote deSignation . Motion carried by a voice vote. 

14. Alderman Skryd announced Administration Committee meeting, as 
previously called, for July 30, 2012 at 5:30 pm. 

15. There being no further business to come before the meeting, same 
was after a motion by Laureto, seconded by Avila, to adjourn at the 
hour of 8:26 p.m. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respectfully sUbml~d. 

City Clerk 

4 



MINUTES 
BERWYN CITY COUNCIL 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 
JULY 24,2012 

1. Mayor Lovero called the Committee of the Whole to order at 6:04 p.m., upon 
the call of the roll the following responded present: Boyajian, Skryd, 
Polashek, Avila, and Laureto. Absent: Chapman, Paul and Santoyo 

2. Avila made a motion, seconded by Boyajian, to excuse Aldermen Chapman, 
Paul and Santoyo The motion carried by a voice vote. 
Note: Santoy present at 6:05 p.m. 

3. Waste Management Contract Extension. The Mayor recognized Evan 
Summer, Operations Manager and Waste Management representative Matt 
Hernandez who reviewed contract extension, The two year extension cost 
increase will go mainly for upgrading Waste Mgt. fleet with new CNG fuel 
(natural gas) efficient trucks, which will reduce green house gas emissions by 
45%. Hernandez also stated that if the City of Berwyn were to upgrade its 
fleet to natural gas in the future, the Waste Management Pershing Road 
facility will be available to the City for refueling. Avila questioned the amount 
of the increase and when it goes into effect; Answer, 2% and the extension 
will be in effect 2013-2015. 

4. Clerk Pavlik noted that he has supplied Council with an additional 
informational attachment to item J-4, P/W request to purchase a 2013 Ford 
Explorer SUV. Also, there is an addendum to tonight's City Council agenda, 
Item G-1 and that it should have been labeled F-1, a communication from 
the Mayor regarding Wage Reopener with SEIU-Local 73. Pavlik asked that a 
motion be made at the start of tonight's meeting to accept the addendum 
and to amend the agenda to include same. 

5. There being no further business for the Open Committee of the Whole, 
the Mayor asked for a motion to go into Closed Session for Contract 
Negotiations, Real Estate and Pending Litigation. Thereafter, Avila 
made a motion, seconded by Skryd, to close the Committee of the 
Whole at 6:18 P.M. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

6. A Motion was made in Closed Session to re-open the Committee of the 
Whole by Avila, seconded by Skryd, at 7:22 P.M. The motion carried by 
a voice vote. 
Note: Paul present in Closed Session at 6:24 P.M. 

1 



COMMITIEE OF THE WHOLE 
JUNE 24, 2012 

7. A motion was made by Boyajian, seconded by Skryd, to adjourn the 
Committee of the Whole at 7:22 P.M. The motion carried by a voice vote. 

Respectfully submitted, 

2 



D. Bid Openings Tabulations 



E. Berwyn Development Corp. -

Berwyn Township/Health District 



berwyn development August 14,2012 
CORPORATION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8' 00 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - Tonini's Italian Market, 6950 Windsor Ave. 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Applicant is requesting TIF funds for renovation of his existing business in the Depot 
District. The TIF scope of work includes fire alarm, electrical and flooring. The 
applicant submitted a Tier I TIF. To this extent, the applicant is requesting TIF funds 
for redevelopment work at this location in order to fill in the needed gap. Total 
project costs are expected to be $7,700. 

The application meets the procedural requirements of the Berwyn TIF application 
which was reviewed by BDC staff and then processed for consideration. A 5-year 
revenue forecast shows that the business would produce approximately $124,772 in 
total tax revenue, 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BOC) Board of Directors and the 
OgdenJDepot TIF committee have both agreed to recommend approval of the below 
specified TIF monies regarding Tonini's TIF eligible project costs. 

Based on this information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIF monies to 
pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a maximum of $3,850. 
As part of our process, BDC staff will validate work performed and eligibility prior 
to any payments. Furthermore, the SOC will ensure the applicant will not receive 
any TIF monies prior to obtaining proper City permits. 

With the consent of City Council, Tonini's can commence work on their project and 
contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place in the Depot District. 

ResPL~ submitted for your consideration, 

AntlJ:iy~ Griffin 



berwyn development August 14,2012 
RPOR TION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

fax: 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26 tb Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - Windsor Legal Group, 6810-18 Windsor Ave. 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Applicant is requesting TIF funds for renovation of his building in the Depot 
District. The TIF scope of work includes interior remodeling, electrical, fire alann, 
HV AC, fayade and awning. The applicant submitted a Tier II TIF. To this extent, the 
applicant is requesting TIF funds for redevelopment work at this location in order to 
fill in the needed gap. Total project costs are expected to be $163,324. 

The application meets the procedural requirements of the Berwyn TIF application 
which was reviewed by BDC staff and then processed for consideration. AS-year 
revenue forecast shows that the business would produce approximately $113,532 in 
total tax revenue. 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) Board of Directors and the 
OgdenJDepot TIF committee have both agreed to recommend approval of the below 
specified TIF monies regarding Windsor Legal Group's TIF eligible project costs. 

Based on this information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIF monies to 
pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a maximum of $81,662. 
The following are stipulations of the approval: 1) Applicant must replace the 
windows/facade on the bar/restaurant. 2) Applicant's awning must conform to Depot 
awning policy. 3) The applicant will not receive any TIF monies prior to obtaining 
proper City permits. As part of our process, BDC staff will validate work performed 
and eligibility prior to any payments. 

With the consent of City Council, Windsor Legal Group can commence work on 
their project and contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place in the Depot 
District. 

ReI:t~IlY submitted for your consideration, 

An't)~. Griffin 



[-3 
August 14, 2012 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: TIF application - The Wire, 6815 W. Roosevelt Road 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

Applicants are requesting TIP funds for renovation of their recently purchased 
building on Roosevelt Road. The TIF scope of work includes demolition, roof, 
exterior walls, window and doors, interior renovations including framing, HV AC, 
plumbing, electrical and carpentry and a fire alarm system, which will all lead to a 
new business opening in Berwyn. The applicant submitted a Tier II TIP. To this 
extent, the applicant is requesting TIF funds for redevelopment work at this location 
in order to fill in the needed gap. Total project costs are expected to be $1,204,000. 

The application meets the procedural requirements of the Berwyn TIF application 
which was reviewed by BDC staff and then processed for consideration. A 5-year 
revenue forecast shows that the business would produce approximately $252,700 in 
total tax revenue. 

The Berwyn Development Corporation's (BDC) Board of Directors and the 
HarlemIRoosevelt TIP conunittee have both agreed to reconunend approval of the 
below specified TIP monies regarding The Wire's TIP eligible project costs. 

Based on this information, the City Council is being asked to approve TIP monies to 
pay only the eligible costs associated with this project up to a maximum of$230,000. 
The following are stipulations of the approval: 1) lien addendum must be signed with 
lien placed on building. 2) The applicant will not receive any TIP monies prior to 
obtaining proper City permits. 3) Owner to comply with all local, state and federal 
laws and codes and detail their parking strategy. 4) No funding until 100% owner 
equity is secured and escrowed for full funding of the project. 5) Payment of 50% in 
FY2012 and 50% in the 3rd quarter of FY2013. As part of our process, BDC staff 
will validate work performed and eligibility prior to any payments. 

With the consent of City Council, The Wire can commence work on their project and 
contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place Roosevelt Road. 

Respectfully submitted for your consideration, 

Anthony W. Griffin 



berwyn dev opment 
C ORPORA ION 

3322 S. Oak Park Avenue 

Second Floor 

Berwyn, IL 60402 

708.788.8100 

falC 708.788.0966 

www.berwyn.net 

August 14,2012 

Mayor Robert J Lovero 
Members of the Berwyn City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
6700 West 26 th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Re: TFG Berwyo, LLC RDA for Anderson South 

Dear Mayor and City Council, 

The BDC is seeking approval of the attached Redevelopment Agreement 
and Ordinance for the sale of the former Anderson Ford South site. The 
group, TFG Berwyn, LLC, plans to develop and lease for a Safelite 
AutoGlass, a windshield and auto glass repair facility. 

Safelite AutoGlass was founded in 1947. Throughout more than 60 years of 
service, the company has grown from a single store in Wichita, Kansas, to a 
national auto glass provider, serving more than 4.4 million customers per 
year. 

TFG Berwyn, LLC would like to have the Berwyn operation open by early 
2013. The property would see the addition of one building on the eastern 
half of the property to house a Safelite AutoGlass. TFG Berwyn, LLC 
would then have an option to purchase the remaining parcel of the property 
for additional retail development. The acquisition and construction are 
expected to exceed $1.2M with a majority being new construction costs. 
The new operation will employee approximately 10 people. The BDC's tax 
forecast for the operation is estimated to exceed $46,000 annual in sales and 
property tax. 

With the consent of City Council, TFG Berwyn, LLC can commence work 
on their project and contribute to the revitalization efforts taking place on 
Ogden Avenue. 

Respectfully submitted for your consideration, 

kW. Griffin 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS AND 
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH TFG 
BERWYN LLC FOR THE CITY OF BERWYN, STATE OF ILLINOIS 

Robert J. Lovero, Mayor 
Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Jeffrey Boyajian 
Margaret Paul 
Michele Skryd 
Cesar Santoy 

Theodore Polashek 
Rafael Avila 

Nora Laureto 
Aldermen 

Published in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn on ___ _ 



ORDINANCE No. ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CONVEYANCE OF CERTAIN REAL 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS AND 
AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH TFG 
BERWYN LLC FOR THE CITY OF BERWYN, STATE OF ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit of local government as is 

provided by Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution (1970) and, as such, may exercise 

various powers and perfonn numerous functions pertaining to its government and affairs in any 

manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, to stimulate and induce redevelopment pursuant to the Tax Increment 

Allocation Redevelopment Act, 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, et seq., (the "TIF Act"), and to encourage 

municipal revitalization, after giving all notices and conducting all public hearings required by law, 

the City has approved a redevelopment project and plan (collectively, the "Redevelopment Plan"); 

designated a Redevelopment Project Area (as hereinafter defined); and adopted tax increment 

financing (,'TIF") for the Redevelopment Project Area (collectively, the "TIF Ordinances"); and 

WHEREAS, the TIF Ordinances, among other things, established a redevelopment project 

area, commonly known as the Ogden A venue TIF District, in accordance with the TIF Act for certain 

areas of the City (the "Redevelopment Project Area"); and 

WHEREAS, the City is the owner of that certain real property located generally at the 

southeast corner of Ogden Avenue and South East Avenue, Berwyn, Illinois, commonly known as 

"Anderson Ford - South" (the "Subject Property"), located at or about 6530 and 6550 West Ogden 

Avenue, Berwyn, Illinois and legally described in the Agreement (as hereinafter defined) and in the 

legal description attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A; and 

2 



WHEREAS, the Subject Property is located within the boundaries of the Redevelopment 

Project Area; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 11-74.4-4 of the TIF Act (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-4), the City is 

authorized to acquire, own and convey land and other property, real or personal, or rights or interests 

therein, located within a redevelopment project area; and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property has not been contributing, in a manner comparable to 

surrounding improved properties, to the City's real property tax base or generating sales tax revenue 

for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to use its home rule powers to dispose of the Subject Property; 

and 

WHEREAS, there exists a certain Redevelopment and Land Acquisition Agreement (the 

"Agreement"), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit B, which sets forth the terms, 

covenants and conditions under which the City will convey all or a portion of the Subject Property to 

TFG Berwyn LLC (the "Developer"); and 

WHEREAS, the Subject Property is comprised of "Parcell," and "Parcel 2"; and 

WHEREAS, as set forth in the Agreement, the Developer intends to purchase and thereafter 

develop Parcel 1 for use as a four thousand (4,000) square foot auto-oriented service and parts 

business with four (4) auto bays to be operated on the southwest comer of Ogden Avenue and 

Scoville A venue (the "Intended Use For Parcell"); and 

WHEREAS, as further set forth in the Agreement, the Developer intends to market, but is 

under no obligation to purchase, Parcel 2 as a site for the development of a new commercial building 

for retail and/or general commercial space that, if constructed, would be located on the southeast 

3 



corner of Ogden A venue and East A venue (the "Developer's Rights To Parcel 2" and together with 

the Intended Use For Parcell the "Redevelopment Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement also sets forth the tenns under which the City may elect to 

provide economic assistance to the Developer by reducing the purchase price of the Subject Property 

pursuant to its Home Rule Powers; and 

WHEREAS, in addition to the foregoing, the Mayor and the City Council (collectively, the 

"Corporate Authorities") have determined and do hereby determine that: (1) the building located on 

the Subject Property no longer complies with current building codes; (2) the building located on the 

Subject Property has remained significantly underutilized for at least one (1) calendar year; (3) the 

Redevelopment Project is expected to create or retain job opportunities within the City; (4) the 

Redevelopment Project will selVe to further the development of adjacent areas, increase economic 

activity within the City and improve the environment of the City; (5) without the Agreement and the 

financial ass istance offered to the Developer by the City pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the 

Redevelopment Project would not be possible; (6) the Redevelopment Project will strengthen the 

commercial sector of the City; (7) the Redevelopment Project is expected to generate tax revenue for 

the benefit of the City and its residents; and (8) the Developer evidences the financial strength to 

complete its obligations under the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, the Corporate Authorities have detennined that it is 

in the best interests of City and its residents to convey Parcell to the Developer and to facilitate the 

Redevelopment Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporate Authorities find that it is necessary for the health, safety. morals 

and welfare of the public and necessary for conducting City business and the effective administration 

4 



of government that the City execute, enter into and approve an agreement with tenns substantially 

the same as the tenns of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS. the Mayor is authorized to enter into and the City's legal counsel is authorized 

to revise agreements for the City making such insertions. omissions and changes as shall be approved 

by the Mayor and the City's legal counsel; and 

WHEREAS, the parties acknowledge that the City has a notification requirement (as set 

forth in the notice attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit C) and that the authorization set 

forth herein for execution of the agreement is freely revocable by the City in its sole and absolute 

discretion in the event the City receives a superior offer (within the time limits set forth in the 

attached notice) to redevelop the Subject Property then the one set forth in the Agreement; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 

Berwyn. Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The statements set forth in the preamble to this Ordinance are found to be true 

and correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if set forth in full. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and 

advisable and otherwise in the best interests of the City to convey Parcel 1 to the Developer and to 

facilitate the Redevelopment Project and to execute, enter into and approve an agreement with terms 

substantially the same as the terms of the Agreement. 

Sectioll3. The Agreement is hereby approved with such insertions, omissions and 

changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the City's legal counsel. 

Section 4. The City's legal counsel is hereby authorized to negotiate and undertake any 

and all actions on the part of the City to effectuate the intent of this Ordinance. 

5 



Section 5. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the applicable 

Agreement, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the 

City's legal counsel. The City Council further authorizes the Mayor or his designee to execute any 

and all additional documentation that may be necessary to carry out the intent of this Ordinance. The 

officers, employees and/or agents of the City are authorized and directed to take all action necessary 

or reasonably required by the City to carry out, give effect to and consununate the transaction 

contemplated herein and shall take all acts necessary in conformity therewith including, without 

limitation, the execution and delivery of any closing and other documents required to be delivered in 

connection with the Agreement or the conveyance of Parcell. The City Clerk is hereby authorized 

and directed to attest to and countersign any such documents, as required. 

Section 6. All prior actions of the City's officials, employees and agents with respect to 

the subject matter of this Ordinance are hereby expressly ratified. 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable, and 

should any provision of this Ordinance be determined to be in conflict with any law, statute or 

regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be excluded and deemed 

inoperative, unenforceable and as though not provided for herein, and all other provisions shall 

remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and effect. 

Section 8. All ordinances, resolutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded. 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall be immediately in full force and effect after passage, 

approval and publication. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet fonn as provided by the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended. 

6 



ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this 

__ day of ____ 2012, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ~SENT 

Chapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

~antoy 

Polashek 

Avila 

Laureto 

<Mayor Lovero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this __ day of ______ 2012. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

7 

Robert J. Lovero 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



EXIDBITA 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

8 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description of Property 

PARCEL 1: LOTS 9 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE, IN E.A. CUMMINGS AND COMPANY'S 
OGDEN AVENUE SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 63, 64 AND 65 AND THE WEST 37 FEET OF 
LOTS 66, 67 AND 68 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF PART OF SECTION 31, 
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLrNOIS. 

PINeS); 16-31-404-003-0000; 16-31-404-004-0000; 16-31-404-005-0000; 
16-31-404-006-0000; 16-31-404-00,]-0000; 16-31-404-008-0000 
and 16-31-404-046·0000 

38 



EXHIBIT B 
AGREEMENT 

9 



REDEVELOPMENT AND LAND ACQUISITION AGREEMENT 

By and Between 

CITY OF BERWYN, 
an Dlinois municipal corporation 

and 

TFG BERWYN LLC, 
an Illinois limited liability company 

Dated: _______ 2012 



The mailing, delivery or negotiation of this Redevelopment and Land Acquisition Agreement by 

the City of Berwyn or its agent or attorney shall not be deemed an offer by the City of Berwyn to 

enter into any transaction or to enter into any other relationship with TFG Berwyn LLC, whether 

on the terms contained herein or on any other terms. This Redevelopment and Land Acquisition 

Agreement shall not be binding upon the City of Berwyn, nor shall the City of Berwyn have any 

obligations or liabilities hereunder nor shall TFG Berwyn LLC have any rights with respect 

thereto. unless and until the City of Berwyn has executed and delivered this Redevelopment and 

Land Acquisition Agreement. Until such ex.ecution and delivery of this Redevelopment and 

Land Acquisition Agreement, the City of Berwyn may terminate all negotiation and discussion 

of the subject matter hereto. without cause and for any or no reason, without recourse or liability. 

2 



REDEVELOPMENT AND LAND ACQUISITION AGREEMENT 

This Redevelopment and Land Acquisition Agreement and all exllibits and attachments 
hereto, as any of the same may hereafter be supplemented, amended, restated, severed, 
consolidated, extended, revised and otherwise modified, from time to time. (collectively, this 
"Agreement") is made and e1Tective as of this __ day of , 2012 (the 
"Effective Date") by and between the City of Berwyn, an Illinois municipal corporation (the 
"City") and TFG BelWyn LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, (the "Developer"). The 
City and the Developer may, for convenience purposes, be hereinafter referred to as the 
"Parties." 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City is a home rule unit of local goverrunent as is provided by Article 
VII, Section 6 of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, adopted in 1970, and as such may 
exercise various powers and perform numerous functions pertaining to its government and affairs 
in any manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the City has the authority, pursuant to the laws of the State of Illinois, to 
promote the health, safety and welfare of the City and its inhabitants, to prevent the spread of 
and eradicate blight. to encourage private development in order to enhance the local tax base, to 
increase employment and to enter into contractual agreements with third parties for the purpose 
of achieving the abovementioned goals; and 

WHEREAS, the City specifically has the authority under the provisions of the Tax 
Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-1, el seq.), as amended (the 
"Act"), to ftnance redevelopment in accordance with the conditions and requirements set forth in 
the Act including "writing down" the cost of real property for purchase to entice developers to 
acquire and redevelop blighted properties; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to acqwre and develop all or a portion of that certain 
real property located generally at the southeast comer of Ogden Avenue and South East Avenue, 
Berwyn, Illinois, commonly known as "Anderson Ford - South", located at or about 6530 and 
6550 West Ogden Avenue, Berwyn, Illinois and which is legally described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein, (the "Property")~ and 

WHEREAS, the Property shall include all interest, easements, rights-of-way and 
appurtenances used in cormection with the use of the real estate that comprises the Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Property is comprised of "Parcell", legally described in Exhibit B 
(attached hereto and incorporated herein), and "Parcel 2", legally described in Exhibit C 
(attached hereto and incorporated herein); and 

WHEREAS, the Property bas not been contributing to an extent that is comparable to 
surrounding occupied properties to the City's real property tax base or generating sales tax 
revenue for the City; and 

3 



WHEREAS, the Developer intends to develop Parcel 1 for use as a four thousand 
(4,000) square foot auto-oriented service and parts business with four (4) auto bays to be 
operated on the southwest corner of Ogden Avenue and Scoville Avenue (the "Intended Use") 
and which will stimulate and strengthen the Cily's tax base; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer intends to market, but is under no obligation to purchase, 
Parcel 2 as a site for the development of a new commercial building for retail and/or general 
commercial space that, if constructed, would be located on the southeast corner of Ogden 
Avenue and East Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer has detennined that it is not economically feasible for the 
Developer to undertake the Redevelopment Project (as hereinafter defined) without a 
commitment by the City to provide the Developer with certain economic assistance; and 

WHEREAS, the City has specifically investigated the economic benefits to the City if 
the Redevelopment Project is approved, and after due investigation and consideration the City 
has determined that: (1) the building located on the Property no longer complies with current 
building codes; (2) the building located on the Property has remained significantly underutilized 
for at least one (1) calendar year; (3) the Redevelopment Project is expected to create or retain 
job opportunities within the City; (4) the Redevelopment Project will serve to further the 
development of adjacent areas, increase economic activity within the City and improve the 
environment of the City; (5) without this Agreement and the financial assistance offered to the 
Developer by the City pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Redevelopment Project 
would not be possible; (6) the Redevelopment Project will strengthen the commercial sector of 
the City; (7) the Redevelopment Project is expected to generate tax revenue for the benefit of the 
City and its residents; and (8) the Developer evidences the financial strength to complete its 
obligations under the Agreement. Based on the foregoing, the City has determined and does 
determine that the Redevelopment Project is in the best interests of the City as it furthers the 
health, safety and welfare of the City's residents and taxpayers; and 

WHEREAS, the City intends to use explicit powers in the Act and its home rule powers 
to dispose of the Property; and 

WHEREAS, Section 8-1-2.5 of the Illinois Municipal Code (65 ILCS 5/8-1-2.5) 
authorizes the City to expend funds for economic development purposes that are deemed 
necessary or desirable for the promotion of economic development within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the completed Redevelopment Project will reduce blight, strengthen the 
commercial sector of the City and the tax base of the City and promote economic development 
within the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement to set forth the rights, duties 
and obligations of and between the Parties regarding the development of the Intended Use on 
Parcell and the Developer's rights with regard to Parcel 2 (collectively, the "Redevelopment 
Projecf'); and 

4 



WHEREAS, the Parties intend that Parcel I and, if acquired by the Developer, Parcel 2 
be encumbered with certain restrictive covenants and reversionary rights as more fully set forth 
herein; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the exchange of no less than Ten and Noll 00 
United States Dollars ($10.00), the foregoing Recitals, the mutual promises and covenants 
contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, including, without limitation the 
Developer's performance of the Restrictive Covenant (as defined below), the sufficiency of 
which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally boWld, hereby agree as 
follows: 

SECTION I 
APPLICABLE LAW AND INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 

A. Law. This Agreement shall be governed by. construed under and interpreted in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Illinois, without giving effect to its principles of 
conflicts of law or choice of law. All suits, actions, claims and causes of action relating to the 
construction, validity, performance and enforcement of this Agreement shall be brought in the 
state courts of Cook County. This Agreement is made pursuant to and in accordance with the 
provisions of the Constitution of the State of Illinois, the Act, other applicable provisions of the 
lllinois Compiled Statutes and the Codified Ordinances of Berwyn (the "City Code"). The City 
Code includes, but is not limited to the City's Planning and Zoning Code and the City's Building 
and Housing Code. 

8. Recitals. The representations, covenants and recitations set forth in the preceding 
Sections titled "Recitals" evidence the intent of the Parties, are material to this Agreement and 
are hereby made a pro1 of this Agreement as substantive representations and covenants as though 
fully set forth herein. 

SECTION II 
DEVELOPER'S ACQU[SITION OF THE PROPERTY 

A. Property Acquisition. 

(1) ·'As-Is'\ Closing Escrow. All dispositions or other conveyances of all or any 
portion of Property made pursuant to the tenns of this Agreement shall be in an 
"As-Is" "Where-Is" condition. The transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
shall be closed by means of a Deed and Money "New York Style" Escrow (the 
"Closing Escrow") to be opened with the Title Company (as defined below) prior 
to the Closing Date (as defined below). The Closing Escrow shall be in 
accordance with the general provisions of the usuaJ form of Deed and Money 
"New York Style" Escrow Agreement (the "Closing Escrow Agreement") with 
such special provisions inserted in the Closing Escrow Agreement as may be 
required to conform to this Agreement; provided, however, in the event of a 
conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the Closing Escrow, the terms 
of this Agreement shall in all instances control. 

5 



(2) Property Acquisition (Parcel 1); Purchase Price; Closing Date. The Developer 
shall purchase Parcel I from the City and the City shall sell and convey Parcel t 
to the Developer on the tenns and conditions as set forth below. The purchase 
price of Parcel I (the "Parcel 1 Purchase Price") shall be Four Hundred 
Thousand and NollOO U.S. Dollars ($400,000.00), plus Of minus applicable 
prorations and closing costs. The Parcel I Purchase Price shall be paid as 
follows: 

(a) Earnest Money. Within five (5) business days after the Effective Date, 
Developer shall deposit, as earnest money, by certified check or wire 
transfer, the amounl of Twenty~Five Thousand and nollOO U.S. Dollars 
($25,000.00) (said eamest money together with any interest earned 
thereon (as applicable) being referred to herein as the "Earnest Money") 
into an escrow account pursuant to a strict joint order escrow agreement to 
be entered into by the Parties (with such special provisions inserted in the 
strict joint order escrow agreement as may be required to conform to this 
Agreement) with Greater Illinois Title Company (the "Title Company"), 
as escrowee. The Earnest Money shall be transferred to the Closing 
Escrow upon the establishment of the Closing Escrow. The Earnest 
Money may be invested upon the direction of Developer and, except as 
specifically set forth herein to the contrary, all interest earned thereon shall 
accrue to the benefit of Developer. The Earnest Money shall be fully 
refundable to Developer in the event that Developer terminates the 
Agreement in writing pursuant to the tenns of this Agreement prior to the 
expiration of the Due Diligence Period.. In the event that Developer 
terminates this Agreement and said termination is not prior to the 
expiration of the Due Dili.gence Period: (i) Fifteen Thousand and noll 00 
U.S. Dollars (Sl5,OOO.OO) of the Earnest Money shall be deemed non
refundable and shall be paid directly to the City in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement; and (ii) the remainder of the Earnest Money shall 
be fully refundable to the Developer. No such refund of the Earnest 
Money shall be made to Developer in the event Developer has previously 
breached this Agreement and failed to cure such breach within the time 
pennined herein. 

(b) Cash Balance. The balance of the Purchase Price, plus or minus 
Developer's share of the closing costs, prorations and credits hereinafter 
provided for, shall be paid by Developer by wire transfer at the Parcel I 
Property Closing (as defined herein). 

(3) Property Acquisition Option (Parcel 2); Closing Date: Purchase Price; 
Forbearance. 

(a) After the Parcel I Property Closing, Developer shall be permitted to 
market Parcel 2 for a commercial development, which is consistent with 
the terms of this Agreement, through the placement of a "For Lease" sign 
on Parcel 2. The Developer shall procure and maintain such policies of 

6 



insurance with respect to Parcel 2 as are required by Section VI of this 
Agreement prior to any use thereof. The Developer shall provide the City 
with a written proposal (a "Development Proposal") detailing any 
potential use and/or development of Parcel 2. The Developer shall be 
solely responsible for the costs of all marketing activities undertaken 
pursuant to this Agreement on its behalf including, without limitation, the 
preparation of any Development Proposal. The City shall convey Parcel 2 
to the Developer upon the terms and conditions set forth herein if the City 
detennines that a Development Proposal is in the best interests of the City; 
provided however, that nothing set forth herein shall be construed as an 
obligation of the Developer to purchase Parcel 2. No sale, lease or other 
agreement concerning Parcel 2 shall be valid until approved by the City 
Council, in its sole and absolute discretion. Nothing set forth herein shaH 
affect the City's right to reject any and all Development Proposals, or the 
City's right to develop, market, list, sell, lease or otherwise use or dispose 
of Parcel 2, on such terms and conditions that it deems favorable prior to 
the disposition of Parcel 2. The City may terminate the Developer's right 
to market Parcel 2 at any time through written notice delivered in 
accordance with the tenns of this Agreement; provided however, the 
Developer's rights with regard to Parcel 2 shall terminate automatically 
and be held for naught upon the tenninarion of this Agreement and/or the 
Developer's failure to acquire Parcel 1. In the event of such a termination 
of the Developer's rights and interest in Parcel 2, the Developer shall 
immediately cease and terminate any and all marketing activities it has 
undertaken with regard to Parcel 2. 

(b) Upon the City's acceptance of a Development Proposal, the following 
terms shall be in full force and effect and shall represent the entire 
agreement reached between the Developer and the City for the sale and 
purchase of Parcel 2: 

(i) The purchase price of Parcel 2 (the "Parcel 2 Purchase Price") 
shall be detennined by the Parties based upon a pro forma 
generating a ten percent (10%) return on investment for the 
Developer, plus or minus applicable prorations and closing costs. 
Tbe Developer shall pay the City the Parcel 2 Purchase Price at the 
Parcel 2 Closing (as hereinafter defined). 

(ii) The closing shall take place within thirty (30) days of the date of 
said notice, on a date mutually agreed upon by the parties (the 
"Parcel 2 Closing"). 

(iii) At the Parcel 2 Closing, the City shall conveyor cause to be 
conveyed to the Developer good and merchantable title to Parcel 2. 

B. Closing Escrow. The closing of the sale of Parcel I contemplated by this 

7 



Agreement (the "Parcel 1 Property Closing") shall be held at the office of the Title Company 
not later than forty five (45) calendar days after the expiration of the Due Diligence Period (the 
"Closing Date"). Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parcel 1 Property Closing shall occur not 
prior to the Developer's satisfaction of the Developer's Closing Contingencies (as defined 
below). 

C. CIty's Conditions Precedent to Parcell Closing; Lease Agreement for Parcel 
1. In addition to the conditions precedent to the Parcell Property Closing elsewhere set forth in 
this Agreement, the Developer shall satisfy the following covenants to the full satisfaction of the 
City prior to the City being required to the Close on Parcell: (1) the Developer shall provide, 
within a reasonable time after the Effective Date, the City with a pro forma or similar financial 
documentation evidencing the Developer's Deed for the incentives provided herein, including the 
land price write~down, and demonstrating that without the fmancial assistance offered herein by 
the City. the Redevelopment Project would not be possible; (2) provide proof of equity financing 
in the amount of twenty percent (20%) of the total construction costs related to the Renovation 
Projec4 (3) the City shaH be in possession of a valid, binding and enforceable lease agreement 
for Parcell between the Developer and Safelite Auto Center (the "Safelite Lease"); and (4) the 
Developer not being in material breach or default of any provision of this Agreement, including, 
without limitation the "Timeline" (as defined below) (collectively, the "Developer's ClOSing 
Contingencies"). The Parties agree and acknowledge that in the event the Developer fails to 
satisfy Developer's Closing Contingencies and the Developer has not cured any complained of 
breaches of its obligations under this Agreement, the City (not withstanding any other provision 
oftrus Agreement) may deem Developer to be in breach of this Agreement and it to be null, void 
and tellninated immediately after written notice and opportunity to cure the complained of 
default has expired. 

O. DeUveries at Closing (parcell or Parcel 2); Closing Costs. 

(1) City's (SeHer's) Deliveries. At the Parcel I Property Closing, City shall deliver to 
the Title Company, as escrowee, or the Developer directly, the following 
documents and items, each in a form mutually agreed to by the Parties: 

(8) A general warranty deed (the "Parcell Deed l1
) from City conveying 

Parcell to the Developer. Tbe Deed shall be subject only to the Reversion 
(as defined below), the Restrictive Covenant (as defined below), real 
estate taxes and matters created by or through the Developer and public 
entities; 

(b) A Certificate of Non-Foreign Status of the City as required by Section 
1445 of the Internal Revenue Code (and any amendment thereto), which 
certifies that the City is not a foreign transferor, in a form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to the Developer; 

(c) Any reasonable and customary docwnentation required by the Title 
Company in order for the Title Company to issue the Title Policy (as 
hereinafter defined), with extended coverage and a survey endorsement 

8 



upon the Developer's request and at its expense, showing fee simple title 
vested in the Developer and a standard form Affidavit of Title; 

Cd) An ALTA Statement and a personalllGap" lUldertaking, if required by the 
Title Company; 

(e) Four (4) originals of a closing statement prepared by the City in a manner 
which reflects the tenns and conditions, as applicable, of this Agreement 
and is otherwise in a form reasonably acceptable to the Developer (the 
"Closing Statement"); 

(f) A standard form assignment agreement conveying the City's interests, if 
any, in all applicable contracts, permits, licenses and warranties on Parcel 
1; and 

(g) Possession (and use, as applicable) of the Property in current condition, 
free of all personal property, free of parties in possession, and in the same 
condition as of the Effective Date (excepting normal wear and tear); and 

(2) City's (Seller's) Deliveries. At the Parcel 2 Property Closing, City shall deliver to 
the Title Company, as escrowee, or the Developer directly, the following 
documents and items, each in a fonn mutually agreed to by the Parties: 

(8) A general warranty deed (the "Parcel 2 Deed" and. where applicable, 
together with the Parcel I Deed, the "Deed") from City conveying Parcel 
2 to the Developer. The Deed shall be subject only to the Reversion (as 
defined below), the Restrictive Covenant (as defined below), real estate 
taxes and matters created by or through the Developer and public entities; 

Cb) A Certificate of Non-Foreign Status of the City as required by Section 
1445 of the Internal Revenue Code (and any amendment thereto). which 
certifies that the City is not a foreign transferor, in a form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to the Developer; 

(c) Any reasonable and customary documentation required by the Title 
Company in order for the Title Company to issue the Title Policy (as 
hereinafter defined), with extended coverage and a survey endorsement 
upon the Developer's request and at its expense, showing fee simple title 
vested in the Developer and a standard fonn Affidavit of Title; 

(d) An ALTA Statement and a personal "Gap" undertaking, if required by the 
Title Company; 

(e) Four (4) originals ofa closing statement prepared by the City in a manner 
which reflects the terms and conditions, as applicable, of this Agreement 
and is otherwise in a fonn reasonably acceptable to the Developer (the 

9 



tlparcel2 Closing Statement"); 

(f) A standard foml assignment agreement conveying the City's interests, if 
any, in all applicable contracts, pennits, licenses and warranties on Parcel 
2; and 

(g) Possession (and use, as applicable) of the Parcel 2 in CWTent condition, free 
of all personal property, free of parties in possession, and in the same 
condition as of the Effective Date (ex.cepting nonnal wear and tear); and 

(3) Developer's Deliveries. Except as specified below, at each of the Parcel 
Property Closing and the Parcel 2 Closing, the Developer shall deliver to the Title 
Company, as escrowee, or the City directly, as the Developer may elect, the 
following documents, each in a fonn mutually agreed to by the Parties: 

(a) The balance of the applicable Purchase Price in accordance with Section II 
above, plus the Developer's share of the closing costs; 

(b) Such proof of the Developer's authority and authorization to enter into this 
transaction as may be required by the Title Company; 

(c) Any reasonable and customary documentation required by the Title 
Company in order for the Title Company to issue the Title Policy with 
extended coverage and a survey endorsement; 

(d) An acknowledgment of the Developer's acceptance of the closing 
statement; and 

(e) At the Parcell Propel1y Closing, an exact copy of the Safelite Lease. 

(4) Mutual Deliveries. At each of the Parcel I Property Closing and the Parcel 2 
Closing, the Parties shall jointly deliver the following documents to the Title 
Company, as escrowee or the other Party: 

(a) To the extent required state, county and municipal Transfer Tax 
Declarations; and 

(b) Any and all other documents reasonably required to effectuate the 
transaction contemplated herein or reasonably requested by the other 
Party. 

(5) Concurrent Delivery of Closing Documents. All documents or other deliveries 
required to be made by the Developer or the City at the Parcell Property Closing 
or the Parcel 2 Property Closing, as applicable, and all transactions required to be 
consummated concurrently with the applicable closing, shall be deemed to have 

10 



been delivered and to have been conswnmated simultaneously with all other 
transactions and all other deliveries, and no delivery shall be deemed to have been 
made and no transactions shall be deemed to have been consummated until all 
deliveries required by the Developer and the City shall have been made, and all 
concurrent and other transactions shall havc been consummated. 

(6) Allocation of Closing Costs. Allocation of Closing Costs and Expenses. The 
City shall bear the cost of the following or cause the same to be paid at each of the 
Parcel I Property Closing and the Parcel 2 Property Closing: (a) the Preliminary 
Commitment (as defined below) and the Title Policy (as defined below), but not 
any other endorsements except those as sped fically designated herein unless the 
City elects to purchase such endorsements to correct any Unpennitted Exceptions 
(as defined below); (b) the cost to record any instruments to clear the City's title; 
(c) one half of the cost for any escrows opened hereunder, (d) one half of the cost 
of the "Deed and Money" closing fee~ and (e) any additional closing costs. 

The Developer shall bear the cost of the following: (w) any recording fees with 
respect to the Deed; and (x) the charges for any endorsements required by the 
Developer (exclusive of those being paid by City pursuant to the terms of this 
Agreement); (y) one half of the cost for any escrows opened hereunder; (z) one 
half of the cost of the "Deed and Money" closing fee. The cost of any local, st8te 
and county transfer taxes applicable to this transaction shall be paid for in 
accordance with local ordinances and customs with the Parties agreeing to seek 
and apply for any applicable exemptions. The Developer shall provide the 
appropriate allocations of the Purchase Price to the Property to the City and the 
Title Company prior to the Parcel I Property Closing and the Parcel 2 Closing, as 
applicable. In the event the Developer elects to secure extended coverage on the 
Property, the Developer shall pay for the same. 

E. Property; Inspection; Due Diligence; Due Diligence Period; Rights. For a 
period of sixty (60) days following the expiration of the Publication Period (the "Due Dfllgence 
Period"), the Developer and its agents and representatives shall be entitled to conduct a 
comprehensive inspection of the condition of the Property (the "Due DllIgence"). The 
Developer'S Due Diligence rights will include, but shall not be limited to, the rights to: (I) enter 
on the Property to perfonn physica.l inspections and tests thereon; (2) inspect any matters, public 
or private, in the possession or control of the City or its a.gents, relating to the Property; (3) make 
investigations with regard to zoning, environmental matters, building codes, and other legal 
requirements including, but not limited to, an environmental assessment of the Property; (4) 
make or obtain market studies and real estate analyses of the Property and the Developer's 
Intended Use thereof; and (5) analyze the financial feasibility of ownership Property and the 
Developer's Intended Use thereof; provided however, that all such activities conducted on the 
Property by or on behalf of the Developer shall be non-invasive and shall be conducted so as not 
to cause damage to the Property. The Developer shall provide reasonable written notice, which 
shall not be fewer than two (2) business days in advance, prior to entering the Property. The City 
may, in its sole and absolute discretion, have a representative present during any and all 
examinations. inspections or studies conducted on the Property. 

11 



F. Due Diligence; Delivery of Applicable Documents. The City has delivered all 
commercially reasonable material docwnents including, but not limited to, reports of engineering 
studies conducted during the last five (5) years and history of Building Code violations, in its 
possession regarding the condition of the Property to the Developer and the Developer 
acknowledges receipt of the same. 

G. Due Diligence; Termination. The Developer, may, in the event it determines in 
its sole and absolute discretion that the results of any inspection, test, the Preliminw'Y 
Commitment or other examination do not meet the Developer's criteria for purchase, financing, 
or operation of the Property in the manner contemplated by the Developer, or if the infonnation 
disclosed does not otherwise meet the Developer's investment or purchase criteria for any reason 
whatsoever including, without limitation the Developer's inability to finalize the Safelite Lease, 
or if the Developer, in its sole and absolute discretion, otherwise detennines that the Property is 
unsatisfactory to it, then the Developer may tenninate the Agreement by written notice to the 
City, given not later than the expiration of the Due Diligence Period (the "Termination 
Notice"). The Developer shall deliver the Tennination Notice with all copies of all test results 
that the Developer received regarding the Property . All other copies of any test results generated 
or received by the Developer shall be destroyed and not otherwise distributed by the Developer. 
In the event the Developer fails to notify the City of its intent to terminate the Agreement prior to 
the ex.piration of the Due Diligence Period, the Developer's right to tenninate the Agreement 
shall be waived unequivocally. 

H. Due Diligence; Post-Termination Issues. Upon the tennination pursuant to 
Section II. G. of this Agreement, any earnest money deposit made, together with all interest 
accrued thereon, shall be returned as soon as commercially reasonably possible to the Developer 
and, except as otherwise provided in this Section, neither Party shall have any further liability to 
the other hereunder. The Due Diligence Indemnification (as defined below) shall survive after 
the tennination of this Agreement. 

I. Title Commitment. No later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the Effective 
Date, the City shall, at its sole cost and expense, deliver to the Developer an ALTA Form 2006 
Owner's Title Insurance Policy (the "PrelimJoary Commitment") issued by the Title Company 
in the amount of the PlD'chase Price showing title to the Property in the City. The Preliminary 
Commitment shall be subject only to: (i) the standard pennitted exceptions and general 
exceptions contained in the Preliminary Commitment; (ii) current and outstanding general real 
estate taxes; (iii) matters created by, through or under the Developer, (iv) all covenants, 
conditions and restrictions of record; (v) general and special real estate taxes due and owing on 
the Property (if any, which shall be subject to the Appeal (as defined below) or subsequent 
similarly filed Appeals filed by the City or its designee) (collectively, the "Initial Exceptions"). 
While the Parties acknowledge that Developer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in 
the event the Preliminary Commitment is unsatisfactory to it, in the event the Developer objects 
to the Preliminary Commitment 1n writing, the City agrees to take reasonable steps to work with 
Developer to clear the aforesaid title objection. 

12 



J. Title Policy. The City, on the Parcell Property Closing Date, at its sole cost and 
expense, shal/ cause the Title Company to issue to the Developer a Chicago Title Insurance 
Company ALTA Fonn 2006 Owner's Policy of Title Insurance insuring Parcel I for the Parcel I 
Purchase Price (the "Title Policy"). The Title Policy will contain the Restrictive Covenant (as 
defined below). The City, on the Parcel 2 Property Closing Date, at its sole cost and expense, 
shaH cause the Title Company to issue to the Developer a Chicago Title Insurance Company 
ALTA Form 2006 Owner's Policy of Title Insurance insuring Parcel 2 for the Parcel 2 Purchase 
Price (the "Parcel 2 Title Policy"). The Parcel 2 Title Policy will contain the Restrictive 
Covenant (as defined below). The Parties acknowledge that that sole covenants. conditions and 
restrictions of record that shall remain on the Title Policy as of the Closing Date shall be current, 
general real estate taxes and those that do not interfere with the intended use and enjoyment of 
Parcel 1 (or Parcel 2, when applicable). 

K. Property; Survey. The Developer acknowledges receipt of the survey of the 
Property, attached hereto as Exbibit D. 

L. Prorations; Real Estate Taxes and Utilities. The Illinois Department of 
Revenue has certified the Property as exempt from real estate taxation as of the date of the City's 
acquisition of the same. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties agree and acknowledge that 
the City has filed a request with Cook County for the application of the foregoing certification to 
any taxes currently listed as outstanding on the Property (the "Appeal"). The City, without 
independent investigation reasonably expects that any and all outstanding real estate taxes due 
and owing are subject to abatement pursuant to the Appeal. Any outstanding utility payments 
shall be prorated at 100% of the then outstanding invoice for the same as of the applicable 
closing. 

M. Property; BrOkerage. The Developer warrants and represents to the benefit of 
the City that it has not authorized. any real estate broker (or sales person) to act on its behalf in 
respect to the transaction contemplated in this Agreement. The City warrants and represents to 
the benefit of the Developer that it bas not authorized. any real estate broker (or sales person) to 
act on its behalf in respect to the transaction contemplated in this Agreement. 

N. PROPERTY; AS-IS, WHERE-IS; DISCLAIMER OF 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES BY SELLER/CITY. Other than as specifically 
set forth herein., the City makes no representations as to the condition of the Property. As stated 
above, the Parties agree and aclrnowledge, that the Property is being conveyed from the City to 
the Developer is an "as-is, where is, with all faults" manner, subject only to those specifically 
enumerated representations and warranties set forth herein. The Developer is relying on its 
investigations and neither information nor materials provided to it by the City in making its 
decision in acquiring the Property. NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING CONTAINED 
HEREIN TO THE CONTRARY, IT IS UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED THAT, EXCEPT AS 
OTHERWlSE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED HEREUNDER. THE CITY/SELLER AND ITS 
AFFILIATES AND AGENTS HAVE NOT MADE AND ARE NOT NOW MAKING, AND 
THEY HEREBY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIM, ANY WARRANTIES, REPRESENTATIONS, 
OR GUARANTIES OF ANY KIND OR CHARACTER, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ORAL OR 
WRITIEN, PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE, WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY, 

13 



INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, STATEMENTS, WARRANTIES, 
REPRESENTATIONS, OR GUARANTIES AS TO (1) MATIERS OF TITLE (OTHER TIIAN 
THE CITY/SELLER'S WARRANTY OF TITLE SET FORTH IN THE DEED TO BE 
DELIVERED AT CLOSING), (2) ENVIRONMENTAL MA TIERS RELATING TO THE 
PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, (3) GEOLOGrCAL CONDITIONS, 
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMlTATION, SUBSlDENCE, SUBSURFACE CONDITIONS, 
WATER TABLE. UNDERGROUND WATER RESERVOIRS, LIMITATIONS REGARDING 
THE WITHDRAWAL OF WATER, AND EARTHQUAKE FAULTS AND THE RESULTING 
DAMAGE OF PAST AND/OR FUTURE EARTHQUAKES, (4) WHETHER, AND THE 
EXTENT TO WHICH, THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF IS AFFECTED BY 
ANY STREAM (SURFACE OR UNDERGROUND), BODY OF WATER, FLOOD·PRONE 
AREA, FLOOD PLAIN, FLOODWAY, OR SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD, (5) DRAINAGE, (6) 
SOIL CONDlTIONS, INCLUDING THE EXISTENCE OF INSTABILITY, PAST SOIL 
REPAIRS, SOIL ADDITIONS, CONDITIONS OF SOIL FILL, SUSCEPTIBILITY TO 
LANDSLIDES, OR THE SUFFICIENCY OF ANY UNDERSCORING, (7) ZONING TO 
WHICH THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF MAY BE SUBJECT, (8) THE 
AVAILABILITY OF ANY UTILITIES TO THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, 
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMIT A TrON, WATER, SEWAGE, GAS, AND ELECTRIC, (9) 
USAGES OF ADJOINING PROPERTY, (10) ACCESS TO THE PROPERTY OR ANY 
PORTJON THEREOF, (11) THE VALUE, COMPLIANCE WIre THE PLANS AND 
SPECIFICATIONS, SIZE, LOCATION, AGE, USE, DESIGN, QUALITY, DESCRIPTION, 
SUITABILITY, STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY, OPERATION, OR PHYSICAL OR 
FINANCIAL CONDmON OF THE PROPERTY OR ANY PORTION THEREOF, OR ANY 
INCOME, EXPENSES, CHARGES, LIENS, ENCUMBRANCES, RIGHTS, OR CLAIMS ON 
OR AFFECTING OR PERTAINlNG TO THE PROPERTY OR ANY PART THEREOF, (12) 
THE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES OR VIOLATIONS OF 
ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS IN, ON, UNDER, OR IN THE VlCINITY OF THE PROPERTY, 
(13) THE CONDITION OR USE OF THE PROPERTY OR COMPLIANCE OF THE 
PROPERTY WITH ANY OR ALL PAST, PRESENT, OR FUTURE FEDERAL, STATE, OR 
LOCAL ORDINANCES, RULES, REGULATIONS, OR LAWS, BUILDING, FIRE, OR 
ZONING ORDINANCES, CODES, OR OTHER SIMILAR LAWS, (14) THE EXISTENCE OR 
NON-EXISTENCE OF UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS ON THE PROPERTY, (is) 
ANY OTHER MA TIER AFFECTING THE STABILITY OR INTEGRITY OF THE 
PROPERTY, (16) THE POTENTIAL FOR FURTHER DEVELOPMENT OF THE 
PROPERTY, (17) THE EXISTENCE OF VESTED LAND USE, ZONING, OR BUILDING 
ENTITLEMENTS AFFECTING THE PROPERTY, (18) THE MERCHANTABILITY OF THE 
PROPERTY OR THE FITNESS OF THE PROPERTY FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE 
(pURCHASER AFFIRMING THAT PURCHASER HAS NOT RELIED ON THE 
CITY'S/SELLER'S OR ITS AFFILIATES' OR AGENTS' SKILL OR JUDGMENT TO 
SELECT OR FURNISH THE PROPERTY FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND THAT 
SELLER MAKES NO WARRANTY THAT THE PROPERTY IS FIT FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE), OR (19) TAX CONSEQUENCES. 

SECTION III 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; ENVIRONMENTAL 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

14 



A. Representations and Warranties of the Developer. To induce the City to 
execute Ihis Agreement and perfonn the obligations of the City hereunder, the Developer hereby 
represents and warrants to the City, as of the date of this Agreement, 8S follows: 

(1) The Developer is a duly organized and existing limited liability company and is in 
good standing under the laws of the State of Illinois. The Developer is qualified 
to do business in the St8te of Illinois, authorized to conduct its business as it is 
presently being conducted, is not in violation of any provision of its 
organizational or operating agreements and has the power and authority to enter 
into this Agreement. The Developer will deliver copies of all authorizing 
documents passed or otherwise approved as required by the Developer to 
authorize the Developer to enter into this Agreement and undeltake the covenants 
hereunder; 

(2) The execution, delivery and performance by the Developer of this Agreement 
does not constitute and will not, upon giving of notice or lapse of time or both., 
constitute a breach or default under any other agreement to which the Developer 
is a party or may be bound under; 

(3) The Parties executing this Agreement on behalf of the Developer have the 
authority to bind the Developer and have been duly authorized by all appropriate 
action to enter into, execute and deliver this Agreement and perform the terms and 
obligations contained herein; 

(4) This Agreement has been duly and properly executed by the Developer, and it 
constirutes the valid and legally binding obligations of the Developer enforceable 
against the Developer in accordance with its terms, except to such extent that 
enforceability may be limited by any bankruptcy or insolvency laws affecting the 
enforcement of creditors' rigbts and by the exercise of judicial discretion in 
accordance with general equitable principles; 

(5) The Redevelopment Project requires economic assistance in the form a land asset 
write down from the City in order to complete the same substantially in 
accordance with the cost estimates, and but for the economic assistance to be 
given by the City, the Redevelopment Project as contemplated would not be 
economically viable; 

(6) To the best of the Developer's knowledge, the Developer is in compliance with all 
laws, onlinances, goverrunental rules and regulations to which it is subject, the 
failure to comply with which could materially and adversely affect the ability of 
the Developer to perfonn its obligations under this Agreement or otherwise 
conduct its activities, and to the extent lawfully obtainable as of the date hereof, 
the Developer has obtained all licenses, permits, certifications and other 
governmental authorizations necessary to carry out the Redevelopment Project 
which, jf not obtained, could materially and adversely affect the ability of the 

15 



Developer to perform its obligations under this Agreement or otherwise carry out 
or complete the Redevelopment Project. The Developer agrees that the 
development of the Property shall be in full compliance with the zoning and 
building regulations of the City Code. Furthermore, the Developer agrees to 
comply with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of the City, County of 
Cook, State of Illinois and the United States of America and all agencies and 
subdivisions thereof and shall cause its contractors, subcontractors, agents and 
assigns to do the same; 

(7) The Developer will obtain, or will cause to be obtained, as and when necessary, 
all licenses, permits, franchises, certifications and approvals that are or will be 
required under applicable laws and regulations by any governmental body or 
officer so that the Developer can carry out the Redevelopment Project and 
complete its obligations under this Agreement. No consent, approval or 
authorization of or filing, registration or qualification with sny governmental 
authority that has not been obtained is required on the part of the Developer as a 
condition to the execution an.d delivery of this Agreement; 

(8) There are no proceedings pending or threatened against or affecting the Developer 
in any court or before any goverrunental authority, arbitration board or tribunal 
that, if adversely detennined, would materially and adversely affect the ability of 
the Developer to perfonn its obligations hereunder; 

(9) No event has occurred and no condition exists that upon execution of this 
Agreement would constitute a default or Event of Default (as defined below). The 
Developer is not in violation, and has not received notice of any claimed 
violation, of any term of any agreement or other instrument to which it is a party 
or by which it or its property may be bound, which violation could materially and 
adversely affect the financial or legal condition of the Developer or the ability of 
the Developer to perfonn its obligations under this Agreement; 

(10) Any financial information and other written data submitted by the Developer or to 
be submitted by the Developer to the City are true and correct in all material 
respects as of the dates of such statements and data. There have been no material 
adverse changes in the business, operations, ownership or condition (whether 
financial or legal) of the Developer as disclosed in such statements and data, and 
Developer has no knowledge of any liabilities, contingent or other, of the 
Developer that might have a material adverse effect upon its ability to perform its 
obligations under this Agreement, except as disclosed in writing to the City. The 
Developer has the financial wherewithal to pelform its obligation under this 
Agreement; 

(11) Any financial projections provided to the City in writing by the Developer are the 
same in all material respects as the financial projections provided by the 
Developer to any and all providers of the private financing; 

(12) The Developer expects that after the execution of this Agreement, the 

16 



implementation of the Redevelopment Project will proceed with due diligence to 
completion; 

(13) The Developer is not barred from entering into this Agreement as a result of 
violations of either 5/33£-3 or 5/33E-4 of the Illinois Criminal Code of 1961 (720 
ILCS 5133E-3; S/33E-4), the Developer has a written policy against sexual 
harassment in place in full compliance with 775 ILCS 5/2-105(A)(4), the 
Developer is in compliance with the Drug Free Workplace Act (30 ILCS 580/ I, ef 

seq.) and the Developer will comply with the Prevailing Wage Act (820 ILCS 
13010.01, el seq.) and the Law (as defined below); and 

(14) The Developer has not made a general assigrunent for the benefit of creditors, 
filed any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or suffered the filing of an involuntary 
petition by its creditors. suffered the appointment of a receiver to take possession 
of all or part of its assets, suffered the attachment or other judicial seizure of all or 
part of its assets, admitted its inability to pay debts as they come due or made an 
offer of settlement, extension or composition to its creditors generally, and the 
Developer is not anticipating the occurrence of any of the abovementioned acts. 

B. Representations and Warranties of the City. To induce the Developer to 
execute this Agreement and perform the obligations of the Developer hereunder, the City hereby 
represents and warrants to the Developer, as of the date of this Agreement, as follows: 

(I) The City has the authority as a home rule municipality located in Illinois to 
execute and deliver this Agreement and to perfonn its obligations hereunder. This 
Agreement is a valid and binding obligation, enforceable against the City; 

(2) The execution, delivery and perfonnance by the City of this Agreement does not 
constitute and will not, upon giving of notice or lapse of time or both, constitute a 
breach or default under any other agreement to which the City is a party or may 
be bound; 

(3) There is no litigation, investigation, or proceeding pending, contemplated, or 
threatened against the City or the Property that would impair or adversely affect 
the City's ability to perfonn its obligations under this Agreement or under any 
contract, instrument, or document related to this Agreement; 

(4) There are no existing, pending or anticipated condemnation or similar 
proceedings against or involving the Property; 

(5) There are no undisclosed leases, contracts, or other agreements m existence 
relating to the Property; 

(6) The City shall not cause or pennit any new liability, encumbrance, or obligation 
to be placed or imposed upon all or any part of Parcel 1 prior to the Parcel I 
Property Closing Date; 

17 



(7) Except as disclosed by the environmental audit reports provided by the City, the 
City has received no notice of, has not authorized, and has not caused, the use, 
generation, release, transportation, storage, disposal, or treatment of any 
Hazardous Material (as defined below) on, at, to, or from the Property, except in 
quantities and by methods that did not violate any then-existing applicable law. 
As used in this Section, the term "Hazardous Material" shall mean any hazardous, 
flammable. explosive, corrosive, or toxic chemical, material, or substance that is 
regulated under any federaJ, state, or local law, regulation, ordinance, order, or 
other legal requirement concerning public health, safety, or the environment; 

(8) There are no persons in possession or occupancy of the Property or any part 
thereof, nor are there any persons who have possessor rights with respect to the 
Property or any part thereof. The City shall deliver sole and exclusive possession 
of Parcell to the Developer on or before the Parcell Property Closing Date 
subject to the Deed, the Restrictive Covenant and the Permitted Title Exceptions. 

(9) If, prior to Parcel 1 Closing Date, the City receives notice or obtains knowledge of 
any information that indicates that any of the foregoing representations or 
warranties regarding Parcel 1 is untrue, then the City shall promptly advise the 
Developer in writing of its notice, information, or knowledge. If, prior to the 
termination of the Developer's rights hereunder with regard to Parcel 2, the City 
receives notice or obtains any infonnation that indicates that any of the foregoing 
representations or warranties regarding Parcel 2 is untrue, then the City shall 
promptly advise the Developer in writing of its notice, information or knowledge. 
Any such change shall constitute only the failure of a condition but shall not 
constitute a default by the City. 

C. Additional Representations and Acknowledgments. The Parties reciprocally 
and mutually warrant and represent to the other that the City will not exercise any decision· 
making control over any aspect of environmental compliance or environmental remediation of 
the Property outside of the normal exercise of the City's police powers and relies on the 
Developer to cause the environmental remediation of the Property to allow for the 
commencement and operation of the redevelopment of the Property as contemplated herein. The 
Parties acknowledge that the City will make certain determinations as to the conveyance of funds 
in part on information supplied. in writing by the Developer or its agents concerning the 
Redevelopment Project and/or compliance by the Developer with the provisions of this 
Agreement. The Parties also acknowledge that, except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, 
the City shall have no obligation to pay any entity or person other than the Developer, its 
pennitted successors and pelll1irted assigns shall be obligated to make direct payments to any 
other entity, construction manager, general contractor, contractor, subcontractor, mechanic, 
material man, person or entity providing services or materials to the Redevelopment Project. 

D. Survival of Representations and Warranties. The Parties agree that all of their 
representations and warranties set forth in this Section and elsewhere in this Agreement are true 
as of the Effective Date of this Agreement and each Party agrees that it shall provjde prompt 
written notice to the other Party in the event the representations and warranties set forth herein 
change for any reason. The representations and warranties set forth in this Section and elsewhere 

18 



in this Agreement shall survive the conveyance of the Property and shall not merge with the 
deed. 

E. Environmental Matters. 

(1) Definitions. The following words, tenns and phrases, when used in this 
Agreement. shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this Section, except 
where the context clearly indicates a different meaning. Where applicable, words 
used in the present tense include the future tense of the word and words in the 
singular include the plural fonn of the word. 

"Engineering and Institutional Controls" shall mean any and all 
restrictions, measures, covenants and obligations that may be used in lieu of, in 
conjunction with or as a component of Hazardous Substance (as defmed herein) 
removal to satisfy the City's obligations under this Agreement and Environmental 
Laws (as defined herein) including, without limitation: (a) requirements for 
engineering and institutional controls; (b) proscriptions against residential and 
groundwater use; (c) rights of access to the Property; (d) rights enforceable by 
Governmental Authorities (as defined herein) and other parties; (e) environmental 
land use controls; and (f) any documents, instruments, agreements, rights and 
obligations embodying, establishing or necessary or ancillary to the foregoing 
including, without limitation, certifications, deed notices, deed restrictions, 
easements, access agreements, and restrictive covenants. 

"EDvironmental Laws" shall mean any and aU laws, statutes, treaties, 
regulations. codes, ordinances, rules. notices of violation or noncompliance, 
permits, licenses, standards or requirements (including decrees, judicial decisions, 
judgments, injunctions, and administrative orders issued or approved thereunder), 
together with all related amendments and similar statutes and implementing 
regulations, issued by any Govenunental Authority, and all common law, 
pertaining to or regulating pollution, enviromnental protection, health or safety of 
person, nuisance, noise, pipeline safety, natural resources damages, conservation 
of resources, wildlife, waste management, the use, storage, generation, 
production, treatment, emission, remediation, design, fonnulation, packaging or 
any other activity related to Hazardous Substances, or any other environmental 
matter including, without limitation: the Comprehensive Environmental 
Response, Compensation, and Liability Act, as amended (JICERCLA "), 42 
U.S.c. Section 9601 et seq .; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as 
amended (nRCRAu), 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et. seq.; the Toxic Substances 
Control Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 7401 el. seq.; the Clean Air Act, as 
amended, 33 U.S .C. Section 7401 el. seq.; the FederaJ Water Pollution Control 
Act, as amended, 33 U.S.c. Section 1251 et. seq.; the Safe Drinking Water Act of 
1974, as amended, 42 U.S.c. Section 3009(0 el. seq.; the Emergency Planning 
and Community Right-to-Know Act of 1986.42 U.S.C. Section 11001 et seq.; the 
Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, 7 U.S .C. § 136 et seq. 
(1996); the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970. as amended, 29 U.S.C. 
Section 651 et. seq. (as it relates to protection of the environment); the Hazardous 

19 



Liquid Pipeline Safety Act, as amended, 49 U.S.C. Section 60101 131. seq.; and the 
Federal Hazardous Materials Transportation Act 49 U.S.C. §§ ] 00-185 (1999). 

"Governmental Authority" shall mean any and all federal, state or local 
government or governmental or public agency, board, department, judicial body 
or entity of any kind with jurisdiction over environmental, health and safety 
matters relating to the Property. 

"Hazardous Substances" shall mean any chemical, substance, waste, 
material, organism, gas or emission (collectively, for convenience purposes only. 
"Substances") which is deemed hazardous, toxic, a pollutant or a contaminant 
under any Environmental Law or which has been shown to have significant 
adverse effects on hwnan health or the environment. "Hazardous Substancesn 

shall include, without limitation, crude oil, lead. petroleum and petroletun 
products, urea formaldehyde, asbestos, chlorofluorocarbons, radon gas, 
radioactive nuclear materials, toxic mold and bacteria, polychlorinated biphenylS 
and all other Substances regulated by the Environmental Laws. 

"NFR Letter" shall mean an environmental "no further remediation n letter 
or any other similar environmental closure document issued by any Govenunental 
Authority having jurisdiction to do so, including any such documents issued in 
connection with voluntary programs. 

(2) Environmental Acknowledgement and Agreements . 

(a) In the event that it is determ.ined that the Property is contaminated or in 
violation of an Environmental Law due to the release of Hazardous 
Substances from prior activities occurring on the Property and the 
Developer does not elect to terminate this Agreement during the Due 
Diligence Period., the Developer shall perform, or cause a third party to 
perfOflTl, any and all actions required by applicable Goverrunental 
Authorities to ensure that the Developer can construct the Redevelopment 
Project on the Property. The Developer acknowledges and agrees that 
previous owners of the Property may have used the Property for industrial 
or commercial purposes in the past, and that the appropriate cleanup 
standards (if any) previously performed were the least-stringent standards 
consistent with Environmental Laws for the comroercial or industrial use 
of the Property, which standards may include, at the City's discretion and 
in compliance with Envirorunental Laws, site-specifics standards 
determined by risk assessments and standards requiring Engineering and 
Institutional Controls. 

(b) Effective at and as of the Closing Date, the Developer, on behalf of itself, 
its successors and assigns shall unconditionally covenant not to sue the 
Indemnified Parties for Bny and all liability (whether arising under 
contract, statute, regulation, common law or othelwise) known and 
unknown, arising from or relating to the presence, release or migration of 

20 



Hazardous Substances at, to or from the Property, or compliance with the 
Environmental Laws, on or after the Closing Date, except as otherwise 
provided below. 

(c) The Parties, notwithstanding any provision set forth in this Section III of 
this Agreement, acknowledge and agree that the Property is being 
conveyed "AS lS, WHERE IS, WITH ALL FAULTS" except where 
specifically set forth in the remainder of this Agreement; provided, that 
Parcel I shall be in substantially the same condition on the Closing Date 
as it was at the expiration of the Publication Period and expiration date of 
Due Diligence Period, nonnal wear and tear and acts of the Developer, 
excluded. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, the City shall not 
be responsible for special, incidental or consequential damages of any 
kind in any action (arbitration or otherwise), dispute, controversy or claim 
related to the presence, release or migration of Hazardous Substances at, 
to or from the Property on or after the Closing Date, and the Developer 
hereby covenants not to sue the City from any and all claims for such 
damages, unless the City caused or permitted such damages to occur after 
the Developer's completion of its envirorunental investigation and prior to 
the Closing Date. 

(e) In the event of any conflict between the provisions of this Section ill, and 
any other provision of this Agreement regarding matters addressed by this 
subsection. the provisions of this subsection shall govern. The terms and 
conditions of this Section III, shall survive the Closing Date end the 
presentation. delivery and recordation of the Deed and shall not merge 
with the Deed. 

F. The City's Covenants. The City shall review all pennit, license and zoning 
relief applications in connection with the Redevelopment Project in an expeditious manner, but 
in all instances in accordance with all applicable Laws. In the event the City rejects any portion 
of such an application, the City shall provide the Developer with written comments detailing 
why the application has been rejected. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the 
contrary, this Agreement shall not serve to abrogate or otherwise limit the police powers of the 
City or prevent the City from taking any action required by law or ordered by a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

SECTION IV 
DEVELOPER'S OBLIGATIONS 

A. Construction and Operation of the Intended Use. The Developer shall take all 
or cause the undertaking of all steps reasonably necessary to ensure the development of Par eel 1 
into the Intended Use to be operated pursuant to the Safelite Lease (the "Renovation Project" as 
a portion of the Redevelopment Project). All costs, expenses and work associated with the 
Renovation Project shall be the full and sole obligation of the Developer (and the City shall have 

21 



no obligation for the completion of the same). As set forth on the Timeline, the shell of the 
Renovation Project and the Civil Site Improvements (as defined below) shall be substantially 
completed within six (6) months after the date that a building permit for the same is issued to the 
Developer. The operator of the Intended Use shall have three (3) months thereafter to fixture 
and stock the store and open for business. 

B. Construction Plans. Any and all new construction at the Property shall be 
consistent with the Berwyn Development Corporation's TIF Design Guidelines, attached hereto 
as Exhibit E, and shall take into account the character and historical nature of Route 66 
developments. The Renovation Project shall generally conform to the Site Plan, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein as Exhibit F, the Floor Plan, attached hereto and incorporated hereon as 
Exhibit G, Construction Timeline (the "Tlmeline"), attnched hereto and incorporated herein as 
Exhibit H, and the Architectural Rendering, attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit 
I. Without limiting the generality of the foregOing, the Parties agree and acknowledge that the 
Developer shall not permit the use of ElFS Or dryvit on the structures located at the Propel1y. 
The Developer shall cause the Safelite Lease, and its lease with any other permitted user of the 
Property .• to contain provisions requiring that any and all sales from the Berwyn operation will 
pay the City's sales tax, list and detail Berwyn, Illinois as the point of sale for all transactions, 
and not intentionally direct sales to another point/location. 

C. Construction of Civil Site Improvements. 

(1) As a material inducement and additional consideration for the City to convey 
Parcel I to the Developer, the Developer shall construct the "Civil Site 
Improvements" (as a portion of the Redevelopment Project)." The Civil Site 
Improvements shall include: (a) curb, gutter and utility improvements to include 
storm water detention incidental to the construction of the Redevelopment 
Project; (b) landscaping and decorative fencing as 8. buffer along the property line 
and as a buffer for Ogden Avenue frontage; and (c) additional infrastructure 
improvements and site work on the Property necessary to sustain the Intended 
Use. The City will allow developer to cut into sidewalks for needed streetscape 
improvements in connection with the Civil Site Improvements and will support 
any application by the Developer to achieve a curb cut on Ogden A venue from the 
Illinois Department of Transportation ("lOOT'). The Developer acknowledges 
that Ogden A venue is an lOOT road and the City cannot guarantee a curb cut. The 
Developer's failure to secure the curb cuts shall not be deemed an Event of 
Default (as defined below) under this Agreement. 

(2) The construction of the Civil Site Improvements shall be completed at the sole 
cost and expense of the Developer and in a first class and lien free manner. The 
Developer shall complete the construction obligations (which shall include the 
Civil Site Improvements and the Renovation Project) (or cause the same to be 
completed) in accordance with the Timeline. The Developer shall comply (and 
shall direct all its contractors, consultants and employees) with any and all 
federal, stale and local laws, statutes, ordinances, rules and regulations, including, 
but not limited to, the City's Zoning and Building Codes (collectively, the 
«Laws") with regard to the construction of the Civil Site Improvements and the 

22 



Renovation Project. The Developer's obligation to complete the Civil Site 
Improvements shall include site preparation, restoration, the removal of dirt IlIld 
debris and aU other commercially reasonably steps associated with the completion 
of the same. 

(3) The Developer acknowledges the importance of all dates on the Timeline and 
shall comply with the same, subject to Force Majeure (as defined below). The 
Developer's failure to comply with the aforesaid dates shall constitute a breach of 
this Agreement, unless said failure is caused by an event of Force Majeure (as 
defined below). The City and the Developer agree that amendments to and 
extensions of the Timeline can be mutually agreed upon in writing without having 
to amend this Agreement with the approval of the Mayor and City Council. The 
Developer shall comply with reasonable requests of the City for progress updates 
to the Timeline. The City hereby acknowledges that, to the extent required under 
any applicable City ordinance and in all instances in accordance with and to the 
standards set forth in the Laws, it shall approve any plans as well as issue the 
necessary pennits to authorize the Developer to commence the construction of the 
Renovation Project and the Civil Site Improvements. The City agrees to review 
all such docwnentation in an expeditious marmer and to provide the Developer 
with written notice as to whether or not the same have been approved or rejected. 
All plan and permit applications shall conform to the terms of this Agreement and 
shall comply with the Laws. 

(4) The Timeline shall be subject to any matter beyond the Developer's reasonable 
control that directly relates to the Developer's obligations hereunder ("Force 
Majeure"). Force Majeure may include, without limitation, unreasonable delays 
caused by acts of the City germane to the completion of the Redevelopment 
Project; circumstances beyond the Developer's control, and acts of God; damage 
Or destruction caused by fire or other casualty; inclement weather; strikes; 
inability to procure or a general shortage of labor, equipment, facilities, materials 
or supplies; lockouts; acts of labor unions (whether legal or not); court orders, 
laws or orders of governmental or military authorities. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, the Developer shall be required to use reasonable efforts to mitigate the 
effects of a Force Majeure event, and in no event shall: (8) the Developer's 
financial condition or inability to fund or obtain funding or financing constitute an 
event of Force Majeure; and (b) any delay arising from the Developer's (or its 
affiliate's) default under any document connected with the Redevelopment 
Project constitute an event of Force Majeure. Moreover, no event of Force 
Majeure shall be deemed to exist: (c) as to any matter that could have been 
avoided by the exercise of due care; (d) as to any matter initiated or unreasonably 
sustained; and (e) unless the Developer provides the City with a written notice 
within fourteen (14) calendar days of the commencement of such claimed event of 
Force Majeure. The deadline to complete the Redevelopment Project shall be 
extended on a day for day basis to reflect an actual delay in completion because of 
an event of Force Majeure. The Developer, ifseeking the extension, shall keep the 
City reasonably infonned as to the nature of the delay and the anticipated lime of 
completion of the performance of its obligations. The Developer shall pay all City 

23 



permit and impact fees. This obligation shall survive until the City IS fully 
reimbursed for the abovementioned costs and fees. 

D. The City's Right To Monitor and Inspect the Redevelopment Project In 
addition to any other rights specified in this Agreement with regard to the construction and 
maintenance of the Redevelopment Project, the Developer shall provide the City the 0Ppol1unity 
and the City shall have the right, but not the obligation. to inspect the construction site at the 
Property for the purpose of monitoring the progress of the Redevelopment Project. During such 
inspections, which may be made with reasonable advance notice (which notice may be oral) and 
during nonnal business hours, City representatives shall be allowed access to the site as 
necessary for the City to determine whether the Redevelopment Project is proceeding in a timely 
manner and in compliance with the Laws, subject to limitations required by safety considerations 
and to otherwise promote and protect the health, safety and welfare of the City and its residents. 
The rights set forth herein and the City's exercise of those rights shall not be construed to relieve 
the Developer of its separate and independent obligations under this Agreement and under 
applicable laws, City codes, regulations and ordinances nor shall it act as a waiver of any further 
rights of the City regarding the construction and maintenance of the Redevelopment Project, 
including the right to require compliance with the City Code and issue stop work orders or 
violation notices. The Developer, at a commercially reasonable and prudent time after discovery 
of the same, shall provide the City with written notice of any default of the Developer for its 
financing plan for the Redevelopment Project. The previously mentioned obligation shall be 
applicable during the period of construction of the Redevelopment Project. Such notice shall be 
made in sufficient detail to advise the City of the deviation and provide supporting 
docwnentation supporting the same. 

E. Off-Site Construction Requirements oftbe Developer. 

(1) The Developer shall direct the removal of any debris resulting from the 
construction of the Redevelopment Project, which removal shall be conducted in 
accordance with the best interests of the City and applicable laws and ordinances. 

(2) During the construction of the Redevelopment Project, the Developer shall cause 
its general contractor or project manager to be responsible for cleaning up the 
mud and dirt on abutting streets and rights of way resulting from the construction 
of the Redevelopment Project. The Developer's agents shaH clean the roadways 
within forty-eight (48) hours after receiving notice from the City. In the event that 
the Developer fails to have the rights of way cleaned of dirt and debris in 
accordance with the aforementioned provisions, the City shall have the right to 
immediately undertake the cleaning and clearance activities as set forth above and 
any such reasonable costs or expenses incurred by the City in undertaking the 
aforesaid shall be reimbursed by the Developer within twenty (20) calendar days 
of the City's presentation to the Developer of a written invoice detailing the 
aforesaid costs and expenses. 

F. Tier III TIF Application. The Developer shall comply with the Laws and the 
requirements of the Tier m TIF application and incorporated herein by reference. 

24 



G. Development of Parcell. If the City accepts a Development Proposal and Parcel 
2 is further developed, then it shall be developed into a commercial building for retail or general 
commercial space. The Parties agree and acknowledge that the Developer's tenant(s) of Parcel 2 
is yet to be detelmined and must be pre-approved by the City Council, which approval will not 
be unreasonably withheld provided the use is not a project non-permitted use, as provided below. 
The developer agrees that the City of Berwyn shall reserve the right to reject proposed tenants as 
detailed below in project non-penniued uses. 

H. Restricdve Covenant. One or both of the Deeds (as applicable) shall contain a 
restrictive covenant (the "RestrIctive Covenant") providing that the Developer shall not 
construct, market, own, lease or sell space to any use or pennit the use or occupancy of any 
portion of the Property, in any manner whatsoever, for any of the following uses, as defined by 
the City Code: (i) any fire sale, bankruptcy sale (unless pursuant to a court order), or auction 
house operation; or (ii) any type of "flea-mnrket" sales; or (iii) any pool or billiard room; or (iv) 
any amusement arcade, Ubingo" parlor or game center; or (v) any massage parlor, modeling 
studio, tanning salon or establishment where men or women are engaged in salacious activities 
or any type of establishment that would be considered a sexually oriented business by prevailing 
community standards; or (vi) any business engaged in the rental or sale ofpomographic literature 
or video products; or (vii) barber or beauty shops (including nail salons); or (viii) tobacco shops; 
or (ix) pawn shops; or (x) video stores; or personal and business credit institutions, bond and 
mortgage companies, mortgage brokers, mortgage bankers, loan companies, loan agents and 
correspondents, loan brokers, securities and commodities brokers and dealers, insurance carriers, 
insurance agents and brokers; or (xi) currency exchanges, check cashing agencies, payday loan 
stores or such similar stores. Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything contained in this 
Agreement to the contrary, the Developer shall not construct, market, own, lease or sell space to 
any use or pennit the use or occupancy of any portion of the Redevelopment Project in any 
manner, whatsoever, which violates any of the Laws or is dangerous to life or property or creates 
a public nuisance. 

I. Reversion and Payment Upon Sale. If the Developer fails to complete or 
maintain the (completed) Renovation Project sufficient to receive a certificate of occupancy for 
the Intended Use in accordance with the Timeline and such delay is not caused as a result of any 
action or inaction of the City or Force Majeure, then, following written notice and the 
opportunity to cure as set forth in Article VII hereof, the title to Parcel I and, if applicable, 
Parcel 2 shall revert to the City pursuant to the terms of one, or as applicable both, Deed(s) 
("Reversion"). The Developer shall have no claim against the City for title to the Property, and 
the Developer expressly waives and forever discharges the City from any such claims as 
specifically set forth in this Agreement in the event of Reversion. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
if in the event of Reversion and there liens or encumbrances on the Property due to the acts or 
omissions of Developer, its contractors or subcontractors or an individuaJ or entity claiming 
through, by or under Developer, its contractors or subcontractors (collectively, "Liens"), the 
Developer shall cause all Liens to be removed from the Property within ten (10) calendar days of 
Reversion. If the Developer fails to remove the Liens within ten (10) calendar days of the 
Reversion, the City shall have the right to seek all legal remedies available to ensure that all 
Liens are removed from the Property and seek full reimbursement from the Developer for all 
costs, expenses, fees (including reasonable attorneys, paralegal and filing fees) incurred by the 
City in removing the Liens. If in the event of Reversion, there being no Liens on the Property, 

25 



this Agreement shall tenninate and the Parties shall have no further rights or obligations 
hereunder (save existing risk management provisions) . If in the event of Reversion, there are 
Liens on the Property, this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the Liens are 
removed from the Property and shall terminate after the Liens are cured. The City shall be a lien 
holder on the Property (the "City Lien") until after a certificate of occupancy is issued for the 
Intended Use; provided however, that the City Lien shall be subordinate to the Developer' s 
mortgage securing financing for the completion of the Renovation Project. The Developer 
consents to the recording of the City'S lien on the Property and this lien shall not serve as reason 
for objection to or rejection of the Property pursuant to the Developer's due diligence provisions. 
The City shall record a release of the City Lien as soon as reasonably practicable following the 
issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy by the City for the Intended Use and, thereafter. this 
provision shall be of no further force and effect 

J. Property Tax Relief. The Developer or any successor, assign or tenant shall not 
apply for and shall be strictly prohibited from applying for all relief from real property tax 
pursuant to the Real Property Assessment Classification Ordinance or for any additional real 
estate tax incentives or subsidies for a period of ten (10) years following the Closing Date; 
provided., however, this provision shall not prohibit the Developer from applying for any other 
real property tax: relief, provided such application for tax relief is approved in writing by the City 
Council in its reasonable discretion. 

SECTION V 
COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

In the event that any court or governmental agency having jurisdiction over enforcement of the 
Redevelopment Project and the subject matter contemplated by this Agreement shall determine 
that this Agreement or any incentive to be made to the Developer hereunder are contrary to Law, 
or in the event that the legitimacy of the City Code as it relates to the Redevelopment Project js 
otherwise challenged before a court or goverrunental agency having jwisdiction thereof, the 
Developer shall be responsible for defending the integrity and legaJity of tbe City Code and this 
Agreement. In the event of an adverse lower court or agency ruling, any obligation of the City to 
the Developer shall be suspended dwing the pendency of any appeal thereof. The City shall not 
seek to set aside or otherwise challenge its obligations under this Agreement during the pendency 
of any appeal. Notwithstanding the foregoing and the explicit remedy provisions set forth in 
Section VJI below, in the event the Developer takes any action or makes any omission that 
violates the Laws, any outstanding owed the Developer by the City shall be held for naught until 
the Developer cures the outstanding illegality. 

SECTION VI 
INSURANCE 

A. Builder's Risk Prior to Completion. Not more than thirty (30) days prior to the 
Developer commencing the construction of any improvements on the Propel1y. the Developer 
shall keep in force at all times through and until the completion of the Renovation Project, as 
certified by the City, completed builder's risk insurance insuring against risk of physical loss, 
including collapse, covering the total value of work perfonned Bnd equipment, supplies and 
materials furnished for the construction of the Redevelopment Project (including on-site stored 

26 



materials and off-site materials that have been fabricated or purchased). Such insurance policies 
shall be issued by companies with AM Best ratings of at least A-VII. All such policies shall 
contain a provision that said insurance policy will not be canceled without thirty (30) calendar 
days prior written notice to the City. The proceeds of any claim on this builder'S risk insurance 
shall be used to repair and/or complete the work that is the subject of the claim. 

B. Insurance During Term of Agreement. Prior to commencement of the 
Redevelopment Project, and as of the expiration of the Publication Period, but no later than the 
Developer entering upon the Property to undertake its Due Diligence hereof, the Developer shall 
procure (or shall have procured, as applicable) and shall maintain, at the Developer's sole cost 
and expense, in full force and effect during construction operations, and thereafter the owner of 
the Property shall procure and maintain during the term of this Agreement a policy or policies of 
general conunercial comprehensive liability insurance, including contractual liability insurance 
and, during any period of construction, contractor's general liability insurance with liability 
coverage under each such policy to be not less than One Million and No/100 U.S. Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) for each occurrence and in the aggregate Three Million and Noll 00 U.S. Dollars 
($3,000,000.00), workers' compensation insurance in statutory limits, employer's liability 
insurance with at least One Million and No/100 U.S. Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per accident, One 
Million and Noll 00 U.S. Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per disease, per employee and One Million and 
Noll 00 U.S. Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per disease, aggregate and auto liability with combined 
single limits of at least Five Million and No/lOO U.S . Dollars ($5,000,000.00) per occurrence. 
All such policies shall be in such fonn and issued by such companies as shall be reasonably 
acceptable to the City to protect the City and the owner of the Property from any liability 
incidental to the use of or resulting from any claim for personal injury or property damage 
occurring at, on or about the Property or stemming from the construction andlor improvement of 
the Property including, without limitation any claims for personal injury or property damage 
stemming from the Developer's or its contractors, representatives, employees and agents 
activities during the Due Diligence Period. Each such policy shall name the City and its officials 
(whether appointed or elected), including the City's Mayor and the City Council of the City (the 
"City Coonell"), and the Berwyn Development Corporation (and its officers, employees and 
agents) as wen as the City' s officers, employees, agents and attorneys, as additional insureds and 
shall contain an affirmative statement by the issuer that it will give written notice to the 
Developer and the City at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to any cancellation or amendment 
of its policy. A certificate of insurance for each such policy naming the City and the other 
specifically enumerated entities as an additional insured consistent with the above requirements 
must be delivered to the City by the Developer before the Developer commences construction of 
any of the improvements that are a part of the Redevelopment Project. Any other insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the City shall be in excess of and shaU not contribute to the 
protection the City receives as an additional insured on the insurance required by this 
Agreement. Subject to the rights of the Developer's lender, any liability insurance proceeds 
received hereunder to which the City is legally entitled shall be deposited in the general 
operational fund of the City as such swns will be used to reimburse the City for sums normally 
paid from the general fund of the City. 

27 



SECTION VII 
DEFAULT REMEDIES 

A. Def.aultsIRemedies. Ifan Event of Default (as defined below) occurs, or if any of 
the Parties shaH fail to perform or keep any tenn or condition required to be perfonned or kept 
by such Pelty, said Party shall, upon written notice from the other Party, proceed to cure or 
remedy such default or breach within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of such fifteen (15) 
calendar day notice; provided, however, that if such default is incapable of being cured within 
said fifteen (15) calendar day period and the defaulting Party commences to cure the default 
within said fifteen (15) calendar day period and proceeds with due diligence to cure the same, 
such cure period shall be extended (not wrreasonably) for the length of time reasonably 
necessary to cure the default upon written request for the same by the breaching Party. At any 
time during the cure period (or extension thereof), the aggrieved Party may request a written 
report on the status of the steps taken to cure the alleged default or breach, which shall be 
complied with by the breaching Palty within fifteen (15) calendar days after receipt of the 
original request At all times during a cure period or ex.tension thereof, the defaulting Party shall 
diligently follow through to completion all such steps necessary to remedy the alleged default 
within the shortest possible time. Failure of a defaulting Party to respond to a request for 
information as set forth herein shall be considered a failure to diligently undertake the cure of the 
aUeged default and shall be deemed a waiver of the defaulting Party's opportunity to cure. In 
case such action is not taken or diligently pursued or the default or breach is not cured or 
remedied within the aforementioned period, the aggrieved Party may institute such proceedings 
(at law or in equity) as may be necessary or desirable in its opinion to cure and remedy such 
default or breach. The rights and remedies of the Parties, whether provided by law or in this 
Agreement, shall be cumulative and the exercise by any Party of anyone or more of such 
remedies shall not preclude the exercise by such Party at the same time or different times, of any 
other remedies for the same default or breach by the defaulting Party. Any delay by any Party in 
instituting or prosecuting any actions or proceedings or asserting its rights under this Agreement 
shall not operate as a waiver of such rights in any way (it being the intent of this provision that 
such Party should not be constrained so as to avoid the risk of being deprived of or limited in the 
exercise of the remedies provided in this Agreement because of the default involved). No waiver 
made by any Party with respect to any specific default by any other Party under this Agreement 
shall be construed as a waiver of rights with respect to any other default except to the extent 
specifically waived in writing. Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Agreement, in the 
event of an emergency threatening the health, safety and welfare of the City or its residents the 
City shall have the light, but not the obligation. to enter upon the Property and cure any default 
without providing notice or a cure period as set forth herein. The City shall be immediately 
relieved of its obligation under this Agreement and all future obligations of the City under this 
Agreement shall be deemed null and void and otherwise held for naught in the event the 
Developer or its preapproved assign is in default of this Agreement and has failed to cure the 
breach in accordance with this paragraph. 

B. EveDt of Default. For purposes of this Agreement., the occurrence of anyone (l) 
or more of the following, after any applicable cure period has expired, shall constitute an "Event 
of Defaulf': 

(1) [f, at any time, any wan-anty, representation or statement made or furnished by the 

28 



City or the Developer is not true and correct in any material respect; 

(2) If any petition is filed by or against the City or the Developer under the Federal 
Bankruptcy Code or any similar state or federal law, whether now or hereinafter 
existing, including any supervision by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
(and in the case of involuntary proceedings, failure to cause the same to be 
vacated, stayed or set aside within ninety (90) calendar days after said filing); 
and/or 

(3) If the City or the Developer fails (in whole or in p811), breaches or otherwise 
defaults in fulfilling any of its obligations under this Agreement or fails to 
materially perfolm, observe or comply with any of the covenants, agreements or 
obligations hereunder. 

C. Qualified Events of Default. The conditions, covenants and teons of this 
subsection of this Agreement are to be read as a furtherance of, and as no way a limitation upon, 
the City's rights and remedies under this Agreement, except as specifically set forth herein. In 
the event: (I) the Developer becomes bankrupt, insolvent or tiles any debtor proceeding, files a 
petition for bankruptcy, files a petition for a corporate reorganization (or a similar such 
reorganization for a limited liability company), makes an assignment for the benefit for creditors, 
files for any relief pursuant to the Bankruptcy Code or if in any other manner the Developer's 
interest passes to another by judgment or operation of law; and/or (2) the Developer fails to 
comply with the Timeline, the Developer shall be deemed to be in default of this Agreement 
("Qualified Events of Default"). The cure provisions set forth in this Agreement sha11 apply to 
any of the previously specifically mentioned Qualified Events of Default. The City shall be 
immediately relieved of its obligations under this Agreement and all future obligations of the 
City under this Agreement shall be deemed null and void and otherwise held for naught in the 
event the Developer or its preapproved assign is in default of this Agreement and has failed to 
cure the breach in accordance with the fifteen (IS) calendar day cure period set forth above. 

D. Remedy. The non-Defaulting Party shall be entitled to seek any and all available 
legal remedies against the Defaulting provisions provided there is a Qualified Event of Default or 
a standard Default and the cure period expires without full remedy by the Defaulting Party. 

SECTION VIII 
DEVELOPER'S CONSTRUCTION COMPLIANCE COVENANTS 

A. No Discrimination. Neither the Developer nor any of its contractors, 
subcontractors, employees, agents or material suppliers shall discriminate based upon race, color, 
religion, sex, national origin or ancestry, age, handicap or disability. sexual orientation, military 
status, parental status or source of income in relation to the construction of the Redevelopment 
Project aJKi the Developer and all of its contractors, subcontractors, employees, agents and 
material suppliers shall comply with tbe Laws with regard to nondiscrimination in the 
construction of the Civil Site Improvements and the remainder of the Redevelopment Project. 

8. Ethics. The Parties hereby covenant and agree that neither the Mayor nor any 
member of the City Council nor any other public official or public employee who exercises any 

29 



direct decision making functions or responsibilities with respect to the Redevelopment Project 
during the individual's term or tenn of employment and for one (1) calendar year thereafter, shall 
have any personal or financial interest, direct or indirect, other than the individual's salary, in 
any matter to be performed in connection with the Redevelopment Project; provided, however, 
nothing in this Section shall be construed to preclude the right of said officials or employees to 
be reimbursed by the Developer for services rendered or costs inclUTed in connection with 
discharging their responsibilities under this Agreement. 

SECTION IX 
PERFORMANCE 

A. Time of the Essence; Days. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. Except as 
othelWise specifically set forth herein, the term Hday" set forth herein shall mean business day, 
which shall mean Monday through Friday, exclusive of holidays recognized by the State of 
Illinois or the federal government. 

B. lodemn.ification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the owner of the 
Property shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the City, its present officials (whether 
elected or appointed), which includes the Mayor and the City Council, and Berwyn Development 
Corporation and the City's and the Berwyn Development Corporation's respective officers, 
department heads, employees, independent contractors, attorneys, engineers, agents, 
representatives, consultants, financial analysts, and the successors, predecessors executors, 
administrators, heirs, beneficiaries, legatees and assigns of such persons and entities 
(collectively, the "Indemnified Parties") from and against any and all claims, losses, demands, 
liabilities, penalties, liens, encumbrances, obligations, causes of action, costs and expenses, 
(including reasonable attorneys' fees, paralegal fees, witness fees and court costs), deaths, 
injuries and damages (whether actual or punitive), suits or judgments (collectively, the 
"Claims") by, to or on behalf of any person, finn, corporation or entity: (1) arising from or in 
any way related to the conduct or management of the Property; (2) arising from or in any way 
related to any breach or default on the part of the Developer in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Agreement; (3) arising from or in any way related to any negligent or 
willful act or omission of the Developer; (4) arising from or in any way related to any acts, 
omissions or negligence of the Developer or any person or entity claiming through or under the 
Developer, or of the contractors, subcontractors, agents, servants, employees, guests, invitees or 
licensees of the Developer, or any person or entity claiming through or under such person, in 
each case to the extent in, about or concerning the Property during the construction of the 
Redevelopment Project; (5) relating to the operation, maintenance, and upkeep andlor collapse of 
any building; (6) arising from, that occurred or are alleged to have occurred or are in any way 
related to, in whole or in part, the redevelopment of the Property until construction of the 
Redevelopment Project is completed; or (7) arising from construction of the Redevelopment 
Project that is the basis for the issuance of any City pennits or certificates of occupancy, it being 
understood aDd acknowledged by the Parties that the City does nor warrant the fitness or 
habitability of the Property. The Developer shall require any and all subsequent owners or 
tenants of the Property acquiring an interest in the Property prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy by the City for the futended Use, to comply with the terms of this Section of thls 
Agreement. In any document regarding or related to the sale, lease or other disposition of the 
Property whereby the Developer is dispossessed of the Property, such documentation shall: (a) 

30 



direct the subsequent owner or tenant to comply with the terms of this Section; (b) name the City 
as a third-party beneficiary to the aforesaid documentation; and (c) ensure that the covenants, 
conditions and terms of this Section are explicitly incorporated into the dispositional agreements. 
The terms, covenants, and conditions set forth in this Section and the future owner'sltenant's 
obligation to comply with said terms, covenants and conditions shall be explicitly set forth in the 
memorandum to be recorded by the Parties against the Property. 

(1) The obligations of the Developer under this Agreement shall include, without 
limitation, the burden and expense of defending all claims, suits and 
administrative proceedings (with counsel of the Oeveloper.!.s choice and 
reasonably acceptable to the City), even if such claims, suits or proceedings are 
groundless, false or fraudulent, and conducting all negotiations of any description, 
and paying and discharging. when and as the same become due, any and all 
judgments, penalties or other sums due against any of the Indemnified Parties. 

(2) TIle obligations of the owner of the Property under this Agreement shall not be 
affected in any way by the absence or presence of insurance coverage (or any 
limitation thereon, including any statutory limitations with respect to workers' 
compensation insurance) or by the failure or refusal of any insurance camer to 
perform an obligation on its part under any insurance policies affecting the 
Property; provided, however, that if the City actually receives any proceeds of the 
owner of the Property's insurance with respect to an obligation of the Developer 
under this Section, the amount thereof shall be credited against and applied to 
reduce any amounts paid and/or payable hereunder by the owner of the Property 
with respect to such obligation. 

(3) No recourse under or upon any obligation, covenant or provtS10n of this 
Agreement or for any claim based thereon or otherwise in respect thereof shall be 
had against the Indemnified Parties, in any amount in excess of the obligations of 
the City under this Agreement, or in excess of any sum agreed by the City to be 
paid to the Developer hereunder (subject to the terms and conditions herein), and 
no liability, right or claim at law or in equity shall attach to or shall be incurred by 
the Indemnified Parties in excess of such amounts and any and all such rights or 
claims of the Developer against the Indemnified Parties for amounts in excess of 
such obligations are hereby expressly waived and released as a condition of and 
as consideration for the execution of this Agreement by the City, to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. 

(4) The Developer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Indemnified Parties 
from and against the Claims arising in connection with the Developer or its 
representatives, employees, contractors or agents during the Due Diligence Period 
(the "Due DUigence Indemnification"). The Due Diligence Indemnification shall 
survive the tennination of this Agreement and shall be read in conjunction and not 
conflict with the remaining risk management provisions of this Agreement. 

c. City's Exculpation. None of the Indemnified Parties (exclusive of the City) shall 
have any liability (personal or otherwise) hereunder. and no property or assets of the Indemnified 

31 



Parties (exclusive of the City) shall be subject to enforcement procedures for the satisfaction of 
the owner of the Property's remedies hereunder or any other liability of the Indemnified Parties 
arising from or in connection with this Agreement. Nothing contained in this Section or this 
Agreement is in any way intended to be a waiver of any limitation placed upon the City's 
liability pursuant to any constitutional, statutory, common law or other protection afforded to 
public bodies or goverrunents. 

D. Police Power. Nothing in this Section shall operate to abrogate or limit the City's 
right to exercise its police powers and inspection rights. 

E. Books and Records; Audit Rights. The Developer shall at all times during the 
construction of the Redevelopment Project keep and maintain (separate from any of the 
Developer's other books, records and accounts) accurate and complete records pertaining to the 
Redevelopment Project including, without limitation., financial statements, records and books of 
account reflecting project costs and all other construction and redevelopment costs, in 
accordance with its standard practices, with such ex.ceptions as may be specifically provided for 
in this Agreement. The City and its representatives shall have, during normal business hours and 
upon reasonable advance notice, access to examine and photocopy such records, financial 
statements and other documentation. The City shall have the right to cause an audit by any 
nationally recognized independent certified public accounting finn (in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles) of such books and records to be made at any time 
within twenty five (25) months after the issuance of a certificate of occupancy) and the 
Developer shall maintain all such books and records for at least such period of time. The City 
shall have the right to disclose financial infonnation about the Redevelopment Project, as 
described above, to the Cook County Assessor and to others to the extent required by law 
including, without limitation, Rule ISc2-12, which was promulgated by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 

SECTION X 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

A. Drafter Bias. The Parties acknowledge Bnd agree that the terms of tb..is 
Agreement are the result of on-going and extensive negotiations between the Parties, both of 
which are represented by independent legal counsel, and that this Agreement is a compilation of 
said negotiations. As a result, in the event that a court is asked to interpret any portion of this 
Agreement, neither of the Parties shall be deemed the drafter hereof and neither shall be given 
the benefit of such presumption as may be set out by law. 

B. Partnersbip Not Intended Nor Created. Nothing in this Agreement is intended 
nor shall be deemed to constitute a partnership or joint venture between the Parties. 

C. Entirety and Binding Effect. This Agreement represents the entirety of the 
agreement between the Parties. The rights and obligations of the Oeveloper and City under this 
Ag.reement are personal to the Developer and the City, and no other person or entity shall acquire 
or have any rights hereunder or by virtue hereof, except with respect to an assignee of the type 
contemplated by an assignment expressly permitted hereunder. 

32 



D. Use of Headings. The headings appearing in this Agreement have been inserted 
for the purpose of convenience and ready reference. They do not pW']Jort to and shall not be 
deemed to define, limit or extend the scope or intent of the clauses to which they pertain. 

E. Amendments aod Modifications. Except as otherwise provided for herein, this 
Agreement may not be amended, modified or tenninated, nor may any obligation hereunder be 
waived oTally, and no such amendment, modification. termination or waiver shall be effective for 
any purpose unless it is in writing. and bears the signatures of all of the Parties hereto. 

F. Prevailing Party. In the event that either Party breaches this Agreement or is in 
default hereunder or in the event that the enforcement of this Agreement is litigated before a 
court of law or an administrative agency, the non-prevailing Party shall be liable to the prevailing 
Party for the prevailing Party's reasonabJe attorneys' fees and costs incurred by the prevailing 
Party. Prevailing Party shall mean any defendant found not liable on any and all counts andlor 
any plaintiff recovering on any count. Each Party shall be entitled to any and all remedies at law 
and in equity under this Agreement. 

G. Counterparts and Facsimile Transmission. This Agreement may be executed 
in counterpart originals, each of which shall be deemed to be an original with the same effect as 
if the signatures thereto were on the same instrument. A signature affixed to this Agreement and 
transmitted by facsimile shall have the same effect as an original signature. 

H. Agreements. The foregoing is the entire agreement between the Parties hereto as 
it now exists at the execution hereof and it is expressly understood, agreed and distinctly 
acknowledged that all previous communications and negotiations between the Parties, either 
written or oral, that are not contained herein are hereby withdrawn, nullified and void. 

T. Restrictions. Prior to the completion the Redevelopment Project, and except as 
otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Developer (except in the ordinary course of business) 
shall be prohibited, without the City's prior written consent (which shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed): (i) merge, liquidate or consolidate; (ii) enter into any 
transaction that would materially and adversely affect the ability of the Developer to complete 
the Redevelopment Project; (iii) assume or guarantee the obligations of any other person or 
entity that would materially and adversely affect the ability of the Developer to complete the 
Redevelopment Project; or (iv) enter into a transaction that would cause a material change to the 
Developer's condition that would affect its ability to complete the Redevelopment Project or any 
covenant hereunder. 

J. Notices. Any and all notices, demands. requests, consents, approvals. 
communications or other instruments required or permitted to be given under this Agreement 
shall be in writing (unless otherwise set forth herein) and shall be executed by a Party or an 
officer, agent or attorney of the Party, and shall be deemed to have been duly received upon: (a) 
actual receipt if personally delivered and the sender received written confinnation of personal 
delivery; (b) receipt as indicated by the written or electronic verification of delivery when 
delivered by ovemight courier; (c) receipt as indicated by the electronic transmission 
confumation when sent via telecopy or facsimile transmission; (d) standard U.S. mail with the 
U.S. Post Office when sent by certified or registered mail., return receipt requested; (e) email 

33 



when delivery shall be confinued via the email provider or (0 when delivery is refused. Notice 
shall be sent to the addresses set forth below, or to such other address as either Party may specifY 
in writing. 

To the Developer: 

With a copy to: 

To the City: 

With a copy to: 

With a copy to : 

Ronald Rosenblum, Esq. 
III West Washington Street 
Suite 823 
Chicago, Illinois 60602 
Facsimile: 312-977-0922 

City of Berwyn 
Office of the Mayor 
City Administrator: Brian Pabst 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 
Facsimile: 708-788~2567 

Berwyn Development Corporation 
3322 Oak Park A venue, 2nd Floor 
Berwyn., It 60402 
Email: agriffin@berwyn.net 

Del Galdo Law Group, LLC 
1441 South Harlem 
Berwyn, lIlinois 60402 
Attention: James M. Vasselli & Amber L. Munday 
Facsimile: 708-222-7001 
Email: vasselli@dlglawgroup.com 

K. Immunity. Nothing contained in this Agreement constitutes a waiver of the 
City's governmental immunities as provided by the laws of the United States or the State of 
Illinois. 

L. Qualified Professjonals. 1be Developer agrees to engage qualified professionals 
for all work anticipated in this Agreement and. upon request, shall furnish the City with the 
names of such professionals as the same are retained. 

M. Consent; Approval. Except as othenvise provided in this Agreement, whenever 
consent or approval of either Party is required, such consent or approval shall not be 
unreasonably delayed or conditional, unless otherwise provided in this Agreement. 

N. Severabillty. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed to be severable, 
and the invalidity or un enforceability of anyone or more of the provisions contained herein shall 
not affect the validity and enforceability of the other provisions hereof, and the remainder of this 
Agreement shall continue to be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

34 



O. Best Interests; Cooperation. It is understood and agreed that the successful 
consununation of this Agreement is in the best interests of the Parties and requires their 
continued cooperation. The Developer hereby evidences its intent to fully comply with all City 
requirements, its willingness to discuss any matters of mutual interest that may arise including, 
but not limited to, potential negotiations with any additional governmental entities and the 
Developer's willingness to assist the City, to the fullest extent possible, with all matters related 
to the redevelopment or the Property proposed herein. The City hereby evidences its intent to 
reasonably cooperate with the Developer and to cooperate, to the greatest extent possible, in the 
resolution of mutual problems and the City's willingness to facilitate the redevelopment of the 
Property as contemplated by the provisions of this Agreement. 

P. Assignment. The Developer, except as specifically set forth above. shall not 
assign, pledge or obligate its rights under this Agreement without the City's prior written 
consent. The City's discretion in approving or denying such a request is ex.clusive, absolute and 
freely exercisable. The City will not be subject to recourse in the event of a denial of such a 
request is such denial is made for cause or no cause. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the 
Developer shall have the right to assign this Agreement to an "Affiliated Entity", provided, 
however, the Developer remains fully obligated to the terms of this Agreement. For purposes of 
this subsection, Affiliated Entity shall mean an entity directly controlling, controlled by or under 
common control with the Developer. 

Q_ Publication. The Developer acknowledges that the City is required to seek 
alternative proposals for the redevelopment of the Property and that if the City receives a 
proposal that is superior to this Agreement in its reasonable discretion that it is obligated to 
terminate this Agreement and seek the redevelopment of the Property in accordance with the 
terms of the superior proposaL The City's determination that an alternative proposal is superior 
to the one set forth hereunder may be based on subjective criteria as determined by the City in its 
sole discretion addition to any proposed increase of the Property's purchase price. If the City 
does, in fact, obtain a superior proposal and terminate this Agreement, it shall do so without 
recourse or recovery by the Developer for such termination. 

R. Documents. As a material covenant to this Agreement, the Parties shall prepare, 
complete and deliver all documents that are not prepared at this time, but referenced herein. 
These documents shall be prepared in a reasonable time after the Effective Date and to the 
mutual satisfaction of both Parties. The City shall keep copies of all such documents on file and 
readily available after the completion of the same. 

S. EXhibits. The following exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated herein: 

Exhibit A: 
Exhibit B: 
Exhibit C: 
Exhibit D: 
Exhibit E: 
Exhibit F: 
E~ibit G: 
Exhibit H: 

Legal Description of Property 
Legal Description of Parcel I 
Legal Description of Parcel 2 
Existing Survey 
Berwyn Development Corporation's TfF Design Guidelines 
Site Plan 
Floor Plan 
Construction Timeline 

35 



Exhibit I: Architectural Rendering 

[Signature Page Follows} 

36 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE VOLUNTARILY SET 
THETR HANDS AND SEALS ON THIS AGREEMENT, AND BY DOING SO HAVE 
ACKNOWLEDGED THAT THEY HAVE READ THE FOREGOrNG INSTRUMENT IN ITS 
ENTIRETY AND ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THE SAME IS A LEGALLY BINDING 
AGREEMENT, THAT THEY HAVE CONSCIOUSLY EXECUTED THE SAME AS THEIR 
OWN FREE AND VOLUNTARY ACT AND DO HEREBY SUBMIT TO AND 
ACKNOWLEDGE THE TERMS AND CONDIT10NS HEREIN. 

TFG BERWYN LLC, AN ILLINOIS 
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY 

By: __________________ _ 

37 

CITY OF BERWYN, 
AN ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL 
CORPORATION 

By: 
~--~--------------Robert 1. Lovero, Jr., City Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Thomas 1. Pavlik, City Clerk 



Exhibit A 
Legal Description of Property 

PARCEL 1: LOTS 9 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE, TN E.A. CUMMINGS AND COMPANY'S 
OGDEN AVENUE SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 63, 64 AND 65 AND THE WEST 37 FEET OF 
LOTS 66, 67 AND 68 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF PART OF SECTION 31, 
TOWNSHIP 39 NORTH, RANGE 13 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

PINeS): 16-31-404-003-0000; 16-31-404-004-0000; 16-31-404-005-0000; 
16-31-404-006-0000; 16-31-404-007-0000; 16-31-404-008-0000 
and 16-31-404-046-0000 

38 



Exhibit B 
Parcel 1 Legal Description 

LOTS 9 THROUGH 13. INCLUSIVE IN E.A. CUMMINGS AND COMPANY'S OGDEN 
AVENUE SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 63,64 AND 65 AND THE WEST 37 FEET OF LOTS 66, 
67 AND 68 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF PART OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 
39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN COOK 
COUNTY. ILLINOIS. 

39 



Exhibit C 
Parcel 2 Legal Description 

LOTS 14 THROUGH 16, INCLUSIVE IN E.A. CUMMINGS AND COMPANY'S OGDEN 
AVENUE SUBDIVISION OF LOTS 63, 64 AND 65 AND THE WEST 37 FEET OF LOTS 66, 
67 AN D 68 IN THE CIRCUIT COURT PARTITION OF PART OF SECTION 31, TOWNSHIP 
39 NORTH, RANGE 13, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERJOIAN, IN COOK 
COUNTY, ILLINOIS. 

40 



Exhibit D 
Existing Survey 

(To Be Attached) 

41 



GiW'Rl: geo\l.B 

~t T 

PLAT OF SURVEY 
'" .--. 

1i~~'iIP.:aE.: 
.--. ' 
gUl~~:ii~ 
.ll!I!!iIUIi.&. 
~.".w.~~r.&t.:.:lr,& 

--y ..... -.... 

.. ___ ••• .-.iI:IUII 



Exhibit E 
Berwyn Development Corporation's TIF Design Guidelines 

(To Be Attached) 

42 





Table of Contents 

General Design Guidelines ... ........ ...... .... ...... ....... 1-7 
Introduction ............. ........................... .. .......... 1 
Rehabilitation ..... ........... .................. .......... ..... 2-6 

Building Materials .... .............. ..... ................ 2 
Masonrv ........................... .. .... ......... .... ... ...... 2 
Color and Paint .............. ..... .... .. .................. 2-3 
Cleaning Options .......... ... ... ............. .. .......... 3 
Entrances and Windows ....... ........ ... ....... ...... 4 
Roof lines and Parapets ....... ... .................... . 5 
Awnings and Canopies .......... ...................... 5 
Lighting..... ................... ............. ............ ....... 5 
S;gns ... .... ... ... .. ... .. ..... ... ........ .. ... .... ............... . 6 

In-fill Construction .......... ............................... 6-7 
Fa90de Proportions ..... , ............................... 7 
Materials ................... .. .......................... .. ..... 7 

Parking and Other Site Improvements ........... 7 

Berwyn's Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Districts 
Cermak Road....... .... ................................... ......... 9-10 
Ogden Avenue ....... ......... .......... .. ... ........ ..... .......... 11-12 
Roosevelt Road .................................................... 13-14 
South Berwyn .. .................... ................................ 15 

Published by the 
Berwyn Development Corporation 

in conjunction with the 
City of Berwyn 



General Design Guidelines 

Introduction 

rI'hese design guidelines provide recommendations for the protec
tion, enhancement, and preservation of buildings, structures, park

ing lots, and areas within each of the City of Berwyn's commercial 
districts. Property 

,,,",.,.",,r\'.,' owners, architects, 
and contractors are 
encouraged to refer 
to these basic de
sign p'rirt~iples pri
or to Inlhatmg any 
rehabilitation proJ
ects, new construc
tion, or property 
improvements. 

By focusing on 
the qualiry and 

. compatibility of 
improvements, the 

City of Berwyn and the Berwyn Development Corporation (BDC) ac
knowledge their understanding that buiiaing improvements that follow 
appropriate design standards will have a beneficial impact on the ap
pearance and the economic value of individual buildings and the sur
rounding environment. 

Proven economic benefits to communities that have followed design 
guidelines include: 

-A positive impact on a property owner's investment by enhancing 
and stabilizing property values; 

·Areinforced sense of community and a pleasing environment for 
residents by preserving and enhancing the community's identity 
and uniqueness; 

-An improved visual appearance that helps convey an image of 
quality to potential clients and customers. 

It should be emphasized that these design guidelines are for general 
guidance onJy. Individual projects within each of the City's commercial 
corridors will be reviewed and considered on their own merits, as 
appropriate) by the City of Berwyn's Design Review Commission. 
Projects within each of the City's four Tax Increment Financing (TIF) 
Redevelopment Districts are arso reviewed and considered using area
specific criteria. adopted by the BDC's TIF Advisory CommisslOns to 
ensure each project will enhance the character of that particular District. 
In addition, all building improvements and new construction will be 
subject to the appropriate City codes and ordinances. 



Rehabilitation 
All rehabilitation should compliment and 

contribute to the historic and/or architectural 
character of the commercial district in which 
it is located. Materials should be used that are 
durable and in keeping with prevalent materials 
in terms of quality and application. These finishes 
and materials should not change the historic 
character of the building. 

Any distinguishing qualities of the building 
shou1d be preserved or restored whenever 
pos~iblt? It IS n.o~ accept~bl~ to apply. historical 
replicatIon detallmg that ~s mappropnate to the 
date and style of the buildmg's construction. 

The appearance of commercial building$ should enhance the scale of 
the pedestrian experience and provide an Inviting relationship with the 

street and parking through the prQper main
tenance onhe fa~ade, grass storerronts, and 
appropriately arrangea merchandise dis
plays or oth.er treatments, such as plantings 
or randsql.pmg. 

The eXisting overall size, height, scaleJ and vertical orientation of the area shoula 
be maintained. 

Building Materials 
The use of approp'riate building materials is extremely important in 

est.ablishing compatibility between historic restoration, simple rehabili
tatIOn, and new construction. 

Materials common to the buildin~ ~tyles in Berwyn are brick, stucco, 
ceramic tilebterra-cotta, glass1 and-glass block. They are used not only 
structurally ut as ornamentatIon as welL 

Materials and craftsmanship should be consistent with each other and 
should be permanent. Whenever J)ossible, original building materials 
should be maintained and restored'. 

The use of exterior finishing materials, wood 
siding, aluminum siding l wood shingles and . 
s~akes, and plastic or aJUminwn panels are 
discouraged. 

Damaged and/or deteriorated exterior build
ing materials should be repaired or replaced 
if possible. 

Masonry 
Masopry surfaces should be J)!operly 

cleaned, repaired, and tuck-J:)ointed. New mortar must be compatible in 
color, texture, and tooling ofjoint with the original mortar. 

Color and Paint 
Painting can be one of the most dramatic and least expensive 

improvements to a commercial building. Painting is an essenfial part 
of nonnal building maintenance and, if carefully placed, colors can 
accentuate architectural details and visually unite groups of sefarate 
buildings. Yet, too many colors on the wrong features will detrac from 
the buifding's character and that of its neighbors. 



Early to Mid IBOOs 

Simple Cornice 
Window Untels 
Small Pones 
Post + Beam Frame. 
Divided Display Windows 
Simple Decoration 

Mid to Late 18005 

Decorated Corni~s 
Window Hoods 
2 oller Z windows 
lAst Iran Columns 
Lorge Display Windows 

Lgte 1800s to Early 190Qs 

Corbel Brick Cornice 
Lorge Arch Windows 
Transom Windows 
Recessed Entry 

Early 1900s to 19305 

Simple Brick Cornice 
Large Windows wIth Units 
Metal Frames 
Strudural61ass 
Recessed Entry 

Base color: typically matches the natural color of building materials) 
such as brick or stone. 

Trim color: for framing the fa~ade, doors and windows, and the 
primary color of the cornice and major architectural elements. If used, 
minor trim colors are darker and usea on doors and window sashes. 

Accent color: used minimally to highlight 
intricate architectural details; terra-cotta, 
ceramic tile, stone, and glass should not 
be painted. 



Entrances and Windows 
Entrances should be clearly identified 

and dramatized with large proportions, 
frame and header detaifs, and address 
identification. providing an open in
vitation to potential customers. New 
doors and windows should be com
patible with the architectural style and 
character of the facade. 

• Window o~enings that have been blocked 
or screened by concrete block, brick, 
or plywood. etc., should be reopened to 
re-establish ' the original rhythm of the 
fa~ade. 

• Recessed entrances are encouraged. 
-Consider upgrading or establishing rear entrances. 
-Replacement storefronts should be designed with the largest possible 
window area in keeping with the style of the storefront or tfie storefronts 
of adjacent buildings. The storefront should maintain a 80 - 90% glass 
area. 

-Windows should be glazed with non-reflective glass to provide visibility 
to the interior and to merchandise displays. Tinted windows are not 
appropriate for retail storefronts. 

-Windows should be kept clear of unnecessary posters, temporary signage .. 
and other clutter. 

-All broken and missing windows and glazing should be replaced with 
new frames and glass. Wood is stroJ)gly encouraged as replacement door 
frame and window frame material. Metal windows and doors finished in 
baked enamel are permitted. 

-No stoT~front should be covered or boarded up, except during 
constructIOn. 

-Windows should be tight-fitting and have sashes of proper size and 
design. 

-Window frames with rotten wood. broken joints, missing panes, or loose 
mullions should be replaced. 

-New windows should be compatible with the character and architectural 
style of the fayade. 

·Curtains and similar window 
coverings on ground floor windows are 
discouraged. 



Roof lines and Parapets 
·The originalroofline and cornice treatment 
should oe maintained and restored. 
-New buildings should reft.ect and 
complement the established roof line 
heights and cornice treatments ofadjacent 
existing buildings. 
·Simply~shaped parapets can be used to 
creale an inferesfin,g Duilding,profile when 
combined with nelghboring-l5uiJdings. 

-Parapets should extend above the roof to hide vents, coolers, and other 
rooftop equipment. 
-Slcmed mansard, shake, or shingle roofs are inappropriate and should be 
aVOloed. 

Awnings and Canopies 
Historically, many buildin~s in Berwyn used .Y Y &d 

colorful canvas awning~ whIch were both func- R:iC. 
tional and attractive. They protected shoppers 
from the elements and were an inexpensive way 
to provide color and vitali!)' to the street. Aw~ 
nings and canopies are still a good idea for all 
these same reasons. 
-Awnings and canopies should be in scale and 
~haracter with the architectural style of the build
mg. 
-Awnings and canopies should fit within the ~ 
frame 01 the storefront; they should not hide the 
building's fa~ade. distort its proportions, or cover 
architectural features. 
·Awnin~ and canopies should be compatible in 
size, cOlor, and material with those on adjacent 

buildings. 
I l • • if . -Awnings and canopies should be flame 

retardant. 

Lighting 

-Shingle awnings .and canopies and tnansard 
rqof ~p-e canopIes are mappropnate for 
hIstone Tacades. 
-Awnings and canopies shaH be no lower than 
8 feet aoove the sidewalk.. 
-The use ofvinyJ awnings is discouraged. 

The lighting of a building's fa~ade has the dual purpose of advertis
ing a business and discouraging crime. 
• Front and rear entries should be brightly lit. 
-Most exterior lighting sources should be concealed. Where concealment 
is not practical, Iigl},l fixtutes ." '.~ J: , -- " -, • . ., 

should be ~ompahble With . "( .. ~ . ....". ~" ;.:;;' .;.;,;;~~~ 
storefront desIgn. . 
-Exterior ~potli,ghting may 
be used to lllummate Signs or 
prominent building detailS. 



Signs 
Signs are among the most important features of a commercial building. 

Signs communicate the nature of a business and its products or services. 
Signs also influence the overall image and character of a commercial 
area. 
-Signs. should be .designed to be ~;r: \ ~;:,;l \ ,~ :. ," • t,:... ''" "'" 
re~og111zable from passlp.g cars and shpuld ~ . " : :~~ ~ ,t > ~, ." ' ·t~ 
stilI De clear and aftractIve to pedestrIans . . ,." '. ' ~ i f ., > ,~ ,; 
-Lettering s!yl~s shoul~ be ~elected which ., ~ .. :'. , t.RWfli 
reflect the deSign or hlstonc character of' .~ :s.;. ,; )~J '.,) ',.. . ¢I: 

the building ana should relate to the type 
of store it ioentifies. 

• Sign size should be in scale with the storefront size and cannot 
be used to cover or otherwise mask architectural design elements 
of a fatrade. 

-Multiple signs should be in similar style" 
-There should be a harmonious 

, . sign relationship between buildings 
whenever possible. 
-Exterior signs should be limited to 
business identification and descrip
tion. Product advertising signs are 
discouraged. 

-Sigt?s should not cover or conceal important architec-
tural features of the building. 

·Unused sign supports, hardware, and electrical conduits 
and wiring should be removed and building surfaces 
damaged by the removal of the above snould be , 
restored. , 

• Rooftop signs and billboards are prohibited. 
• Small graphics and logos painted directly on glass · 
windows and doors are encouraged. 

• Si~ lighting elements such as switches, panel boxes, 
conduits, and wiring should be concealed as much as 
possible. 

In-fill Construction 

Whenconstruc!ingn~w buildings 
on vacant lots, It IS Important to 
pay careful attention to the front 
bUIlding fa~adehwhich should not 
attempt to look istoric, but rather 
it should reflect its age. PoIIeW FACtlDES AA(; stm..T I"LImH 

The facades of new. in-fill struc- WJ:'T'H THIi Ii)(UTDo.I9 IITOIIEFRDHTS" 

tures should be aligned with neighboring buildings and not setback 
from the sidewalk. Building construction should extend the full width 
of the lot. This discourages the gap-tooth effect between commercial 
buildings. 

Where the propeI1Y owner has several adjacent lots, the in-fill 
build" should De Duilt' t to an structure or on the 



comer lot. Special attention must be given to 
scale, piflcement, shape, and compati5ility of 
new desIgn to the overall character and scale 
of their Immediate surroundings and to the 
character of the commercial district. 

Fat;ade Proportions 
Consider the average heights, width~ window 

and door openings on the block to aetermine 
app'ropriate scale and rh~hm. If the in-fill 
buIlding is much larger then break up the 
falY.ade mto smaller bays lo reflect surrounding 
buildings. 

Materials 
The in-fill fa9ade should be composed of 

materials similar to surrounding Duildings. 
Building materials of brick veneer and stone 
are encouraged although contemporary mate
rials are acceplable if a good relationship is 
established with the adjacent areas. 

Parking and Other Site Improvements 

--_._-
.......... :afIrO .... 

J, J. .l. 

Adequate parking is essential within the commercial area. Curb 
parking should contmue to be made available within each district and its 
Intersecting side streets. Off-street parking lots should be designed and 
located so that they are safe, efficient, and do not destroy the character 
of the district. 
·Wh~re possible.!,'parking lots should be located at mid-block; corner 
p'arking lots are alscouraged. 
-The number of access dnves along the corridor should be minlmizet 
the desi~n of access drives should be in confonnance with IDO 1 
standardS. 
-All.PC!Iking areas should be paved, striped, and have surfaces in good 
condition. 
-Decorative fencing,.com'patible with streetscape improvemeI}ts or the 
character of the district, should be installed along the edges of parking 
lots that border public sidewalks and private p,roperties. 
• Where possible, existing parking lots withm The same block should be 

combinea and redesigned to increase efficiency 
and parking capacity . 

• ' '~~1Jn -Attractive landscaping, including hedges 
, ~" ,r (. .. . ~ I ang .ftowering plants, . are encourage9 in 
'1" . . ..! t :-; .. ~~. / ~ . bUIldmg .setbacks and Side yards. AI~ pnyate 
~. ,:, " ~ . .' , ! i •. - ~ " . . . landscapmg shoJlld be pruned and mamtalOed 
". ~ r_ : ' ., :: on a re~lar basls._ . 

f'··~ !. ~:: ·;-; j -Decorative fencmg and landscapmg should 
' . 1 - - be used to screen .U.O$ightly storage, garbage 

" receptacles, and utIhttes from public view. 

Don't fQl1!:et to visit the. Berwyn Bpildine Deparh11ent (OT tbe 
approprI~R permits belore yon order ydtlr ntw SIgn or begm 
construction. 



Berwyn's Tax Increment Financing (TIF) Districts 

The City of Bef'?J)'n has established four TIF Districts to encourage 
property owners, businesses within each district, and developers to 
participate in making needed improvements to upgrade and revitalize 
the districts, and Berwyn's economy as a whole. 

Improvements to be funded through the program must be deemed 
compatible with the surrounding propeJ1Y, consistent with the character 
of ilie district and in accord with any_ formally adopted rehabilitation 
standards, techniques, and guidelines. Final acceptance into the program 
will be based on such factors as: the degree to which the project would 
improve the district and enhance local revenue and/or create local jobs; 
overall compliance with rehabilitation/redevelopment guidelines in 
place for the given TIF district; and the availability ofTIF funds. 

FOl'more defails on each TIP areal assistance programs, and procedures, 
please refer to the appropriate sectIOn in these IDlidelines. Please consult 
fhe BPG to verify alstnct boundaries. The following is only a general 
descnptlOn. 

Berwyn Theatre Area/Cermak Road 
• Established 1987, Amended 1997 
Boundaries: EW Harlem - Lombard. fronting NS Cermak Road 
'" Average Daily Traffic Counts 28,300 

Ogden Avenue Corridor 
• Established] 993, Amended 1995 
Boundaries: EW Harlem - Lombard, fronting NS Ogden Avenue 
~ Average Daily Traffic Counts 33,900 

South Berwyn/Depot District 
• Established 1997 
Boundaries: NS on Oak Park Avenue between 31 and 34 Streets and 
EW along Windsor and Stanley - between Ridgeland and Home Ave. 
* Average Daily Traffic Counts 10,200 

Roosevelt Road Corridor 
• Established 1997 
BOWldaries: Lombard - Maple Avenue, fronting along the South side of 
Roosevelt only. 
* Average Daily Traffic Counts 22,400 

*2005 Traffic CVlm!s prmlided by the !/linois Department o/Transportation 



Cermak Road 
Berwyn Theatre Area 

)I grantfe CBoufevartf 

, ", _ . __ Th~ C~r"1ak RoadlBerwyn Theatre .Area .TIF 
, . , Dlstnct 1S a dense commercIal corndor, Imed 

- with one- to three-storied historic buildings, 
many with street level storefronts and residential apartments above. 
1)1e majority of the building~ are terra-cotta, with Itahanate omarnenta-
tlOn~ a few are constructed- In a later, Art ," - , . 
Mooeme style. ' ' ," . . ' ; 

Plentiful parking is available behind 
the north Cermak Road businesses in the 
"Vacin Fajrway,n which begins at Home 
Avenue and continues east beyond the 
Berwyn city limits. On-street parking is 
available afong the north and south Sloes 
of Cermak Road, and many sidestreets 
now offer diagonal l)arking §paces. 

As a major arterial road, Cermak Road 
attracts approximately 28,000 cars daily and is a natural draw for new 
business opportunities. 

Ben.yyn's first tax increment 
financing (TIF) district, Cermak 
Road today IS an attractive, 
pedestrian-friendly business 
ilistrict. Key fac;ade rehab, 
renovation. and redevelopment 
projects have spurred substantial 
private investment and helped 
keep this important commercial 
corridor economically viable, 
while preserving the historic 
character of the district. 



Cermak Road's Fafade Rehab Program 
has been adapted for use in all of Berwyn's _ 
TIF districts. Despite agreement on program 
administrative elements and general design 
guidelines, each district TrF Commission 
nas adopted development preferences to help 
preserve and enhance the unique character or 
Image of their particular distnct 

An commercial properry owners within a 
TIF redevelopment distnct are encouraged 
to follow tile criteria for improvements 
which have been developed for that district. 
Special attention, however, will be paid to 
tliis criteria as design concepts are developed 
for projects receIving fuilding assistance 
through Berwyn's TIF programs. 

One important premise of the TIF Program 
is that even small improvements. if (lone 
properly. can have a mqj07' impact on the 
appearance and value 01 a building and the 
surrounding commercial environment. We 
know that's true as we see the impact of the 
Program on Cermak Road in Berwyn! 



Ogden Avenue 
Route 66 

()
gdenAvenue in Berwyn is a part of Historic 
US Route 66, once America's "Main 

Street." At the height ofits popularity, Route 66 
connected culturalry and geographically diverse 
parts of the country and increased the country's 
awareness of regional differences. Roadside 

, . attractio~s had distif!ctive regional themes that 
'.:-. were deSigned to entice the traveler to stop, eat, 

get gas, see the sights, and take home a souvenir. 
While traveling Route 60, gettmg there was just as memorable as being 
there. 

Within the City of Berwyn, the Ogden Avenue corridor is home to 
a diverse mix of retail stores, service establishments l and offices. 
Traditionally, the corridor has had a strong automotive onentation, with 
numerous dealerships, repair shops, parts and accessories stores, and 
service facilities. 

The Ogden Avenue corridor was developed over a period of many years 
and arcfiitectural styles are quite diverse. The corridor still contains 
several attractive, tum-of-the-century commercial buildings, as well 
as more recent examples of contemporary architectural styles, Many 
buildings date from tlie J 940s, '50s, and '60s, and have Art Deco, Art 
Moderne, or "Streamline" design characteristics that emphasize speed, 
movement, and other aerodynamic stylistic features. These buildings are 
typically one story, flat-roofed, and of masonry or stucco construction. 
TIley are characterized by recessed entrances, large display windows, 
comer entrances, and rounded corners. Many have glass block. ceramic 
tile or polished aluminum or stainless steel aetailing. 

The design theme for Ogden strives to recapture some of these unique 
qualities. While the guidefines do not attempt to recreate a bygone era or 
l'romote imitations of old buildings, they do strive to establtsh a distinct 
Route 66 theme based on: 

a) A diverse mix of commercial uses which balances community retail 
and service establishments with a strong automotive orientation; 

b) A mix of architectural styles that reflects the develop
ment of Berwyn and the evolution of Route 66 itself; 

c) Restoration and enhancement of the remaining Art 
Deco and "Streamline'S buildings and architecturaT fea
tures: 



d) Renewed use of neon as a creative lighting and sign age technique; 

e) 1)1e introduction of special signage, pisplays, and ~enities that will 
agam encourage motonsts and pedestnans to stop, VISit, and enJoy the 
unique businesses that line Ogden Avenue within the City of Berwyn. 

For Ogden Avenue? the purpose 
of these Design GUIdelines IS to 
improve the image and appearance 
of indivi~ual buildi~~Si promote 
more design compatJbiliW among 
buildings and groups of ouildingsj 

. ' establisb a distinctive Route 50 
. theme for the corridor~ and enhance 

the visual image and identity of Ogden Avenue as it passes through the 
City of Berwyn. 

They do not attempt to "make all the buildin~ look the same." They 
are not intended to restrict creativity or limit aesi~ solutions

tl 
but to 

maintain and enhance the overall scale, quality, and-character or Ogden 
Avenue as it passes through BelWyn. 

Lif?htin~ and Neon 
Neon reflects the Route 66 theme and can significantly enhance the overall 

image and appearance of the corridor. With unlimited design potential, 
neon adds a vibrancy which can be achieved through no other medium. 

Merchants and property owners are encouraged to provide displays and 
exhibits that reflect the Route 66 theme, the historic oevelopment of their 
own businesses, and/or the heritage of the Berwyn community. Possibili
ties include: 

a~ vintage cars' b f?'amples of early automotive technology; 
c hIstOriC gas pumps' 
d reminders of the '50s drive-in restaurant; 
e historic maps and markers; and 
f) old photographs of a building or the Ogden Avenue corridor. 

New businesses and services which can add life and vitality to Ogden 
Avenue, attract new customers to the area, and enhance the corridor as a 
community and regional commercial destination are strongly encouraged. 



Roosevelt Road 
Berwyn's Northern 
Gateway 

Roosevelt Road in Berwyn has a rich history. Marking the border 
between the Village of Oak Park and the City of Ber\Y,Yn, the 

corridor, along with a large portion of what is toaay north Berwy~ 
virtually floated from one municipality and township to another until 
it became part of Be~n. Nightspots taverns, ann li<luor stores at 
one time cfaimed much of the street} taking advantage of neighboring 
community prohibitions on the sale of liquor. 

In recent years 
Roose-velt Road 
has enjoyed spurts 
and even surges of 
successful reaevel
opment. It is home 
to a diverse group 
of businesses ana 
a wide range of 
architectural ~les, 
mixing historic 
structures with con
temporary shopptng 
c~nfers, and major, 
s.mgle-use proper
tIes. 

Roosevelt Road is 
Berwyn's newest TIF redevelQpment district, encompassing most of the 
pro~rties on the south side ofRoosevelt Road from Harlem Avenue to 
Lombard Avenue. A focus on cooperative development efforts with the 
Village of Oak Park which includes the properties on the northern side 
of Roosevelt Road, has led to a study of the street as a whoie l as well as 
the north-south "sub-areas" that make up the whole. This Joint effort 
has brought togethe~ bus i- _ ~"'.' _ ', . . . _ 
ness owners area reSidents, ' .,~. ...., ~ , '.(~ ': ~-." '" 

d . '. 1 ffi' I f' , , .-' (.. I' .~ '. , an mUOlClpa 0., cia s . ,:. "" ;:' I~, - _':.~"" •. ~.,~. " ';', «):t 

from both commumties to f '_>;,,/'~';1 . -,. ;;:,.- ~; -:l i .' ~ ",'i • " .. ' 
• • ... ' • I .:0:( "-;.. , , ~ -,.~ ti. .. ... determme the corndor's . ~' " ,,~ . ' .. ~ .. n·1itt,~ .. · ··-~t'.: ~ -

needs and its potential for 
future growth. 

Like Berwyn's other com
mercial districts, Roosevelt 
Road has retain- ed many 
historic structures that 
should be retained and 
restored whenever 



possible1 following this 
pu~lic~tlOn 's Kenera~ design 
~UldehJ1es. Restonng a 
• pedestrian-friendly" envi
ronment is particularly 
important for bus messes ana 
area residents and should be 

" . . - a primary concern for any 
public or private redevelopment or infrastructure project. 

To help accomplish this goal, existing buildings set back from the side
walk should have entrances oriented to the street. A hedge or decorative 
fencing should be provided along the sidewalk edge to further define 
pedestrian space at the street right-of-way. All new structures should 
be built to die street right-of-way unless ilie adjoining structures are set 
back. 

In addition, new construction should have massing and configuration 
similar to buildin~ on the same block. Factors that affect a buIlding's 
mass are heigh~ width, and roof lines. Predominantly. structures along 
Roosevelt Roaa are at least two stories tall and new buildin~s shoula 
not exceed the tallest building on the block by more than 10 Vo. Where 
new buildings will exceed the historical 20-30 feet in width. the faltade 
should be vIsually subdivided into proportional bays, similar in scale 
to adjacent buildings. This . '-. '/~ . 
can be done by varymg roof . ~ . 
heigl:1~s, . or applyin,g verti
cal diVISions, matenals, and 
detailing to the fayade. 

As interest in thiS area con
tinues to grow, new inves
tors and current owners are 
discovering opportunities to 
restore, renew, and redevelop' 
this important commercial 
corridor. 



South Berwyn's 
Historic Commuter 
Corridor 

. l"':he South Berwyn/Depot District is 
. a mixed-use area containing a wide 

range of land uses in a relatively compact geographic area. While 
office and service uses predominate, the area also Includes retail stores~ 
financial institutions. medical offices, residential uses, restaurants, ana 
several light industrial facilities. MacNeal Hospital is a major occupant 
of the district, contributing thousands of employees and visitors dally. 

~~~;", ...... -::.:': The centerpIece of this important 
business district is the histone train 
depot Qictured at the top of the p'age, 
one of three Burlington Northern 
Metra stations serving The community 
and attracting over 1,500 Metra 
commuters daily_ >I< 

The design cnaracter of the djstrict 
is both fiistoric and traditionally 
commercial - with large display 

~~_ windows to entice potentiar customers 
and unique building f~ades that 
create interest but do not overwhelm 

the pedestrian. 
Improvements within this District should enhance its special char

acter, including the repair of older commercial buildings, storefront 
improvements, special sidewalk treatments and pedestrian amenities, 
more extensive Tandscaping, a small public plaza or park, and addi
tional short-tenn, off-street parking. 
Th~ City's vision for futu~e development in the South ....... 'n-.. nt" L.I'''-LJ'JL 

Distnct mcludes the creatIOn of a . -', ''' ,' , .' -,;; ' ,: 
thriving ~hopp'ing district with a , 
strong residential base. 

Close proximity to commuter sta
tions, easy access to Chic~o and 
suburban jobs, and the aoundant 
medical services available within 
the area, have made this historic 
District a prime location for com- oI+I!-i'!II'.I. II 19 

mercia I and residential development ffi~111jl~f-
and for businesses ready to meet the 
needs of area residents . 

... 1999 Metra Report 



NOTES: 



" 

b(~rvv r1 (jev(~ . ()prr en . 
CORPORAT I ON 

3322 South Oak Park Av~nue, 2nd floor 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

708/788-8100 • 7081788-0966 (fax) 
E-mail info@berwyn.ner 

visit the BDC's website www.berwyn.net 



Exhibit F 
Site Plan 

(To Be Attached) 

43 



_, ._. • . 1. _--" _-L-.---,.,.----'- .!...-_ ......... ' --r~.-.--...l. ... --,-' - -
~~ 
~-I _ ...... __ _ I 

'! 
___ ~0Pl- • .,... 

I 

, -...... -...-. 
~---....o ----

t 
1 

t 

\ 
• I 

\ 

-------
--...--= :.,.., 
~ .. --

I --
\ 

A'1/,. • C1 .01 r / I. I~ ,,-, ~--.--~~~~==-~::":"==-~_.:..:.' - -=-==;=-=-~ffi~_--, __ .--_.,----_-.-_____ _ 
.... -



Exhibit G 
Floor Plan 

(To Be Attached) 

44 



~....,.."....-~ 
. ..,.., ----:---T 

~ .. ... 'nr· .... · ... f'i 
eN' 

... ~ 

: I : I \ I .• -=:: .~ 
j I . 1 • ' , ~ . '" " 
" . ,I •. \ ~,) 

.I·'n· -~~"~ij.:J"" " ~' y-'-'~q-I\;" Ct 
.. ~~, . . _, l!I,.._ ---11., [I r--;rj--, 

:U:, Ilhl I : I ": I I - : 
• J 1 I 'i I ";' I 

)ili.J~! \}:. '. ~J 1 ! ,t:: .i : 
I 

~ i··- · '" l --- , " --~-

-",-w._ - .... ......... --.I,...~ ----

.......... 
------

- -' ....... 
....u:'Io ,,_.~ . _ ... ~ •• .... _,....----- --

A1.1 



Exhibit H 
Construction Timeline 

In accordance with the City Code, the Developer shall diligently proceed to apply for and obtain 
one or more building permits for the construction of the Civil Site Improvements and the 
Renovation Project following the Closing Date. Construction of the Civil Site Improvements 
and the shell of the Renovation Pl"Oject shall be completed within six (6) months after the 
issuance of a building pelmit for the same. 

The Developer shall take all steps necessary to apply for and obtain a certificate of occupancy 
from the City for the Intended Use within nine (9) months after the issuance of a building pennit 
for construction of the Renovation Project. 

45 



Exhibit I 
Architectural Rendering 

(To Be Attached) 

46 







EXIDBITC 
NOTICE 

10 



CITY OF BERWYN 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ENTER INTO A DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT AND REQUEST FOR ALTERNATE PROPOSALS 

PUBLIC NOTICE is hereby given that the City of Berwyn, Illinois (the "City") 
intends to enter into an agreement (the "Agreement") for the conveyance and 
redevelopment of all or a portion of the real property located generally at the southeast 
comer of Ogden Avenue and South East Avenue, Berwyn, Illinois, commonly known as 
"Anderson Ford - South", located at or about 6530 and 6550 West Ogden Avenue, 
Berwyn, Illinois (the "Property") to TFG Berwyn LLC (the "Developer"). Draft copies of 
the Agreement, which include the terms of the proposed disposition of the Property, are 
currently on file at City Hall, Office of the City Clerk, 6700 26 th Street, Berwyn, Illinois. 

THE CITY HEREBY INVITES ALTERNATE PROPOSALS FOR THE 
REDEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT OR ABOUT 6530 AND 
6550 WEST OGDEN AVENUE, BERWYN, ILLINOIS. Please contact the City Clerk to 
review the applicable redevelopment project and plan. which set forth the City's plan for 
the redevelopment of the area, and to obtain information regarding the fonn, if any, 
required for proposals submitted to the City. Any such proposal should address the 
City'S preference for an end user that will generate substantial sales tax revenue for the 
City. Although the City will consider all creative proposals for redevelopment of the 
Property, the Developer's plan represents the City's preferred development plan and the 
intended guide for redevelopment of the Property. The City will consider alternate 
proposals received in the Office of the City Clerk by 3:30 P.M. for a period of seven (7) 
business days after the publication of this notice. 

This invitation for alternate proposals shall not create any legal obligations to 
enter into any contract or other agreement with any party who submits a proposal except 
on tenns and conditions the City, in its sole and absolute discretion, deems to be 
satisfactory and desirable. The right is reserved by the City to reject any and all 
proposals. 



F. Reports and Communications 

From The Mayor 



CITY OF BERWYN 

CITY COUNCil MEETING (Date) 08/14/12 

Deferred Communication 

Agenda Item F-1 is a Deterred Communication from C C Meeting dated 07124/12 

FRoM ______ ~M~A_Y~O_R ________________________________ __ 

Re: WAGE REOPENER WITH SEIU-LOCAL 73 
------~~~~~~~~~~~~~-------------

Template -.xls 



The City of Berwyn RobertJ. Lovero 
Mayor 

ITEM NO. ~ 
DATE _ JOL! 4 2012 
DISPOSITION ____ _ 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

July 24, 2012 

To: Members of City Council 

Re: Wage Reopener with SEIU - Local 73 

For your consideration, 1 am submitting a wage agreement pertaining to the Service Employees International 
Union, Local 73 resulting from the reopener language of the contract that was signed on August 10, 2010. 

Regarding this agreement, please understand that negotiations are still closed and infonnation should remain in 
your possession only as to avoid any unfair labor practices. 

The Mayor's Office along with the Law Deparbnent is requesting your approval of this agreement. 

Respectfully. 

Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

6700 WeM 26'" Street Berwyn, IUinoi~ 60402·0701 Telephone; (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70H) 7A8-2S67 www.berwyn-il.gov 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

August 14, 2012 

Members of City Council 

Re: Berwyn Library Board Reappointments 

Council Members: 

Robert}. Lovero 
Mayor 

Doris Remp is currently serving on the Library Board. Her tenn is ending August 271h
, 2012, and I am seeking to 

reappoint her another three years with her new tenn ending on August 271
", 2015. Please concur in my recommendation 

and approve her reappointment. 

R19r{) 
RobertJ. LO~ 
Mayor 

6700 Welit 26'" Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 www.berwyn.U.gov 



G. Reports and Communication From 
The City Clerk 



The City of Berwyn Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6'700 West 26'· Street Berwyn. IlllDols 80402-0701 Telephone: ('708) '788-2680 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-n.gov 

August 10, 2012 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

Fr: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk 

Re: Retirement of Milton F. Persin 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
It is with the deepest regrets that I inform you that Mr. Milt Persin will be stepping down as 
Secretary of the Zoning Board of Appeals after serving on the City of Berwyn ZBA for 44 
years and has tendered his resignation (see attached.) It has been a genuine pleasure working 
with Mr. Persin for the past several years. On behalf of all the City Clerks, Mayors, Building 
Directors and City Council Members who Mr. Persin has tirelessly served since his 
appointment in 1968, we whole heartily thank him and wish him to be ZONED A-I for health, 
happiness and successes in any and all his future endeavors. 

Sincerely, ~ 

~~:::'::::st;J~ 



ATTORNEY AT LAW 

3!525 CASS COURT - UNIT 505 

OAKBROOK, ILLJNOIS 60523 

16301655·4323 FAX, (63016!5!5·4358 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Robert: 

August 6, 2012 

It is with regret that I must tender my resignation as Executive 
Secretary of the Berwyn Zoning Board of Appeals effective on the First 
(pt) Day of September, 2012. This decision was somewhat hastened 
by the passing of my dear wife, Bernice, my retirement from the active 
practice of law, and a rather serious health issue that will require 
major surgery. I have served for approximately 44 years, having been 
first appointed by the then Mayor Dolezal. It has been a real pleasure 
working with all the previous and present elected and apPointed 
Officials of the City, and more so with Joel Chrastka, and the present 
members of the Zoning Board, the present City Council Members, 
Charles Lazzara, his staff, Tom Pavlik, his staff, and of course working 
with you both as a City Council Member and Mayor. 

The City of Berwyn is truly my home town, having spent many 
wonderful years as a resident with my wife and my four children. The 
City, its residents, and all the City elected and appointed officials shall 
always remain In my fond memories. 

I am sending Joel Chrastka copies of various documents that I 
prepared through the years along with some comments that should be 
helpful to my successor. 

cc-Joel Chrastka-Chairman 
Charles Lazzara 
Tom Pavlik 
Finance Department 

Sincerely 

//L ~n F. Persin _---c -'.'0_. -. ___ --' 
~ •.. _'( ___ ._. - "0._. 

" 



The City of Berwyn Thomas J. Pavlik 
City Clerk 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn. DIlnols 60402·0'701 Telephone: (70S) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-28715 

www.berwyn-U.gov 

August 10,2012 

To: Mayor and Members of City Council 

Fr: Tom Pavlik, City Clerk and Chairman Berwyn $ 4 Scholars 

Re: Dollars for Scholars Scholarship Recipients 

Ladies and Gentlemen, 
1t is with great pleasure to announce this year's recipients of the City of Berwyn Dollars for 
Scholars 2012 Fall Scholarships. Andrew Hammond, a graduate Nazareth Academy, who will 
be attending the University of Chicago and Amanda Rodriquez, a Trinity High School 
graduate. who will attend Loras College, in Dubuque, Iowa this fall. Each will be receiving a 
$1,000 scholarship, which will be directly applied to their college tuition. These students have 
worked extremely hard to further their education and at the same time have shown a strong 
commitment to our community_ On behalf of the Dollar for Scholars Committee, Joe Kroc, Jim 
Swicionis, Jeffrey Janda, Ricardo Sanchez, Doug Walega, Carlos Berrout and myself Tom 
Pavlik, I would like to congratulate these deserving young individuals. As always, speCial 
thanks goes out to the Berwyn Township, Kiwanis Club of Berwyn. Berwyn Main Street and 
the Czech Oasis Committee and the BDC Depot District Special Events Committee for their 
continued support. 

Sincerel , 

~~'i""'s~ 



H. Communications From (Zoning) 

Board of Appeals 



I. Reports and Communications From 
Aldermen, Committees other Boards 

and Commissions 



J. Staff Reports 



The City of Berwyn 

August 08,2012 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 
City Clerk 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, lllinois 60402 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Re: Claim No. VA2012844773 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

Please put an item on the August 14, 2012 agenda, authorizing the settlement of the above referenced 

matter for the total 0[$16,200.00, based upon the City Council authority granted in Executive session. 

Very truly yours, 

Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

6700 West 26,h SU'ccc Berwyn, Illinois 60402·070 I Telephone: (708) 788-2660 fax : (7011) 788·2567 W\1'W.hclwyn-il.@ol' 



The City of Berwyn 

j /J-
Anthony T. Bertuca 

City Attorney 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26,h Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402-070 I Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

August 13,2012 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

City of Berwyn 

6700 W. 26th Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: 2011 Ml 302132 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Please put this item on the August 14, 2012 agenda authorizing the settlement of the above 

referenced matter for the total of $20,881.00, based upon City Council authority granted in 

Executive Session. 

Very truly yours, 

Anthony T. Bertuca 

City Attorney 



The City of Berwyn Anthony T. Bertuca 
City Attorney 

1;, ., A Century of Progr .. s with Pride 
6700 West 26" Strul Berwyn. Illinois 60402'()JOI Telepholle: (J08) 188-2660 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

August 9, 2012 

Thomas 1. Pavlik 

City Clerk 

City of Berwyn 

6700 W. 26 th Street 

Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: 12CV01589 

Dear Mr. Pavlik: 

Fax: (708) 188-256 J 

Please put this item on the August 14,2012 agenda authorizing the settlement of the above 

referenced matter for the total of $25,000.00, based upon City Council authority granted in 

Executive Session. 

Very truly yours, 

Anthony T. Bertuea 

City Attorney 

ATB:kmc 



The City of Berwyn 

August 9, 2012 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Members of City Council 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Re: Authorization to bid regarding ADA HUD grant 

Mayor and Members of City Council: 

Brian L. Pabst 
City Administrator 

Attached for consideration is the contract with Frank Novotny and Associates, Inc. for services related to engineering for 
the installation of ADA handicapped accessible parking spaces on the north side of the BNSF railroad tracks, just east of 
Harlem Avenue. 

The City was awarded a grant of $40,000 for ADA compliant projects. This engineering agreement will provide for 
surveys, design, cost estimates, bidding, project management, adherence to federal rules and regulations such as 
prevailing wage verification, etc. The construction portion is hourly based since project cost estimates will be developed 
as a part of this contract. Therefore, until bids are received, we will not know if $40,000 will cover all associated costs. 
Once bids are opened, our engineer and staff will conduct a review and recommend a particular construction company 
based upon experience and cost. If overall costs exceed the grant amount, we will identify alternative revenue 
source(s) before proceeding. The overall contract with Frank Novotny and Associates, Inc. shall not exceed $12,000. 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that City Council authorize the Mayor and Clerk to execute the attached contract with Frank Novotny 
& Associates, Inc. and to authorize Frank Novotny & Associates, Inc. to bid the work as outlined in the attached 
engineering contract. 

Respectfully subm itted, 

3/~ ~ 
Brian Pabst 
City Administrator 

6700 West 1.6" Street Berwyn. Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



Fl,ltnk iVovotny L~ jlssociate~ Inc. 
H:d:"j Midll'IIY Orin' • \riJJlJlrhlYlflk, 1£ • OI);j!!7. 'fl'it'plwllf': (fj.')()) HH7-8tUO • FiI.t: ((;/JO) M7.0/:J2 

(';"j/ Ellf.!i/l('('IS1 
J/IIIJit'iplil (i)fJ!;III1'l1l1t~ 

Mr. Brian Pabst 
Administrator 
City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Re: COBG Off-Street Parking Improvements 
At Harfem Avenue and Windsor/Stanley Avenues 

Dear Brian: 

August 9,2012 

Enclosed for your review and processing are two (2) revised caples of an 
Agreement for Preliminary Engineering Services for the above-referenced project. These 
agreements have been revised to correct the project location and to remove the 5% 
service charge for sublet work. If you concur, please have both copies executed by the 
Mayor and the Clerk and return both copies to our office. Once the agreements have 
been executed by all parties, we will return the City's copy to you for your files. 

If you should have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 

JEFfI<es 
Enclosure 
cc: File No. 11409 

Sincerely, 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

~(.1~~ 
John E. Fitzgerald. P.E. 



· -

OWNER: AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEER: 
ENGINEERING 

L SERVICES 
City of Berwyn 0 FOR C Frank Novotny & Associates, Inc 

Address: C 0 Address: 
A PRELIMINARY N 

6700 West 26th Street L ENGINEERING, S 825 Midway Drive 
U 

City: A DESIGN l City: 

G ENGINEERING, T 
Berwyn, illinois 60402 E A Willowbrook 
Project No.: N AND N State: Zip: 

C T 
11409 Y CONSTRUCTION Illinois 60527 

ENGlNEERING 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ____ day of August, 2012, by and 

between FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC., whose address is 825 Midway Drive, 

Willowbrook, Illinois, 60527, hereinafter called the "ENGINEER", and the CITY OF BERWYN, 

6700 West 26tn Street, Berwyn, Illinois 60402, hereinafter called the "OWNER", covers certain 

professional Engineering services in connection with the proposed improvement designated as 

C.D.B.G. Off-Street Parking Improvements at Harlem Avenue and Windsor/Stanley Avenues, 

which scope of construction work consists of earth excavation, P.C. concrete sidewalk removal 

and r~placement, curb and gutter removal and replacement, modular retaining wall installation, 

pavement patching, thermoplastic pavement markings, signage, sod restoration, and all other 

appurtenant construction, on the north and south sides of The B.N.S.F. Railroad at Harlem 

Avenue. 

WITNESSETH THAT, in consideration of these premises and of the mutual covenants herein 

set forth, 

THE ENGINEER AGREES, 

I. To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following Engineering Services 
for the Owner in connection with the proposed improvement hereinbefore described: 

® a. Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed Plans. 

o b. Prepare Photometric Analysis of highway corridor and submit to the Illinois Department 
of Transportation for approval. 

181 c. Make complete general and detailed Plans, Special Provisions, Proposals, and 
Estimates of Probable Cost, and furnish the Owner with five (5) copies of the Plans, 
Special Provisions, Proposals and Estimates. Additional copies of any or all documents, 

Page 1 of 8 Rev. 2012 



if required, shall be furnished to the Owner by the Engineer at his actual cost for 
reproduction. 

1&1 d. Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including 
borings and soil profiles and analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient 
data for the design of the proposed improvement. Such investigations are to be made in 
accordance with the current requirements of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 

181 e. Make or cause to be made such soil samples and analyses thereof in order to determine 
if proposed project excavations will generate contaminated soil. Such investigations are 
to be made in accordance with the current reqUirements of the Illinois Environmental 
Protection Agency. 

o f. Make or cause to be made such sewer televising investigations as may be required to 
fUrnish sufficient information for the desIgn of the proposed improvement. 

o g. Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection 
studies as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed 
Improvement. 

o h. Prepare reports or permit applications for Army Corps of Engineers and/or IDNR Division 
of Water Resources permits, or other detailed hydraulic reports that are required by any 
agency having jurisdiction over part of this project, including countywide stormwater and 
special management area permits. 

O!. Furnish the OWner with ten (10) copies, with recordable original, of surveys and drafts of 
all necessary right-of-way dedications, boundary and lot surveys, construction 
easements, and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the 
corresponding plats and staking as required. 

181 j. Submit Plans and Specifications to the regulatory agencies for routine permits and/or 
approvals not noted above. 

1&1 k. Assist the Owner in the tabulation and interpretation of the Contractors' proposals. 

181 I. Furnish construction observation. Construction observation shall include: 

1. Consultation on interpretation of Plans and Specifications and any changes 
under consideration as construction proceeds. 

2. Periodical job-site observation by the Engineer, or his representatives, as 
construction progresses. 

3. Overseeing the testing of sewer and/or water lines to determine whether the 
completed project meets the requirements as outlined in the Specifications. 

4. Preparing and/or checking all payment estimates, change orders, records, and 
reports required by the OWner or governmental agencies. Engineer shall attempt 
to submit the Contractors Mechanics Lien Waivers and Sworn Statements with 
any payment recommendation; however, if such are not provided, then the 
payment recommendation shall be conditioned upon their receipt. 

5. Periodic observation of the Contractor's operations to endeavor to guard the 
Owner against defects and deficiencies in the Work, and to determine in general 

Page 2 of 8 Rev. 2012 



if the Work is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully 
completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. The Engineer 
will organize and keep the project records. Engineer shall attempt to provide 
written notice to Owner of Contractors failure to carry out the work in substantial 
accordance with the Contract Documents, of which Engineer has actual notice, 
and of the corrective action required to remedy same. 

6. Reviewing all shop and working drawings for the purpose of checking for 
conformance with information given and the design concept. 

7. Reviewing and checking all reports by testing laboratories on equipment and 
material tested. 

8. Compiling a final punchlist relating to the completed Work, and preparation of 
final papers and reports. 

9. Revision of Contract drawings to show location and nature of improvement as 
record drawings, from information furnished by the Contractor. 

~ m. Provide construction layout and staking. 

1&1 n. Fumlsh or cause to be furnished: 

1. Proportioning and testing of concrete mixtures in accordance with the "Manual of 
Instructions for Concrete Proportioning and Testing" issued by the Bureau of 
Materials and Physical Research, of the Illinois Department of Transportation. 

2. Proportioning and testing of bituminous mixtures (including extracting test) in 
accordance with the "Manual of Instructions for Bituminous Proportioning and 
Testing" issued by the Bureau of Materials and Physical Research, of the Illinois 
Department of Transportation. 

3. Compaction tests as required by the Specifications. 

4. Quality and sieve analyses on local aggregates to see that they comply with the 
Specifications contained in the Contract. 

5. Fumish inspection of materials when inspection is not provided at the sources by 
the Bureau of Materials of the IllinoIs Department of Transportation, if required by 
the Owner. 

II. That all reports, Plans, plats, and Special Provisions to be furnished by the Engineer 
pursuant to this Agreement will be in accordance with the current generally accepted standards 
of design professionals performing such engineering services; it being understood that all such 
reports, plats, Plans and drafts, shall before being finally aCcepted, be subject to approval by the 
Owner. 

III. To attend conferences to be held at the request of the Owner in addition to normal visits 
for observation purposes, and visit the site and review the work at any reasonable time when 
requested to do so by the Owner. 

IV. That basic survey notes and sketches, charts, computations and other data prepared or 
obtained by the Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, will be made available, upon request, to 
the Owner without cost and without restriction or limitation as to their use. 

Page 3 of 8 Rev. 2012 



V. In the event Plans or surveys are found to be in error during construction of the 
PROJECT due to the negligence or willful misconduct of the Engineer. and revisions of the 
plans or survey corrections are necessary. the Engineer agrees that he will perform such work 
without expense to the Owner even though final payment has been received by him. He shall 
give immediate attention to these changes so there will be a minimum delay to the Contractor. 

VI. To make such changes in working Plans. including all necessary preliminary surveys 
and investigations, as may be required after the award of the construction Contract and during 
the construction of the improvement. 

VII. That all Plans and other documents furnished by the Engineer pursuant to this 
Agreement will be endorsed by him and will show his professional seal where such is required 
bylaw. 

VIII. The Engineer will carry General Liability insurance in the amount of not less than 
$1.000.000; Workman's Compensation of not less than $500.000; and Professional Liability 
insurance of not less than $1,000.000. The Engineer shall name the OWner as DAdditional 
Insured" on the Engineer's General Liability policy. 

THE OWNER AGREES, 

I. To pay the Engineer as compensation for all services performed as stipulated in 
Paragraphs I-a. c, j and k of "THE ENGINEER AGREES" in accordance with one of the 
following methods as marked: 

o a. A sum of money equal to. ____ percent of the awarded Contract price for the 
proposed Improvement. 

181 b. A sum of money equal to the percentage of the awarded Contract cost for the proposed 
improvement as approved by the OWner based on the following schedule: 

SCHEDULE FOR PERCENTAGES BASED ON AWARPED CONTRACT COST 

First 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 
Next 

$ 50,000 ............. .. .. ... ....... .... ... .. .................... .. . 
$ 50,000 ................ ......................... .................. . 
$ 100.000 .............. ......... ................ .. ........ ......... .. 
$ 200,000 ..... ... ............... .. ........................ .......... . 
$ 200.000 .. .... .... .................... ................... ......... .. 
$ 450.000 ...... .. .. ...... ...... .. ........................... .. .... . .. 
$1.000.000 ............ .. ... .... ................. ..................... . 
$2,000,000 ..................... ................... .. ................. . 
$6.000,000 .. .. .. .. .. ... .. ...... ... ....................... .. ........ .. 

o c. A lump sum fee of $ _______ _ 

10.00% 
8.50% 
7.10% 
6.20% 
5.70% 
5.60% 
5.00% 
4.50% 
4.30% 

II. To allow the Engineer to sublet all of the services provided under Paragraphs [-d, e. f. g. 
h, i and n of "THE ENGINEER AGREES·, The OWner will pay the actual cost to the Engineer. 
The Cost to Engineer is to be verified by furnishing the Owner copies of paid invoices from the 
party doing the work. 

III. To pay for the services stipulated in Paragraph I-b, I and m of '"THE ENGINEER 
AGREES", a sum of money: 

Page 4 of 8 Rev. 2012 



(g] a. Based on the hourly rates stipulated below for personnel assigned to this project as 
payment in full to the Engineer for the actual time spent in providing these services, the 
hourly rates include profit. overhead, readiness-to-serve, Insurance, social security and 
retirement deductions. The classifications of the employees used in the work should be 
consistent with the employee classifications for the services performed. 

Grade Classification of Employee 
Principal 
Project Manager 
Project Engineer 
Senior Technician 
CAD Technician 
GIS Technician 
Technical Assistant 

Hourly Rate 
$141.00 - $155.00 
$115.00 - $141.00 
$100.00 - $116.00 
$ 95.00 - $145.00 
$ 90.00 - $108.00 
$ 65.00 - $ 71.00 
$ 40.00 - $ 65.00 

If the Engineer incurs and must pay hIs employees overtime at premium rates, the 
billable rate charged above for each respective employee so affected shall be increased by 
twenty-five percent (25%). 

The hourly rates itemized above shall be effective the date the parties, hereunto entering this 
Agreement, have affixed their hands and seals and shall remain in effect until December 31, 
2012. In event the services of the Engineer extend beyond that date, the hourly rates will be 
adjusted yearly by addendum to this Agreement to compensate for increases in the salary 
structure of the Engineer that are in effect at that time. 

o b. Equal to _____ percent of the final construction cost. 

IV. That payments due the Engineer for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement will 
be made as soon as practicable after the services have been performed, in accordance with the 
following schedule. 

a. Upon completion of preliminary design criteria, preliminary Plan layout and rough 
Estimates of Probable Cost based upon these Plans, thirty percent (30%) of the 
design fee as determined by the Estimate of Probable Cost. 

b. Upon completion of detailed Plans, Special Provisions, Proposals and Estimate 
of Cost - being the work required by Paragraphs I-a, c, d, e, f, 9, h, i and j of 
"THE ENGINEER AGREES" - to the satisfaction of the Owner, ninety percent 
(90%) of the total fee based on the above fee schedule and the approved 
Estimate of Probable Cost less any previous payments. 

c. Upon award of the Contract for the improvement by the Owner, one hundred 
percent (100%) of the total fee based on the above fee schedule and the 
awarded Contract cost, less any previous payments. 

d. Upon completion of the construction of the improvement, ninety percent (90%) of 
the fee due for services stipulated in Paragraphs I-I, m and n. 

e. Upon completion of all final reports required by the Owner and acceptance of the 
improvement, one hundred percent (100%) of the total fees due under this 
Agreement, less any previous payments. 

Page 5 of 8 Rev. 2012 



Partial payments, not to exceed ninety percent (90%) of the amount earned, may be made from 
time to time as the work progresses. 

V. That, should the improvement be abandoned at any time after the Engineer has 
performed any part of the services provided for in Paragraphs I-a and I-c, and prior to the 
completion of such services, the Owner shall reimburse the Engineer an amount which bears 
the same ratio to the total fee otherwise payable under this Agreement as the services actually 
rendered hereunder by the Engineer bear to the total services necessary for the full 
performance of this Agreement, such payment plus all reimbursable payments then due, shall 
be in full discharge of all rights of the Engineer under this Agreement. 

VI. That should the Owner require changes in any of the detailed Plans, Specifications or 
estimates (except for those required pursuant to Paragraph V of "THE ENGINEER AGREES") 
after they have been approved by the Owner, the ONner will pay the Engineer for such changes 
at the hourly rates noted in Paragraph 1\I(a) of the above, and for his sublet expenses as noted 
in Paragraph II above. It is understood that "changes" as used in this paragraph shall in no 
way relieve the Engineer of his responsibility to prepare a complete and adequate set of Plans. 

VII. That, should the completion of the improvement extend beyond the time limit given in the 
construction contract, the Owner will pay the Engineer, in addition to the fees provided herein, 
his cost incurred beyond such time limit - at the hourly rates noted in Paragraph \II(a) above, 
and or his sublet expenses as noted in Paragraph \I above. 

VIII. That, the Engineer makes no warranties, either expressed or implied, in connection with 
this Agreement or the services provided thereunder, and shall not be responsible for the 
Contractor's or subcontractors means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, timely 
performance, safety programs and precautions incident thereto, or construction, since they are 
solely the Contractor's rights and responsibilities under the Contract documents; and that the 
Engineer has no authority to stop work on behalf of the Owner, nor has any supervisory 
responsibilities. Nor shall the Engineer be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Owner 
provided that the Engineer has properly executed his duties. The Engineer shall not be 
responsible for the failure of the OWner, any architect, engineer, consultant, contractor or 
subcontractor to carry out their respective responsibilities in accordance with the project 
documents or any other agreement concerning this project. 

IX. That, since the Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, material and equipment, 
the estimate of probable construction cost Is not a guarantee of actual construction cost, but is 
the Engineer's professional opinion as to the probable cost of construction at the time of 
preparation of the estimate. 

X. That should the Owner require the Engineer to purchase insurance over and above the 
coverage normally carried by the Engineer and noted in Paragraph VIII of the "ENGINEER 
AGREES a

, or require that the Owner be named as an "additional insured" on the Engineer's 
policy, the Owner will reimburse the Engineer at his actual invoice cost for the additional 
insurance coverage requested. 

Page 6 of B Rell. 2012 



IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED, 

I. The laws goveming this Agreement shall be the laws of the State of Illinois. 

II. This Agreement may be terminated by the Owner upon giving notice in writing to the 
Engineer at his last known post office address. Upon such termination, the Engineer shall 
cause to be delivered to the Owner all drawings, Specifications, partial and completed estimates 
and data if any from traffic studies and soil survey, subsurface and sewer televising 
investigations with the understanding that all such material becomes the property of the Owner. 
Owner acknowledges that if conflicts exist between electronically transmitted documents and 
hard copy documents, the hard copy documents prevail. If the Agreement is terminated or the 
Contract for Construction has not been awarded one (1) year after the acceptance of the Plans 
by the Owner, the Engineer shall be paid for services completed and services partially 
completed, an amount which bears the same ratio to the total fee otherwise paid under this 
Agreement as the services actually rendered hereunder by the Engineer bear to the total 
services necessary for the full performance of this Agreement and such payment, plus all 
reimbursable payments then due, shall be in full discharge of all rights of the Engineer under 
this Agreement 

III. That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one (1) year after the 
acceptance of the Plans by the Owner, the OWner will pay the Engineer the balance of the 
engineering fee due to make one hundred percent (100%) of the total fees due in accordance 
with the terms of this Agreement, based on the Estimate of Probable Cost as prepared by the 
Engineer. 

Page 7 of 8 Rev. 2012 



EXECUTED BY THE OWNER, this __ day of August, 2012. 

ATTEST: 

CITY OF BERWYN 
6700 WEST 26TH STREET 
BERWYN, ILLINOIS 60402 

By: _______________ _ 

Printed 
Namemtle: Robert J. Levero. Mayor 

By: ______________ ___ 

Printed 
NamefTitle: Thomas J, pavlik. Clerk 

(8 E A L) 

•••••••••• 

EXECUTED BY THE ENGINEER, this ____ day of August, 2012. 

ATTEST: 

By: ____________________ _ 

Printed 
NamefTitle: John E. Fitzgerald. Secretary 

(8 EA L) 

FRANK NOVOTNY & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
825 MIDWAY DRIVE 
WlLLOWBROOK,ILUNOIS 60527 

By: ________________ _ 

Printed 
NamefTitle: James L. Calnkar. President 

Page 8 of 8 Rev. 2012 



The City of Berwyn 

:J/~ 
A Century of Progress with Pride 

9 August 2012 

To: Mayor Robert 1. Lovero 
Members of City Council 

Re: Commuter Facility Improvement Funding Agreement 

Mayor and Members of City Council: 

Evan K. Summers 
Project Operations 

Manager 

The City of Berwyn has been approved for federal funding in the amount of $392,000 through the 
Federal Transit Administration (FT A). The funding is designated for projects related to the transit 
facilities along the BNSF corridor including the Depot Station, the Harlem Station and the parking deck. 

We aim to accomplish several ongoing priorities with this money such as proactively maintaining 
infrastructure and reducing the City's overall spending on energy. Individual projects will include: 

• Roof repairs 
• High efficiency HV AC upgrades 
• Retrofitting for energy efficient lighting 
• Tuck pointing of stonework 
• Installation of alarm systems 

The details of these projects are included with the attached agreement which will need to be executed 
prior to work commencing. 

Respectfully considere<i for your consideration, 

?'~ 
Evan K. Summers 
Projects Operations Manager 

6700 West 26'· Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788·2660 Fax: (708) 788·2567 www.berwyn.i1.gov 



COMMUTER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT FUNDING AGREEMENT 

PART I 

Between 

THE COMMUTER RAIL DIVISION OF THE 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

and 

CITY OF BERWYN 

CONTRACT NO. ___ _ 

PROJECT NO. 4492 



THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the Commuter Rail Division of the Regional 
Transportation Authority, a division of an Illinois municipal corporation ("eRD"), created under the 
Regional Transportation Authority Act, 70 ILCS 3615/1.01 et seq., and the City of Berwyn, a 
municipal corporation created under the laws of Illinois ("Municipality"). 

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT 

The Municipality desires to undertake a public transportation capital project ("Project") and 
has made letter application to the CRD for funding for the Project. 

The Project has been approved for funding by the CRD Board of Directors. 

In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, this Agreement is made to 
provide financial assistance to the Municipality in the fonn of pass through funds pursuant to a 
United States Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration ("ITA") Section 5309 
Bus and Bus Facility Eannark, to set forth the terms and conditions upon which the funds will be 
provided, and to set forth the agreement ofthe Parties as to the manner in which the Project will be 
undertaken, completed and used. 

ITEM 1. DEFINITIONS 

As used in this Commuter Facility Improvement Funding Agreement, the following tenns, 
when capitalized, shall have the following meanings: 

Agreement -- Parts I and II of this Commuter Facility Improvement Funding Agreement and 
all exhibits and appendices hereto as from time to time modified or amended pursuant to the 
tenns hereof. 

Approved Project Budget -- As defined in Section 8 of Part II. 

BNSF-- Burlington Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company, a Delaware corporation. 

Commuter Service -- Public Transportation Services by rail within the Metropolitan Region 
as defined in the Regional Transportation Authority Act. 

CRD B The Commuter Rail Division of the Regional Transportation Authority as established 

by amendments to the Regional Transportation Authority Act, November 9, 1983. 

Eligible Costs - Expenditures made by Municipality in carrying out the Project which are 
reimbursable under the terms of Section 10 of Part II. 

fndemnitees- The Commuter Rail Division of the Regional Transportation Authority 
(Metra), the Regional Transportation Authority (RTA), Northeast Illinois Regional 
Commuter Railroad Corporation (NIRCRC), and any federal and/or state agency providing 

Berwyn rUl1ding Agreement 050412 2 



funds to this project, and all of their respective directors, administrators, officers, employees, 
agents, successors, and assigns. 

Metropolitan Region -- As defined in the Illinois RTA Act. 

Municipality -- An Illinois municipal corporation as named in Part I. 

NIRCRC-- The Northeast Il1inois Regional Conunuter Rail Corporation (d/b/a "Metra") 

Net Project Cost -- The sum of the Eligible Costs (as set forth in Section lOaf Part II) 
incurred in perfonnance of the Work on the Project, including Work done by Municipality, 
less refunds, rebates, or other items of value received by Municipality which have the effect 
of reducing the cost actually incurred, and proceeds, if any, from the sale of scrap and 
replaced facilities. 

Plans -- As defined in Section 3 of Part II. 

Premises -- Property owned or controlled by the Municipality upon which the Project 
Facilities shall be constructed and maintained. 

Project Account -- As defined in Section 9 of Part II. 

Project Facilities -- Any facilities, equipment, or real property purchased, acquired, 
constructed, improved, renovated orrefurbished as part of the Project. Project Facilities are 
also referred to as Improvements. 

Project Funds -- An amount not to exceed the sum set forth in Item 3 of Part I. 

RTA -- The Regional Transportation Authority. 

Total Project Cost-- The total of all line items shown in Exhibit B of Part II. 

Use Term -- As defined in Section 28 of Part n. 

Work -- The work to be performed under this Project as described in Item 2, Part I hereof and 
further described in Exhibit A, entitled "Grove Avenue Corridor Improvements Berwyn, 
ll1inois Project Sununary," attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 

ITEM 2. THE PROJECT 

The Municipality agrees to undertake and complete the Project and to provide for the use of 
Project Facilities and equipment as described in the Approved Project Budget, attached to and made 
a part of this Agreement as Exhibit B, and in accordance with this Agreement and all applicable 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 3 



laws. The Project, which is to be more particularly described in the plans, specifications and 
schedules set forth in Part II generally includes, but is not limited to: 

The Harlem Station and Berwyn Station along the BNSF Metra Commuter Rail line as well 
as the nearby City of Berwyn Municipal Parking Structure will be equipped with wireless fire alann 
systems and energy efficient lighting upgrades. Additionally, the Harlem Station and the Berwyn 
Station will undergo masonry rehabilitation, roof rehabilitation, and be retrofitted with high 
efficiency HV AC systems. Enhancing these facilities will improve transit access, increase ridership, 
and increase transit revenues, while improving public space, safety, and energy efficiency for years to 
come. 

ITEM 3. AMOUNT OF FUNDING 

In accordance with its approved capital program, CRD agrees to make funding available to 
the Municipality in the form of pass through funds pursuant to a United States Department of 
Transportation, Federal Transit Administration ("Ff A") Section 5309 Bus and Bus Facility Earmark 
in an amount not to exceed Three Hundred Ninety-Two Thousand Dollars ($392,000) as shown on 
Exhibit B. 

In no event, shall CRD be liable for the payment of funds that have not been authorized by 
and received from the FT A. The total amount provided by the CRD under this Agreement shall not 
exceed the actual Net Project Cost. CRD is not liable for any amount in excess of the amount of the 
FT A funds available to pass through. 

The Municipality agrees that it will provide, or cause to be provided, the cost of project 
elements which are not approved for CRD participation. 

ITEM 4. DOCUMENTS FORMING THIS AGREEMENT 

The Parties agree that this Agreement with all of its Parts and Exhibits constitutes the entire 
Agreement between the Parties hereto, that there are no agreements or understandings, implied or 
expressed, except as specifically set forth in the Agreement and that all prior arrangements and 
understandings in this connection are merged into and contained in this Agreement. This Agreement 
may only be amended in writing, signed by both parties. The Parties hereto further agree that this 
Agreement consists of Part I, entitled "Commuter Facility Improvement Funding Agreement", 
together with Part II, entitled "Commuter Facility Improvement Funding Agreement -General Terms 
and Conditions," Exhibit A, entitled "Grove Avenue Corridor Improvements Berwyn, illinois Project 
Summary," Exhibit B, entitled "Approved Project Budget," Exhibit C, entitled "Project Sign", all of 
which are by this reference specifically incorporated herein. 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 4 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be made 
effective and executed as of the __ day of • 20-, by their 
respective duly authorized officials. 

THE REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
THE COMMUTER RAIL DIVISION OF 
AUTHORITY: 

By: _ ____________ _ 

Alexander 0 Clifford 
Executive Director/CEO 

Berwyn FlIndil'lg Agreement 050412 

CITY OF BERWYN: 

By: -------------- ---
Its: - ------- --- ----------

5 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) 

COUNTY OF ) 

Before me, , a Notary Public within and for the State and County 
aforesaid, personally appeared , with whom I am personally acquainted 
and who, upon hislher oath acknowledged himselflherself to be the , of 
the City of Berwyn. an Illinois municipal corporation, and that they as such, being authorized to do so, 
executed the foregoing instrument for the purpose therein contained by signing and attesting the same, Witness 
my hand and official seal on the _day of , 20_, 

Notary Public 

Berwyn funding Agreement 050412 6 



STATE OF ILLINOIS) 
) 

COUNTY OF COOK) 

Before me, , a Notary Public within and for the State and County 
aforesaid., personally appeared Alexander D Clifford with whom I am personally acquainted and who, upon his 
oath acknowledged himself to be the Executive Director/CEO of the Commuter Rail Division of the Regional 
Transportation Authority, and as such, being authorized to do so, executed the foregoing instrument for the 
purpose therein contained by signing and attesting the same. Witness my hand and official seal at Chicago, 
Illinois on the __ day of , 20_ 

Notary Public 

Berwyn FWlding Agreement 051)412 7 



CERTIFICATE OF MUNICIPALITY'S ATTORNEY 

I, , acting as Attorney for the Municipality, do hereby certify 
that I have examined this Agreement and the proceedings taken by the Municipality relating thereto, 
and that the execution of the Agreement by the Municipality has been duly authorized by the 
Municipality's action dated (certified ~py of which is attached), and 
that the execution of this Agreement is in all respects due and proper and in accordance with ap
plicable Federal, State, and local laws, funding conditions and regulations pertaining to this 
Agreement and further that, in my opinion, said Agreement constitutes a legal and binding obligation 
of the Municipality in accordance with the terms thereof. [further certify that to the best of my 
knowledge there is no legislation or litigation pending or threatened which might affect the 
performance of the Project in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 

Dated this ___ day of ________ ....), 20_ 

Signature 

Title 

City of Berwyn, Municipality 

Be!wyn Funding Agreement 050412 8 



COMMUTER FACILITY IMPROVEMENT FUNDING AGREEMENT 

PART II 

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

Between 

THE COMMUTER RAIL DIVISION OF THE 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

and 

CITY OF BERWYN 

CONTRACT NO. ___ _ 

PROJECT NO. 4492 

Betwyn Funding Agreement 050412 1 



1. DEFINITIONS. The tenns capitalized in Part II Commuter Improvement 
Agreement General Tenns and Conditions shall have the same definitions as found in Part I, Item 1. 

2. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS. Municipality shall commence, carry on, and 
complete the Project with all practicable dispatch, in a SOWld, economical, and efficient manner, and 
in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

3. SUBMISSION OF PROCEEDINGS, CONTRACTS AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS. MWlicipality and CRD hereby agree that the documents governing the Work shall 
be the designs, surveys, plans, estimates, working drawings, schedules and specifications hereinafter 
called "Plans." Municipality shall submit all requests for proposals, bid documents, contracts and 
Plans necessary for the completion of the Work to CRD for approval. After CRD approval is 
received., no change shall be made in such documents without the prior written consent of CRD. 

4. CHANGED CONDITIONS AFFECTING PERFORMANCE. Municipalityshall 
immediately noti fy CRD of any change in conditions or local law , or of any other event, which may 
significantly affect its ability to perfonn or complete the Project in accordance with the provisions of 
this Agreement. 

5. NO OBLIGATIONS TO THIRD PARTIES. Neither CRD nor any state or federal 
funding agency shan be subject to any obligations or liabilities of contractors of the Municipality or 
their subcontractors or any other person not a party to this Agreement without CRD's specific 
consent. This limitation shall apply despite the fact that CRD concurred in or approved of the award 
of any contract, subcontract or the solicitation thereof. Unless expressly authorized in writing by 
CRD, the Municipality agrees to refrain from executing any transfer of title, lease, hen, pledge, 
mortgage, encumbrance, contract, funding anticipation note, alienation, or other obligation that in 
any way would affect CRD=s interest in any Project Facilities or obligating itself in any manner to 

any third party with respect to Project Facilities 

6. PURSUANT TO FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL LAW. 

(a) In the performance of its obligations pursuantto this Agreement, the Municipality and 
its contractors shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and local law, including 
the applicable grant provisions of any Master Grant Agreement signed between CRD and a state or 
federal funding agency. All limits and standards set forth in this Agreement that are to be observed 
in the performance of the Project are minimum requirements and shall not affect the application of 
more restrictive standards. Specifically, if funding is provided, in whole or in part, by the illinois 
Department of Transportation (AlDOT@), this Agreement is a Cooperative Agreement as defined in 

the IDOT Public Transportation Capital Improvement Grant Manual, dated September, 1982, and is 
subject to IDOT review and concurrence procedures applicable to such agreements, including the 
applicability of third-party contract requirements to subcontractors of Municipality and CRD. 

Berwyn FWlding Agreement 050412 2 



(b) The Municipality agrees that the most recent of such state and federal requirements will 
govern the administration of this Agreement at any particular time, except if there is sufficient 
evidence in the Agreement of a contrary intent. Such contrary intent shall be evidenced by a letter 
signed by CRD, the language of which modifies or otherwise conditions the text of a particular 
provision of this Agreement. Likewise, new state and federal laws, regulations, policies and 
administrative practices may be established after the date the Agreement has been executed and may 
apply to this Agreement. To achieve compliance with changing government requirements, the 
Municipality agrees to include in all third party contracts financed with government assistance 
specific notice that government requirements may change and the changed requirements will apply to 
the Project as required. Specifically, the Municipality and its contractors agree to administer the 
Project in accordance with the most recent federal and state provisions, including all applicable 
OMB or USDOT Circulars and regulations. 

7. PERMITS. Municipality shall obtain all necessary permits, licenses, consents and 
other approvals for the performance of the Work. 

8. APPROVED PROJECT BUDGET. A budget shall be prepared by CRD and 
submitted to Municipality. Municipality shall carry out the Project and shall incur obligations 
against and make disbursements of Project Funds only in conformity with the latest Approved 
Project Budget shown in Exhibit B (UProject Budget"). The Project Budget may be revised in 
writing from time to time in accordance with guidelines established by CRD. 

9. PROJECf ACCOUNTS. 

(a) MWlicipality shall establish and maintain as a separate set of accounts, or as an integral 
part of its current accounting scheme, accounts for the Project ("Project Account"). 

(b) Municipality shall appropriately record in the Project Account and deposit in a bank or 
trust company, which is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, all payment 
installments received by it from CRD pursuant to this Agreement and all other funds provided for, 
accruing to, or otherwise received on account of the Project. CRD payments and other funds are 
herein collectively referred to as "Project Funds". 

10. ELIGIBLE COSTS. 

(a) Expenditures incurred by Municipality shall be reimbursable under the Project as 
Eligible Costs to the extent they meet all of the requirements set forth below. They must: 

1. Be made in conformance with the final Project Budget and all other provisions 
of this Agreement; 

2. Be necessary in order to accomplish the Project; 

3. Be reasonable in amount for the goods or services purchased; 
Berwyn Fllllding Agreement 050412 3 



4. Be actual net costs to Municipality (i.e., the price paid minus any refunds, 
rebates, or other items of value received by Municipality which have the effect ofreducing the 
cost actually incurred). Local fees which would normally be applicable to the Work shall be 
waived by Municipality and shall not be considered Eligible Costs hereunder; 

5. Be incurred (and be for work perfonned) after the date of this Agreement, 
unless specific written authorization from the CRD to the contrary is received; 

6. Be satisfactorily documented; and 

7. Be treated uniformly and consistently under accounting principles and 
procedures approved or prescribed by the CRD for Municipality and those approved or 
prescribed by Municipality for its contractors. 

(b) Expenditures incurred by the Municipality which exceed the amount budgeted for a 
specific project line item (i.e., project element, job order or item) may be reimbursable as Eligible 
Costs at the time of completion ofthe project line item to the extent that those expenditures meet all 
of the requirements below: 

1. Written justification to CRD is provided to explain the reason for the over 
expenditure and why that over expenditure was not anticipated prior to exceeding the budget 
for the project line item; 

2. The budget for the project line item covers the full scope of the project line 
item, i.e., the budget of the project line item is intended to be adequate for the completion of 
the project line item (including, but not limited to, all engineering, material procurement, 
construction); 

3. There are sufficient unspent funds in the Project Budget which may be 
reallocated to the budget of the project line item; 

4. The funds remaining in the Project Budget after reallocation of the funds to the 
budget of the project line item are sufficient to provide for the uncompleted portions of all 
project line items; 

5. The Total Project Cost for the CRD funding shall not be exceeded. 

6. The expenditures confonn with the applicable state and/or federal grant 
requirements. 

( c) In the event that it may be impractical to determine exact costs of indirect or service 
functions, Eligible Costs will include such allowances for these costs as may be approved in writing 
by the CRD. 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 4 



11. REQUESTS FOR PAYMENT BY MUNICIPALITY. Unless CRn provides for 
another payment method, Municipality may make monthly requests for payment of preliminary 
Eligible Costs, and the CRD will honor such requests in the manner set forth in this Section. In 
order to receive CRn payments, Municipality must: 

(a) Completely execute and submit to CRD a monthly requisition approved by CRD; 

(b) Submit to CRD an explanation of the purposes and copies of invoices for which costs 
have been incurred to date; 

(c) Have submitted all financial and progress reports currently required by CRD; and 

(d) Have received approval by CRD for all budget revisions required. to cover all costs to 
be incurred by the end of the requisition period. 

12. PAYMENT BY THE CRD. Upon receipt ofthe completed requisition form and the 
accompanying information in satisfactory form, the CRD shall process the requisition and the CRD 
shall then reimburse preliminary Eligible Costs incurred by Municipality within 60 days of the date 
upon which such payment requisition form was timely received by it, if Municipality is in 
compliance with its obligations pursuant to the Agreement. If all obligations have been met, CRn 
shall reimburse apparent allowable costs incurred by MWlicipalityup to the maximum amount of the 
CRD funding payable. Municipality shall submit invoices for actual costs incurred within each 
month within 45 days after submission of each month's preliminary Eligible Costs, and succeeding 
payments by CRD shall be adjusted to actual costs. Reimbursement of any cost pursuant to this 
Section shall not constitute a final determination by the CRD of the allowability of such cost and 
shall not constitute a waiver of any violation of the terms of this Agreement committed by 
Municipality. The CRD will make a final determination as to the allowability only after a final audit 
of the Project has been conducted. 

13. DOCUMENTATION OF PROJECT COSTS. All costs charged to the Project, 
including any approved services contributed by Municipality or others, shall be supported by 
properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers evidencing in detail the 
nature and property of the charges. 

14. AUDIT AND INSPECTION. Municipality shall permit, and shall require its 
contractors to permit, CRD, R T A, or any other state or federal agency providing funds, or their 
designated agents, authorized to perform such audit and inspection, to inspect all work, materials, 
payrolls, and other data and records with regard to the Project, and to audit the books, records, and 
accounts of Munici pali ty and its contractors with regard to the Project. CRn also may require the 
MWlicipalityto furnish, at any time prior to close-out of the Project, audit reports prepared according 
to generally accepted accounting principles at MWlicipality's expense. Municipality agrees to 
promptly comply with recommendations contained in CRD's final audit report. 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 5 



15. DISALLOWED COSTS. In detennining the amount ofthe CRD funding, CRD will 
exclude all Project costs incurred by Municipality prior to the date of this Agreement, or another date 
specifically authorized by CRD; costs incurred by Municipality which are not provided for in the 
Project Budget except as otherwise provided under Section IO(b); and costs attributable to goods or 
services received under a contract or other arrangement which has not been concurred in or approved 
in writing by the CRD. 

16. RIGHT OF CRD TO TERMINATE. Upon written notice to Municipality, CRD 
reserves the right to suspend or terminate all or part of the financial assistance herein provided for 
convenience of either party or if Municipality is, or has been, in violation of the terms of this 
Agreement. Any failure to make progress which significantly endangers substantial performance of 
the Project within a reasonable time shall be deemed to be a violation of the terms of this Agreement. 
Termination of any part of the Agreement will not invalidate obligations properly incurred by 
Municipality and concurred in by CRD prior to the date of termination, to the extent they are 
noncancellable. The acceptance of a remittance by CRD of any or all Project Funds previously 
received by Municipality or the closing out of CRD financial participation in the Project shall not 
constitute a waiver of any claim which CRD may otherwise have arising out of this Agreement. In 
the event of termination of this Agreement dwing the construction phase for reasons other than 
violation of the terms hereof by Municipality, CRD shall determine the most appropriate course of 
action to be taken with respect to the Project. 

17. PROJECT SETTLEMENT AND CLOSE-OUT. Upon receipt of notice of 
successful completion of the Project or upon termination by CRD, Municipality shall cause a final 
audit to be performed of the Project to determine the allowability of costs incurred and make 
settlement of the CRD funding. IfCRD has made payments to Municipality in excess of the Total 
Project Cost of such CRD funding or if CRD has advanced funds pursuant to requisitions under 
Section 12 which exceed the Net Project Cost, Municipality shall promptly remit such excess funds 
to CRD. Project close-out occurs when CRD notifies Municipality and forwards the final payment 
or when an appropriate refund of CRD funds has been received from Municipality and 
acknowledged by CRD. Funds which have not been dispersed to the Municipality will automatically 
revert to CRD upon completion of the Project. 

Close-out shall be subject to any continuing obligations imposed on Municipality by this 
agreement or contained in the final notification or acknowledgment from CRD. 

18. CONTRACI'S AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT. Municipality shall execute all 
contracts and perform all project management activities in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement and Municipality's funding application. 

19. COMPETITIVE BIDDING. Municipality agrees to give full opportunity for free, 
open, and competitive bidding in accordance with federal and state statutes, as applicable, and the 
Municipality's established rules, regulations and ordinances for each contract to be let by 
Municipality that requires constructing or furnishing of any materials, supplies, or equipment to be 
paid for with Project Funds and Municipality shall give such publicity in its advertisements or calls 
Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 6 



for bids for each contract as will provide adequate competition. The award for each such contract 
shall be made by Municipality as soon as practicable to the lowest responsive and qualified bidder or 
as otherwise specifically approved by CRD. Contracts for the purchase of land, real estate, transit 
property, or other real or personal property not normally acquired through competitive bidding are 
specifically excluded from the requirements of this Section, except that contracts for professional and 
consulting services shall be awarded only after competitive solicitation of proposals. 

20. SETTLEMENT OF THIRD PARTY CONTRACT DISPUTES OR BREACHES. 
CRD has a vested interest in the settlement of disputes, defaults, or breaches involving any 
CRD-assisted third party contracts. CRD retains a right to a proportionate share, based on the 
percentage ofthe CRD share committed to the Project, of any proceeds derived from any third party 
recovery. Therefore, Municipality shall avail itself of all legal rights available under any third party 
contract. Municipality shall notify CRD of any current or prospective litigation pertaining to any 
compromise or settlement of the Municipality's claim(s) involving any third party contract, before 
making CRD assistance available to support that settlement. If the third party contract contains a 
liquidated damages provision. any liquidated damages recovered shall be credited to the project 
account involved unless CRD permits otherwise. 

21. ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACf - SUBCONTRACTORS. The MWlicipality 
agrees that no contract for construction work or professional or consulting services of any kind in 
connection with the Project shall be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet, or otherwise disposed of 
without the prior written consent of CRD. 

22. CONSTRUCTION PROJECfS - SIGNS. When a Project involves construction 
work, the Municipality shall cause to be erected and maintained at the construction site, signs 
satisfactory to CRD during construction and in accordance with the specifications set forth on 
Exhibit C, attached to and made a part of this Agreement, identifying the Project and indicating that 
CRD is participating in the development of the Project. 

23. LABOR LA W COMPLIANCE. Municipality agrees to comply with all applicable 
federal laws, state laws and regulations including, but not limited to, such laws and regulations 
relating to minimum wages to be paid to employees, limitations upon the employment of minors, 
minimum fair wage standards for minors, payment of wages due employees, and health and safety of 
employees. Municipality also agrees to require any contractor doing construction work or 
perfonningprofessional or consulting service in connection with the Project to agree to adhere to the 
requirements of this Section. Municipality agrees to pay its employees, if any. all rightful salaries, 
medical benefits, pensions and social security benefits pursuant to applicable labor agreements and 
ferleral and state statutes, and Municipality further agrees to make a11 required withholdings and 
deposits therefor. In addition, Municipality agrees to require all contractors and subcontractors for 
this project to pay their employees all their rightful salaries, medical benefits, pensions and social 
security benefits pursuant to applicable labor agreements and federal and state statutes and to further 
require withholdings and deposits therefor. Such requirements shall be included by the Municipality 
in all its contracts and agreements with contractors and subcontractors for this Project. CRD 
reserves the right to withhold final payment for this Project in the event that it is notified that the 
BctWy11 FllJlding Agreement 050412 7 



Municipality or any contractor and subcontractor has refused to pay any employee hislher salary, 
medical benefits, pension or social security benefits or to make the required withholdings and 
deposits therefor, until such time as the CRO is satisfied that the Municipality, its contractors and 
subcontractors have made all such payments, withholdings, or deposits. Upon request, Municipality 
shall provide CRD, and cause any or all of its contractors and subcontractors to provide CRD, access 
to all books and records pertaining to payments, withholdings, or deposits of the Municipality or the 
Municipality's contractors or subcontractors relating to employees' salaries, medical benefits, and 
pension or social security benefits. Any such inspection by the CRD shall occur on regular business 
days and during normal working hours. 

24. PREMISES. 

(a) The Municipality agrees that the Premises, upon which the Improvements are being 
installed, is owned, leased or otherwise controlled by the Municipality. 

(b) The Municipality agrees that the Premises upon which the Parking Facility is to be 
located is owned by the Municipality and will be provided at no cost to the CRD. 

25. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Municipality shall comply with 775 
ILCS 512-101 et seq. 

26. ACCEPT ANCE OF PROJECT FACILITIES. Upon completion of the Work, 
Municipality and CRD shall conduct a joint inspection of the Project Facilities. 

27. MAINTENANCE, USE AND OPERATION OF PROJECT FACILITIES. 
Municipality shall maintain the Project Facilities, or cause them to be maintained, in a safe and 
operable condition throughout the term of this Agreement. The specific maintenance, use and 
operation requirements for the Fences shall be in accordance with the provisions of the Lease. 

28. CONTINUANCE OF SERVICES. Municipality agrees that the property upon 
which the Improvements are constructed ("Premises") shall be used to enhance the commuter 
railway station facility. Municipality agrees to continue to provide, either directly or by contract, as 
the case may be, the administrative and maintenance services described herein for 40 years from the 
execution of this Agreement ("Use Term"). 

29. RETENTION OF RECORDS AND INSPECTION. Municipality shall keep 
satisfactory records with regard to the use of the Project Facilities for three years after project close
out, or longer if required by state or federal agencies providing funds. Specifically, if state funds are 
used, Municipality shall fully comply with the Five Year Record Retention requirements and the 
burdens of proof specified in the Grant Agreement executed between CRD and the Illinois 
Department of Transportation. Such requirements are specifically incorporated herein by reference if 
required. Municipality shall submit to CRD upon request such information as is required in order to 
assure compliance with the terms of this Agreement and shall immediately notify eRD in all cases 
where Project Facilities are used in a manner substantially different from that intended by this 
Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 8 



Agreement. CRD and Municipality shall conduct a yearly joint inspection of the Project Facilities to 
assure compliance with the tenns of this Agreement. 

30. INDEMNIFICATION AND WAIVER. To the extent pennitted by law, Municipality 
agrees to protect, indemnify, defend and forever save and keep harmless the Indemnitees as defined 
in Part I, Item 1. 

31 . OWNERSHIP. CRD shall own the Improvements constructed on the Premises with 
CRD funds (Almprovements@). In the event this Agreement is terminated for any reason by 

Municipality and CRD has not defaulted under the terms and conditions of this Agreement or 
Municipality defaults under the terms and conditions of the Agreement and, as a result of such 
Municipality default, CRD is forced to tenninate this Agreement and the Improvements are taken out 
of commuter service, CRD shall be compensated by Municipality for the Improvements. 
Compensation shall be based upon the remainder of the period beginning on the date which the 
Improvements are first used in the facilitation of commuter services and ending on the later of the 
expiration of: (a) forty (40) years from such date; or (b) ifsuch actual useful life (as determined by 
CRD in its sole discretion) is more than forty (40) years, the end of the actual useful life of such 
Improvements ("Use Period"). In either (a) or (b), compensation shall be in an amount equal to the 
average of the original cost and the replacement cost of each such Improvement taken out of service 
because oftermination, reduced by that percentage of the Use Period which has expired before such 
tennination. Such payment shall be made in full within ninety (90) days after Municipality's 
tennination of this Agreement or interest at a rate of one-halfpercent (2%) per month shall accrue on 

any unpaid balances due from the date payment is due until paid. In the event this Agreement is 
terminated for any reason by CRD and Municipality has not defaulted under the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement or CRD defaults under the terms and conditions of this Agreement and, as a result 
of such CRD default, Municipality is forced to terminate this Agreement, Municipality shall not be 
required to compensate CRD for the Improvements; provided, however, that CRD may, at its sale 
discretion and cost, remove the Improvements including, without limitation, lighting fixtures, 
benches, and railings or transfer ownership (by quit claim or bill of sale) of the Improvements to the 
Municipality. The Municipality shall accept the transfer ofthe Improvements in Aas is® condition. 

Project Facilities located on the Premises shall belong to CRD. 

32. CONSTRUCTION OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS. Municipality shall maintain the Project Facilities in the same way as 
Municipality maintains similar municipal facilities throughout the Use Term. 

33. LIENS. Municipality shall not cause any of the Project Facilities to become subject to 
liens or encumbrances of any kind. If any such lien shall be filed on property of CRD by 
Municipality or any contractor, subcontractor or supplier of Municipality, the Municipality shall 
promptly take such steps as may be required to have the lien released and shall provide evidence 
thereof to CRD. CRD agrees to notify the Municipality of any lien of which CRD may become 
aware. 

Inrwyn Funding Agreement 050412 9 



34. NON-COLLUSION. Municipality warrants that it has not paid and agrees not to pay 
any bonus, commission, fee, or gratuity for the purpose of obtaining any approval of its application 
for any grant pursuant to this Agreement. No CRD officer or employee, or member of any unit of 
local government which contributes to the Project Funds shall be admitted to any share or part of this 
Agreement or to any benefit arising therefrom. 

35. MUNICIPALITY'S WARRANTIES. Municipality agrees to initiate and 
consummate all actions necessary to enable it to enter into this Agreement, as evidenced by its 
"Certificate of Municipality's Attorney" attached to and made a part of Part I of this Agreement. 

36 SEVERABILITY. CRD and Municipality agree that if any provision of this 
Agreement is held invalid for any reason whatsoever, the remaining provisions shall not be affected 
thereby if such remainder would then continue to conform to the purposes, terms and requirements of 
applicable law. 

37. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT. Municipality agrees thatthis Agreement shall 
not be assigned, transferred, conveyed, sublet or otherwise disposed of without the prior written 
consent of CRD. 

38. AMENDMENT. CRD and Municipality agree that no change or modification to 
this Agreement or any Exhibits or Attachments hereto, shall be of any force or effect unless such 
amendment is dated, reduced to writing. executed by both parties, and attached to and made a part of 
this Agreement. No work shall be commenced and no costs or obligations incurred in consequence 
of any amendment to this Agreement or any attachments hereto unless and until such amendment has 
been executed and made a part of this Agreement and the Project Budget has been amended to 
conform thereto. 

39. TITLES. Municipality and CRD agree that the titles of the items of this 
Agreement, hereinabove set forth, are inserted for convenience of identification only and shall not be 
considered for any other purpose. 

40. AGREEMENT PERIOD. The terms of this Agreement shall begin as of the date 
hereof and shall end upon the completion of all obligations hereunder. 

41. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the 
internal laws of the State ofl111n01s. 

42. NOTICES. All notices, demands, elections, and other instruments required or 
permitted to be given or made by either Party upon the other under the terms of this Agreement or 
any statute shall be in writing. Such communications shall be deemed to have been sufficiently 
served if sent by certified or registered mail with proper postage prepaid, hand delivered or sent by 
facsimile transmission, with proof of successful transmission sent by regular mail by CRD or 
Munici pali ty at the respecti ve addresses shown below or to such other party or address as either Party 
may from time to time furnish to the other in writing. 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 10 



(a) Notices to Metra shall be sent to: 
Commuter Rail Division 
547 W. Jackson Boulevard 
Chicago, Illinois 60661 
Attn: Director, Real Estate and Contract Management 
Phone: (312) 322-6696 
Fax: (312) 322-6698 

(b) Notices to Municipality shall be sent to: 
City of Berwyn 
6700 E. 261h Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
Attn: City Clerk 
Phone: (708) 788-2660 
Fax: (708) 788-2675 

Such notices, demands, elections and other instruments shall be considered delivered to recipient on 
the second business day after deposit in the U.S. Mail, on the day of delivery ifhand delivered or on 
the first business day after successful transmission if sent by facsimile transmission. 

43. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several 
counterparts, each of which so executed shall be deemed to be an original, and such counterparts 
together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

44. EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. Municipality agrees that the Funds for this Project 
must be expended upon approved Project elements within thirty-six (36) months ofexecution of this 
Agreement. Unless otherwise specified in writing by CRD, all unexpended Grant Funds will 
automatically revert to CRD upon the expiration of this thirty-six (36) month time period. 

Berwyn Funding Agreement 050412 11 



EXHIBIT A 
Depiction of the Work to be Performed under this Agreement 

Benvyn Funding Agreement 050412 

EXHIBITB 
Approved Project Budget 

EXHIBITC 
Project Sign 

12 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

COMMUTER FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
BERWYN, IWNOIS 

PROJECT SIi!JMMAR~ 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

The City is currently planning Improvements to two intermodal transit facilities along the BNSF Metra 
Commuter Rail line In its Downtown Depot District. The two Intermodal transit facilities are: 1) the Berwyn (Oak 
Park Avenue) station filcilltles, which include a munlclpally~owned commuter parking structure for Metra 
customers, and 2) the Harlem Avenue station. 

The proposed transit facility improvements will include energy efficient lighting upgrades and all three 
of the above transit facilities will be equipped with wireless fire alarm systems. Additionally, the Harlem Station 
and the Berwyn Station will undergo brick work, roof repairs and be retrofitted with high efficiency HVAC 
systems. The City will also install a wireless alarm system as well as an energy-efficient lighting upgrade In the 
commuter parking structure. Enhancing these intermodal facilities will improve transit access, Increase 
ridership, and Increase transit revenues, while improving public space, safety and energy efficiency for years to 
come. The Improvements will also enhance economic vitality along the commercial district, create jobs, 
Increase property values and activity In the area, Improve public spaces, and Improve area aesthetics. 

Prepared By: 

Robert P. Schiller 
Director of Public Works 

I Public Works Drift 8awyn.lDiDois 60402..()7Ql Tdc:phonc (708)749-6510 FtJa (708) 749-9501 _.bcrwyn.il.gav 



(.) 
~ en 
~ c 
.- C) .c .-
><tJ'J 
w 

RED background 
WHITE 1I!!IIII!!Iring 
(1\ allcs) 

WHITE background 
BLUE 'elll!!lring 

BLUE background 
WIiITE '''Ul'lrlng 

! . 
16" 

10" 

10" 

--1' 0
11--1 7' 0" ---------------- ---------t 

fEDERAL TRANSIT 
ADM'IN/STRAT/ON PROJECT 

Metra 
ImpmvomDn'5 Sponsored by: 

NOr1heast illinois Regional Commuler Railroad Corporation, DIBIA Melr&) 
Regional Transportalion Authorily (RTA) ~ 

~ ArA P",." No. ~ 

I 7'0" 1- ''a· 

LII\hlrtn~' Futura Bcld italic (top) 
Fulura aold (ceflted 
Fu'urll Deml Bold lbollom I 

RTA lOCiJot Black cln:hI, rev.~ 
ow .hlt I!!I HI n enI 

4'0" 



The City of Berwyn 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

8 August 2012 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
Members of City Council 

Re: State Comptroller's Office - Local Debt Recovery Program 

Evan K. Summers 
Project Operations 

Manager 

The State of Illinois Comptroller has recently rolled out a new program called the Local Debt Recovery Program 
(LDRP). The program provides a vehicle for municipalities, counties and other units of local government to bring 
in needed revenue without raising taxes or increasing fees. 

How the program works: 
• Select debts that are unpaid and owed to the City will be submitted to the Comptroller's Office. 
• Prior to the Comptroller issuing a state tax refund, vendor, retirement or payroll check, the amount owed 

to the local government will be deducted and deposited in the Comptroller Debt Recovery Trust Fund. 
• The debtor will be provided with a written notice of the action and has 60 days to protest the deduction 

with the Office of the Comptroller. 
• If no protest is made at the end of the 60 day period, the amount owed will be transferred to the local unit 

of government. 

Several aspects of the LDRP require significant data manipulation and technical capabilities. During staffs due 
diligence of the LDRP, it was determined that it would be far more cost effective and practical to bring a third 
party administrator onboard to assist in the program. 

XSELL Technologies is a Chicago-based company that specializes in data oriented applications. XSELL will 
provide backend capabilities to the City for the purposes complying with the strict rules set forth by the State 
Comptroller's Office. Beyond providing rote backend data management services, XSELL also employs a 
proprietary data smoothing software that will increase the City's match rate within the Comptroller's database. 

Through negotiations, the City of Berwyn will be able to enlist the services of XSELL Technologies by paying 
them 10% of the revenue that is recovered through the program. Furthermore, the City will not have to provide any 
upfront money or setup costs. 

Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that Council approve the attached ordinance and thereby authorize the execution of the IGA 
with the Comptroller's Office and contract with XSELL Technologies for the purpose of initiating the Local Debt 
Recovery Program. 

Res7..::7tted for your consideralion, 

Evan K. Summers 
Project Operations Manager 

6700 West 26'· Street Berwyn, lllinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2567 www.berwyn.il.gov 



THE CITY OF BERWYN 
COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS 

ORDINANCE 
NUMBER ___ _ 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SOFTWARE SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH XSELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
AND AUTHORIZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
ILLINOIS OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER FOR THE CITY OF BERWYN, 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

RobertJ.Lovero,~ayor 

Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 

Nona Chapman 
Jeffrey Boyajian 
Margaret Paul 
Michele Skryd 
Cesar Santoy 

Theodore Polashek 
Rafael Avila 

Nora Laureto 
Aldermen 

PubUshed in pamphlet form by authority of the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Berwyn 0o ___ _ 



ORDINANCE No. _ _ ~_ 

AN ORDINANCE FOR SOFTWARE SERVICES AND AUTHORIZING AND 
APPROVING A CERTAIN AGREEMENT WITH XSELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
AND AUTHORlZING AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH THE 
ILLINOIS OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER FOR THE CITY OF BERWYN, 
STATE OF ILLINOIS 

WHEREAS, the City of Berwyn (the "City") is a home rule unit oflocal govenunent as is 

provided by Article VII, Section 6(a) of the Illinois Constitution (1970) and, as such, may exercise 

various powers and perfoIm numerous functions pertaining to its government and affairs in any 

manner not otherwise prohibited by law; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly provided for the ability for local govenunents to 

utilize the Illinois Office of the Comptroller's Offset System (the "System") for collection of debt 

owed the State by persons receiving payments from the state; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council believe that it is in the best interests of the City to 

utilize the System; and 

WHEREAS, the City is a unit of local government allowed as such to participate in the 

"Local Debt Recovery Program" that would permit the City to claim proceeds being paid to a debtor 

of the City by the State to offset debts to the City; and 

WHEREAS, the Office of the State Comptroller has issued an Intergovernmental Agreement 

(the "lOA"), attached hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit A, whereby the City will participate 

in the "Local Debt Recovery Program" with the State; and 

WHEREAS, to participate in this program, data and revenue reconciliation must be 

collected, which is often time-consuming and difficult, and more appropriately completed by an 

independent contractor than City staff; and 

2 



WHEREAS, there exists a certain Independent Contractor Agreement (the "Contractor 

Agreement" and collectively with the "lOA" the "Agreements") attached hereto and incorporated 

herein as Exhibit S, which sets forth the tenns and conditions under which XSELL Technologies, 

Inc. ("XSELL") will perfonn the services for the City; and 

WHEREAS, based upon the foregoing, the Corporate Authorities have detennined that it is 

in the best interests of City and its residents to enter into the Agreements to most efficiently enter 

into the Local Debt Recovery Program; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council ofthe City of 

Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois, by and through its home rule powers, as follows: 

Section 1. The statements set forth in the preamb Ie to this Ordinance are found to be true 

and correct and are incorporated into this Ordinance as if set forth fully herein. 

Section 2. The City Council hereby finds and detennines that it is necessary and 

advisable and otherwise in the best interests of the City to execute, enter into and approve the lOA 

and Agreement with tenns substantially similar to the terms set forth in Exhibits A and B. 

Section 3. The Agreements are hereby approved with such insertions, omissions and 

changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the City's legal counse1. 

Section 4. The City's legal counsel is hereby authorized to negotiate additional terms of 

the Agreements as needed and undertake any and all actions on the part of the City to effectuate the 

intent of this Ordinance. 

Section 5. The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the applicable 

agreements, with such insertions, omissions and changes as shall be approved by the Mayor and the 

City's legal counsel. The City Council further authorizes the Mayor or his designee to execute any 

3 



and all additional documentation that may be necessary to carry out the intent ofthis Ordinance. The 

officers, employees and/or agents ofthe City are authorized and directed to take all action necessary 

or reasonably required by the City to carry out, give effect to and consummate the transaction 

contemplated herein and shall take all acts necessary in conformity therewith. The City Clerk is 

hereby authorized and directed to attest to and countersign any such documents, as required. 

Section 6. All prior actions ofthe City's officials, employees and agents with respect to 

the subj ect matter of this Ordinance are hereby expressly ratified. 

Section 7. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be severable, and 

should any provision of this Ordinance be determined to be in conflict with any law, statute or 

regulation by a court of competent jurisdiction, said provision shall be excluded and deemed 

inoperative, unenforceable and as though not provided for herein. and all other provisions shall 

remain unaffected, unimpaired, valid and in full force and effect. 

Section 8. All ordinances, resolutions, rules and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict 

herewith are, to the extent of such conflict, hereby superseded. 

Section 9. This Ordinance shall be immediately in full force and effect after passage, 

approval and publication. A full, true and complete copy of this Ordinance shall be published in 

pamphlet form as provided by the Illinois Municipal Code, as amended. 

(THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK) 

4 



ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Berwyn, Cook County, Illinois on this 

__ day of ____ 2012, pursuant to a roll call vote, as follows: 

YES NO ABSENT 

thapman 

Boyajian 

Paul 

Skryd 

Santoy 

Polashek 

~vila 

Laureto 

(Mayor Lavero) 

TOTAL 

APPROVED this ___ day of _____ 2012. 

ATTEST: 

Thomas J. Pavlik 
CITY CLERK 

5 

RobertJ.Lovero 
MAYOR 

PRESENT 



EXHIBIT A 

6 



EXHIBITB 

7 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

THE ILLINOIS OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER 
AND 

CITY OF BERWYN 
REGARDING ACCESS TO THE COMPTROLLER'S LOCAL DEBT RECOVERY 

PROGRAM 

This Intergovernmental Agreement ("the Agreement") is hereby made and entered into as 
of the date of execution by and between the Illinois Office of the Comptroller (hereinafter 
"IOC") and the City of Berwyn (hereinafter "the local unit"), in order to provide the named local 
unit access to the Local Debt Recovery Program for purposes of collecting both tax and nontu 
debts owed to the named local unit. Each of the parties hereto is a "public agency" as defined in 
Section 2 of the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act [5 ILCS 220/2]. 

WHEREAS, both the State of Illinois and the local unit have a responsibility to collect 
debts owed to its respective public bodies; 

WHEREAS, IOC operates a system, known as the Comptroller's Offset System 
(hereinafter, "the System"), for collection of debt owed the State by persons receiving 
payments from the State; 

WHEREAS, the Illinois General Assembly specifically provided for the ability of the 
local unit to utilize the System when it amended Section 10.05 and added Section 10.05d 
to the State Comptroller Act [P.A. 97-632; 15 ILCS 405/10.05 and 10.05d]; 

WHEREAS, IOC and the local unit are empowered under the Illinois Constitution [m. 
Const., Art. VII, Sec. 10J, Section 3 of the Intergovenunental Cooperation Act [5 ILCS 
220/3], and Section 10.05d ofthe State Comptroller Act (hereinafter, ''the Act") [15 ILCS 
405/l0.05d] to contract with each other in any manner not prohibited by law; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals and the mutual 
covenants and promises contained herein, the sufficiency of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as follows: 

Article I - Purpose 

The purpose of the Agreement between the IOC and the local unit is to establish the 
terms and conditions for the offset of the State's tax and nontax payments in order to 
collect tax and nontax debts owed to the local unit. 

Article II - Authority 

The authority for State payment offset is granted under Section 10.05 of the Act [15 ILCS 
40511 0.05] and the authority for entering into this Agreement is granted under Section 



1 0.05d of the Act [15 ILCS 40511 0.05d], Section 3 of the Intergovernmental Cooperation 
Act [5 ILCS 220/3], and Article VII of the Illinois Constitution [Ill. Const., Art. VII, Sec. 
10]. 

Article III - State Payment Offset Requirements and Operations 

A. Legal Requirements. The offset of State payments shall be conducted pursuant to 
the authority granted in Section 10.05 and 10.05d of the Act [15 ILCS 405/10.05 
and 10.05d] and the requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

1 . Definition of "Debt" 

(a) For purposes of this Agreement, debt shall mean any monies owed 
to the local unit which is less than 7 years past the date of 
final determination, as confinned by the local unit in Article 
III(A)(2)(a)(viii) of this Agreement. 

(b) No debt which is more than 7 years past the date of final 
determination maybe placed or may remain on the System. 

2. Due Process & Notification 

(a) Before submitting a debt to IOC for State payment offset, the local 
unit must comply with all of the notification requirements of this 
Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, notification of an 
account or claim eligible to be offset shall occur when the local 
unit submits to IOC the following infonnation: 

(i) the name and address and/or another unique identifier of 
the person against whom the claim exists; 

(ii) the amount of the claim then due and payable to the local 
unit; 

(iii) the reason why there is an amount due to the local unit (i.e., 
tax liability, overpayment, etc.); 

(iv) the time period to which the claim is attributable; 

(v) the local entity to which the debt is owed; 

(vi) a description of the type of notification has been given to 
the person against whom the claim exists and the type of 
opportunity to be heard afforded such person; 

(vii) a statement as to the outcome of any hearings or other 

2 



proceedings held to establish the debt, or a statement that 
no hearing was requested; and, 

(viii) the date of final determination of the debt. 

(b) IOC will not process a claim Wlder the Agreement until 
notification has been received from the local unit that the debt has 
been established through notice and opportunity to be heard. 

(c) The local unit is required to provide the debtor with information 
about a procedure to challenge the existence, amount, and current 
collectability of the debt prior to the submission ofa claim to IOC 
for entry into the System. The decision resulting from the 
utilization of this procedure must be reviewable. 

3. Certification 

(a) The chief officer of the local unit must, at the time the debt is 
referred, certify that the debt is past due and legally enforceable in 
the amount stated, and that there is no legal bar to collection by 
State payment offset (See Appendix A). 

(b) Only debts finally determined as currently due and payable may be 
certified to IOC as a claim for offset. 

(c) The chief officer of the local unit may delegate to a responsible 
person or persons the authority to execute the statement of the 
claim required by the Agreement. 

(d) This delegation of authority shall be made on forms provided by 
the Comptroller and shall contain a signature sample of the 
person(s) to whom the delegation is made. 

(e) For purposes of this Agreement, "chief officer of the local unit" 
means the City Mayor. 

4. Notification of Change in Status 

(a) The chief officer must notify roc as soon as possible, but in no 
case later than 30 days, after receiving notice of a change in the 
status of an offset claim. 

(b) A change in status may include, but is not limited to, payments 
received other than through a successful offset, the filing of a 
bankruptcy petition, the death of the debtor, or the expiration of the 

3 



ability for the debt to remain on the System, as provided for in 
Article IlI(A)(1)(b) of this Agreement. 

B. Operational Requirements. Upon receiving a data file from the chief officer 
pursuant to the tenns of this this Agreement, IOC will perfonn a match with the 
local unit's debt file using a debtor's social sectnity number, taxpayer 
identification mnnber, name, address, or other unique identifier. The chief officer 
will receive a weekly file from IOC indicating the matches, at which time the 
local Wlit will update its debtor records. The chief officer will assume the 
responsibility of providing updates to the debtor records on file with IOC in order 
to ensure an equitable resolution of the debts owed to the local unit. 

1. Technical Requirements. IOC agrees to work with the local Wllt to 
facilitate infonnation and data procedures as provided for in this 
Agreement. The local Wlit agrees to adhere to the standards and practices 
of IOC when transmitting and receiving data. 

2. Fee. A fee shall be charged to the debtor in order to recover the cost to 
IOC for administrating the System. The fee shall be per payment 
transaction and shall be $15, unless the payment is for an amoWlt less than 
$30, in which case the fee shall be equal to the amount offset. The fee will 
be deducted from the payment to be offset prior to issuance to the local 
unit. 

3. Offset Notices. IOC will send offset notices to the debtor upon processing 
a claim under the Act and this Agreement. The notice will state that a 
request has been made to make an offset against a payment due to the 
debtor, identify the local unit as the entity submitting the request, provide 
the debtor with a phone number made available pursuant to Article III 
(B)(6) of this Agreement, and infonn the debtor that they may fonnally 
protest the offset within sixty (60) days of the written notice. 

4. IOC Protest Process. If a protest is received, IOC will detennine the 
amount due and payable to the local unit. This detennination will be made 
by a Hearing Officer and will be made in light of all infonnation relating 
to the transaction in the possession of IOC and any other infonnation IOC 
may request and obtain from the local unit and the debtor subject to the 
offset. If IOC requests infonnation from the local unit relating to the 
offset, the local unit will respond within sixty (60) days of IOCs request. 
IOC may grant the local unit an additional sixty (60) day extension for 
time to respond. 

5. IOC Hearing Officer. The local unit hereby agrees to provide the Hearing 
Officer with any infonnation requested in an efficient and timely manner 
in order to facilitate the prompt resolution to protests filed as a result of 
this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, any decision rendered 

4 



by the Hearing Officer shall be binding on the local unit and shall be the 
final determination on the matter. The Hearing Officer may continue the 
review of a protest at his/her discretion in order to assure an equitable 
resolution. 

6. Local Unit Call Center. The local unit hereby agrees to provide a working 
phone number which IOC will furnish to persons offset under this 
Agreement. The local unit shall ensure that the phone number is properly 
staffed in order to provide information about the debt the local unit is 
offsetting under this Agreement. The phone number for purposes of this 
Section and the Agreement is: 708-788-2660. 

7. Debt Priorities 

(a) If a debtor has more than one local unit debt, the debt with the 
oldest date of delinquency shall be offset first. 

(b) Any debt that is less than or equal to $9.99 which is placed or 
remains on the System will not be offset and will not be paid to the 
local unit until such time as the balance owed to the local unit by 
the debtor exceeds $9.99. 

8. Transfer of Payment. Transfer of payment by IOC to the local unit shall 
be made in the form of electronic funds transfer (EFT). Nothing in this 
section or this Agreement shall limit the ability of either party to modify 
this Agreement at a later date in order to provide for an alternative 
methodes) of payment transfer. 

9. IOC Refunds. If IOC determines that a payment is erroneous or otherwise 
not due to the local unit, roc will process a refund of the offset, and 
refund the amount offset to the debtor. In the event the refund results in 
only a partial refund to the debtor, IOC will retain the fee referenced in 
Article Ill, Paragraph B, Section 2 above. The fee will only be refunded 
to the debtor in the event of a full refund of the offset amount. 

10. Local Unit Refunds. The local unit is responsible for refunding monies to 
the debtor if an offset occurred due to inaccurate debt information or over 
collection, and the local unit has already received payment from IOC. 
IOC will only refund monies in the event that a payment has not yet been 
made to the local unit. 

Article IV - Permissible Use of Information 

IOC acknowledges that the local unit is providing sensitive information about local debts 
for the purpose of conducting offsets under the Agreement. As such, IOC will use the 

5 



information solely in connection with the Local Debt Recovery Program. IOC shall 
safeguard the local information in the same manner as it protects State debt information. 

The local unit acknowledges that IOC is providing sensitive information about State 
payments for the purpose of conducting offsets under the Agreement. As such, the local 
unit will use the information solely in connection with the Local Debt Recovery Program. 
The local unit shall safeguard State information in the same manner as it protects local 
debt information. 

The parties may use information in any litigation involving the parties, when such 
information is relevant to the litigation. 

Article V - Term of the Agreement and Modifications 

The Agreement becomes effective as of the Effective Date and shall remain in effect until 
it is terminated by one of the parties. Either party may terminate this Agreement by 
giving the other party written notice at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of 
the termination. Any modifications to the Agreement shall be in writing and signed by 
both parties. 

Article VI - No Liability to Other Parties 

Except for the fees described in Article III, paragraph B, Section 2 above, each party shall 
be responsible for its own costs incurred in connection with the Agreement. Each party 
shall be responsible for resolving and reconciling its own errors, but shan not be liable to 
any other parties for damages of any kind as a result of errors. Each party shall be liable 
for the acts and omissions of its own employees and agents. The Agreement does not 
confer any rights or benefits on any third party. 

Article VII - Issue Resolution 

The parties acknowledge that IOC is ultimately responsible for the development, design 
and operation of the System. Subject to that understanding, the parties agree to work 
cooperatively to resolve any matters that arise during the development, design and 
implementation of the program. If an issue cannot be resolved informally by mutual 
agreement of staff personnel. then the parties agree to elevate the issue to a senior level 
manager for resolution ofthe issue. For purposes of the Agreement, the "senior level 
managers" are: 

1. IOC: Ray Marchiori, Director - Department of Govenunent and Community 
Affairs 

2. Local Unit: Brian Pabst, City Administrator 

Article VIII - Contacts 

6 



The points of contacts for this Agreement are: 

IOC: Alissa Camp, General Counsel 
lllinois Office of the Comptroller 
325 West Adams 
Springfield. lllinois 62704 
Phone: 217/782-6000 
Fax: 2171782-2112 
E-mail: CampAJ@mail.ioc.state.il.us 

Local Unit: City of Berwyn 
Anthony T. Bertuea, City Attorney 
6700 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Article IX - Acceptance of Terms and Commitment 

The signing of this document by authorized officials forms a binding commitment 
between IOC and the City of Berwyn The parties are obligated to perform in accordance 
with the tenns and conditions of this document, any properly executed modification, 
addition, or amendment thereto, any attachment, appendix. addendum, or supplemental 
thereto, and any documents and requirements incorporated by reference. 

By their signing, the signatories represent and certify that they possess the authority to 
bind their respective organizations to the tenns of this document, and hereby do so. 

[Signature Page Follows] 

7 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the lllinois Office of the Comptroller and the City of Berwyn 
by the following officials sign their names to enter into this agreement. 

ILLINOIS OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER 

By: Date: --------

Name: Judy Baar Topinka 

Title: Comptroller 

THE CITY OF BERWYN 

By: Date: --------

Name: 

Title: 

8 



Appendix A 

STATE OF ILLINOIS 
COMPTROLLER 

JUDY BAAR TOPINKA 

Involuntary Withholding Tape/File Certification Form 

Local Unit Name: _____________ _ 

Tape #lFile Type: _____________ _ 

Record Count: -------------

Dollar Amount: -----.......;..~T"'"""'-----

Please mark the appropriate box: 

Cl Add TapeIFile 

• 

• 

Cl Change Tape/File 

• All change transactions ontained on the enclosed tape/file meet the criteria for 
inclusion in the Local Debt Recovery Program. 

• 9,1 c aims contained on the enclosed tape/file no longer meet the criteria for 
i~cl ion in the Local Debt Recovery Program, and should be removed from the 

am. 

I, , do hereby certify that all of the debts included on 
the tape/file are in compliance with the requirements of the State Comptroller Act [15 n..CS 405] 
and the Intergovernmental Agreement entered into between the above named local unit and the 
Illinois Office ofthe Comptroller. If I am submitting a facsimile or email signature, I hereby 
certify by so filing that the original signed docwnent exists in my possession. 

Authorized Signature: _______________ Date: _____ _ 

Local Unit: __________________ Pbone #: _____ _ 

9 



THE CITY OF BERWYN, ILLINOIS 
INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT (this "Agreement") is 
made and effective as of this __ day of 2012 (the "Effective Date"), by and 
between the City of Berwyn, ntinois, an Illinois municipal corporation (the "City"), and 
XSELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC., a Delaware corporation ("XSELL"), (collectively, the 
City and XSELL may, for convenience only, be hereinafter referred to as the "Parties"). 
The Parties desire to set forth in writing the terms and conditions of their agreements and 
understand ings. 

WHEREAS, XSELL desires to enter into a contract as an information consultant 
for the City; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL possesses the requisite knowledge and experience required 
for the position of an information consultant for revenue reconciliation matters, along 
with other knowledge and experience deemed valuable by the Corporate Authorities (as 
defined below); and 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the Mayor, (the "Corporate Authorities',) have 
detennined that it is in the best interests of the City to secure the services of XSELL 
based on the terms and conditions set forth herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Agreement whereby XSELL 
will act as an independent contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions 
hereinafter set forth and any other agreed upon terms governing the aforesaid 
relationship; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL, an independent contractor, shall perform the services and 
undertake the obligations as described in Exhibit A, incorporated herein and attached 
hereto; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL shall not be the exclusive information consultant for the City 
and XSELL will only provide such of its technology services that the City advises them 
to at the City's discretion; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL shall be the exclusive technology partner in connection with 
the ll1inois Office of the Comptroller's ("IOC") Local Debt Recovery Program; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL understands that it will only be working on matters related 
to the IOC Local Debt Recovery Program; and 

WHEREAS, XSELL shall not work exclusively for the City; and 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

WHEREAS, XSELL and the City hereby enter into this Agreement for the 
provision of services described in Exhlbit A pursuant to the directions of the Mayor 
and/or his designee in exchange for the compensation described in Exhibit B, 
incorporated herein and attached hereto; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing. the mutual promises and 
covenants contained herein, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties, intending to be legally 
bound, hereby agree as follows: 

1. COVENANTS OF XSELL. 

1.1 Contractual Relationship. XSELL shall provide the services described in 
Exhibit A (the "Services") as an independent contractor performing the 
duties of an information consultant in the area of revenue reconciliation 
for the operations of the City. 

1.2 Contractual Duties. XSELL shall in a first class and highest industry 
standard provide the Services which shan include revenue reconciliation 
employing software XSELL has developed and owns, shall also provide 
exception management services and shall perform such other related tasks 
and duties as directed by the Mayor or the Mayor's designee an in 
accordance with the operational policies and procedures established in the 
Codified Ordinances of Berwyn (the "City Code"), incorporated herein by 
this reference, and any other applicable policies, procedures and past 
practices, as the same may be updated from time to time. Any such 
direction shall be given in writing transmitted electronically, by standard 
mail or by personal delivery. 

1.3 Best Efforts; Inducements. XSELL agrees that at all times it will 
faithfully, efficiently and to the best of its abilities and talents perfonn all 
of the duties that may be required of and from it, pursuant to the terms 
hereof and to the reasonable satisfaction of the Mayor or his designee. 
XSELL shall abide by all policies and decisions made by the City, as well 
as all applicable federal, state and local laws, statutes, ordinances, orders, 
rules and regulations. Consistent with the terms of this Agreement, 
XSELL shall act in the best interests of the City at all times. XSELL has 
not provided any gift, gratuity, service or other inducement to any City 
official or employee or to any entity or individual involved in retaining 
XSELL's services. 

2. TERM. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
shall continue for one (1) year unless earlier terminated as provided for in Section 

2 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

5 of this Agreement. The Parties have a right, but not an obligation, to renew at a 
future date. 

3. RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS. To the fullest extent of XSELL's knowledge, 
XSELL represents and warrants to the City that XSELL is not bound by any 
restrictive covenant of another entity or employer and has no prior or other 
obligations or commitments that would, in any way, prevent, restrict, hinder or 
interfere with XSELL's acceptance of the contracted for position by the City or 
the performance of the duties and services hereunder and XSELL has sufficient 
experience, qualifications and knowledge to undertake the duties set forth in this 
Agreement. XSELL shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its 
officials, elected and appointed. employees, consultants and agents from and 
against any liability the City may incur to a third party as the result of the 
existence and breach by XSELL of any such covenants, obligations or 
commitments. 

4, REMUNERATION. XSELL will be compensated by the City as provided in 
Exhibit B within thirty (30) days after the City has received the revenues from the 
IOC under the Local Debt Recovery Program (as described in Exhibit B) 
administered by the IOC. XSELL's position is wholly based on commission as 
described in Exhibit B. 

5. TERMINATION. This Agreement and relationship governed thereunder may be 
terminated for convenience of the Parties for cause or no cause upon thirty (30) 
days advance written notice. Notwithstanding any such termination, XSELL shall 
be paid the compensation provided for in Exhibit B for any revenue reconciliation 
matches identified by XSELL and transmitted to the IOC for payment offset 
during the term of this Agreement. XSELL shall be paid only after the City has 
received revenue. No such payment will be made in the event of fraud or 
maleficence on the part of XSELL 

6. RETURN OF THE CITY'S PROPERTY; TRANSITION. The City shall give no 
personal property to XSELL. The work product generated by XSELL and 
submitted to the City is owned by the City. The City shall provide computer 
readable data to XSELL sufficient to allow XSELL to render the Services 
including, without limitation, limited access to the City's computer system in 
order to extract data necessary to prepare required reports to be submitted to the 
IOC. The City shall make available to XSELL on a limited basis for consultation 
purposes, management personnel from its Finance and Information Technology 
Departments. The Parties shall meet and take all steps necessary to integrate the 
XSELL computer system with the City's computer system. 

7. INSURANCE. XSELL shall maintain at its expense commercially reasonable 
insurance policies including, without limitation, automobile insurance, workers' 

3 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

compensation insurance and other such endorsements applicable to this 
Agreement as requested by the City during the then remaining tenn of the 
Agreement and in such form amounts, and manner as directed by the City in its 
sole and absolute discretion. Such limits, premium and deductible amounts are to 
be reasonably agreed to by the Parties. XSELL shall provide the City with a 
certificate of insurance identifYing the City as an "additional insured." It shall not 
be a breach of this Agreement if XSELL is unable to provide the City with a 
certificate of insurance identifYing the City as an "additional insured" for 
workers' compensation coverage. To the extent that there is any contlict with 
XSELL's compliance with Section 1.2 of this Agreement and with this Section, 
the same shall be read as expansively as possible to protect the interests of the 
City. 

8. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF XSELL. XSELL represents 
and warrants to the City that the statements and other representations made by 
XSELL to the City during the hiring and interview process including, without 
limitation any written materials submitted to the City and statements made to the 
City by XSELL and XSELL's references, are true and accurate. XSELL shall 
defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City, its officials, elected and appointed, 
consultants, employees and agents from and against any liability the City may 
incur to a third party as the result of its reliance upon any of the aforementioned 
statements or other representations that are found to have been false or 
misleading. For the defense of this claim, the City has the right to select its own 
counsel. 

9. REPRESENTATIONS. WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS OF THE CITY. 
The City represents, warrants and covenants to and with XSELL, as follows: 

9.1 The City has duly authorized the execution and performance of this 
Agreement; 

9.2 The Parties have taken all action necessary to allow the Parties to perform 
their obligations under this Agreement including, without limitation: (a) 
entering into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the lOC for access to 
the IOC's Local Debt Recovery Program (the "Intergovernmental 
Agreement"); and (b) designating XSELL as the City's authorized agent to 
interact with the IOC. Entering into this Agreement violates no other 
agreement and no law including, without limitation federal or state law; 

9.3 The City will comply with all the terms and provisions applicable to it 
under the Intergovernmental Agreement; and 

4 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

9.4 An data provided to XSELL for analysis will be accurate and correct in all 
respects, and shall satisfy the requirements of the Intergovernmental 
Agreement. 

10. CONFIDENTIALITY. The City and XSELL and their respective personnel 
shall, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, use the other Party's 
Confidential Information (as hereinafter defined) solely to fulfill the purposes of 
this Agreement, and each shall take all reasonable precautions to prevent 
unauthorized disclosure thereof. Neither the City nor XSELL shall make any 
public disclosure of the other Party's Confidential Information (excluding 
disclosure to the IOC necessary for revenue reconciliation), in the absence of the 
prior written consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding the forgoing, the Parties 
acknowledge that the City is a unit oflocal government which shall comply with 
all applicable federal and state law regarding confidentiality including, without 
limitation, the Freedom ofInformation Act (5 ILCS 14011, et. seq.) and the Open 
Meetings Act (5 ILCS 120/1, et. seq). The City will comply with an law 
regarding confidentiality and release information requested from it pursuant to the 
Freedom of Information Act and the Open Meetings Act. The Parties further 
acknowledge that the confidentiality requirements in this Agreement are different 
than if two private entities were entering into an agreement. Upon termination of 
this Agreement or upon demand, except as otherwise provided herein, the Parties 
shall promptly return to each other all property and Confidential Information of 
the other Party. If agreed, a certificate of destruction may be provided in lieu of 
return of the Confidential Informatio~ with sufficient detail regarding the 
Confidential Information destroyed, destruction date, and assurance that all copies 
also were destroyed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, upon execution of this 
Agreement, the Parties agree to issue a joint press release announcing their entry 
into the relationship contemplated by this Agreement. 

For purposes of this Agreement, Confidential Information means any proprietary 
information, technical data, trade secrets or know-how, research, experiments, 
inventions, processes, formulas, designs, drawings, products, services, plans, 
marketing strategies, business or financial infonnation, finances, software, source 
code, hardware configuration, or other information disclosed by the City or 
XSELL, their representatives, affiliates, vendors or customers, or their respective 
directors, managers, officers, employees, agents, representatives, independent 
contractors, or attorneys, in writing, orally, electronically, or by drawings or 
inspection of parts or equipment, and includes any other information that the 
Parties may reasonably understand to be confidential. Confidential Information 
does not include information: (a) already known by a Party at the time it is 
disclosed as shown by written records; (b) publicly known without breach of this 
Agreement; (c) received from a third party, other than residents of the City, 
authorized to disclose it without restriction; (d) independently developed by a 
Party without use of Confidential Information; or (e) required by law, regulation 

5 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

or valid court or government order to be disclosed, provided a Party first notifies 
the other Party of such required disclosure, so the other Party may seek a 
protective order pertaining to such information. 

11. INDEMNIFICATION. The Parties shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless 
the other Party and its officials (whether elected or appointed and including, but 
not limited to the Mayor), affiliates, directors, officers, employees, agents, 
representatives, independent contractors, or attorneys, successors and assigns 
("Indemnified Parties'') from all claims, losses, liabilities, damages, suits, actions, 
government procedures, taxes, penalties or interest, associated auditing and legal 
expenses and other costs incurred by Indemnified Parties, arising from: (i) any 
misrepresentation or breach of any representation, warranty or covenant of the 
Parties hereunder; (ii) the Parties' performance or non~performance under this 
Agreement; and (iii) the Parties' negligence or willful misconduct; all the 
foregoing except to the extent arising out of the willful misconduct of an 
Indemnified Party. 

12. NOTICE OF IMPENDING CLAIMS. As a continuing obligation of XSELL 
throughout this Agreement, XSELL shall notify the City of any claims, either 
filed or threatened to be filed, which materially affect, or could materially affect 
the City. 

13. NOTICE. All notices required under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall 
be deemed given when delivered personally, by overnight delivery, by facsimile 
transmission upon electronic acknowledgment of receipt, or by certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, upon verification of receipt to the 
addresses set forth below: 

If to City: 

With a copy to: 

The City of Berwyn 
Attn: Brian L. Pabst. City Administrator 
6700 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 
Phone: (708) 749-6432 
Fax: (708) 788-2567 __ 
Email: BPabst@ci.berwyn.il.us 

Del GaIdo Law Group, LLC 
Attn; James M. Vasselli 
1441 South Harlem Avenue 
Berwyn, II 60402 
Phone: (708) 222-7000 
Fax: (708) 222-7001 

6 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

Ifto XSELL: 

with a copy to: 

Email: vasselli@dlglawgroup.com 

XSELL Technologies, Inc. 
230 S. Clark Street 
Chicago, IL 60406 
Attn: Matthew Coughlin, President and CEO 
Phone: (312) 462-6152 
Fax.: L-) ______ _ 
Email: mcoughlin@Xselltechnologies.com 

Edward J. Gl2elakowski 
Kemp & Grzelakowski, Ltd. 
1900 Spring Road, Suite 500 
Oak Brook, IL 60523 
Phone: (630) 571-7711 
Fax: (630) 581-7755 
Email: kemp-grzelakowski@email.msn.com 

14. NONSOLICIT A TION OF PERSONNEL. Except as may otherwise be agreed 
in a separate writing between the Parties, neither Party shan solicit for 
employment, nor hire or engage any personnel of the other Party in any capacity 
during the Term of this Agreement and for a period of two (2) years thereafter. 

15. XSELL'S PROPRIETARY INTERESTS. Nothing set forth in this Agreement 
shall be construed to grant to the City or any of its personnel, any right, title or 
interest in, or license of XSELL's Confidential Information or Intellectual 
Property (as hereinafter defined). For purposes of this Agreement, Intellectual 
Property means collectively: (a) trademarks, trade names, service marks, trade 
dress, product configurations, logos and other trade identities, trade secrets, know
how, mask work rights, inventions, formulas, algorithms, business methods, rights 
in packaging, computer software (in source code and object code formats), 
domain names, uniform resource locaters, Internet protocol addresses, web sites 
(and source codes for web sites), patents, patent rights, copyrights, moral rights, 
authorship rights and other ownership rights, owned in whole or part by a Party; 
(b) common law rights, licenses, royalties, assignments, associated goodwill, 
applications, registrations, renewals and extensions for all of the items under (a) 
above in the United States, each individual state thereof, and all other countries 
and jurisdictions worldwide; and (c) agreements relating to (a) or (b) above to 
which a Party hereto is a party (including expiration dates, if applicable), 
including, without limitation, all agreements relating to technology, know-how, 
processes, software (including, but not limited to, all agreements covering 
application software and operating system software and all agreements with 

7 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

application service providers), and hardware. This foregoing does not include any 
data which shall be the property of the City and shall be distributed to the 
successor entity if there is a transition of services. 

Due to the significant investment required of XSELL in order to create and 
implement the program contemplated by this Agreement, as a material 
inducement to XSELL to enter into this Agreement, the City agrees to work 
exclusively with XSELL during the tenn of this Agreement in relation to the 
IOC's Local Debt Recovery Program and not to engage any other person to 
provide technology services in connection with the IOC's Local Debt Recovery 
Program similar to the Services to be provided by XSELL hereunder. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS. 

16.1 Preambles & Approvals. The statements set forth in the preambles to this 
Agreement are true and correct and are adopted as part of this Agreement. 
Where approval is required pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, no 
unreasonable request shall be denied. 

16.2 Construction and Governing Law. Construction and interpretation of this 
Agreement shall at all times and in all respects be governed by the laws of 
the State of Illinois, without regard to its conflicts of laws. XSELL 
acknowledges that it has had an opportunity to review and revise this 
Agreement and have the same reviewed by legal counsel, if desired, and, 
therefore, the normal rules of construction, to the extent that any 
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting Party, shall not be 
employed in the interpretation of this Agreement. 

16.3 Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable, 
and the invalidity or unenforceability of anyone or more of the provisions 
hereof shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the other 
provisions hereof. 

16.4 Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 
understanding by and between the Parties. No representations, promises, 
agreements or understandings, written or oral, not herein contained shall 
be of any force or effect. 

16.5 Modification: Waiver. No provision of this Agreement may be modified, 
waived or discharged unless such waiver, modification or discharge is 
agreed to in writing and signed by each Party. No waiver by either Party 
regarding any breach of a condition or provision of this Agreement shall 
be deemed a waiver of similar or dissimilar provisions or conditions of 
this Agreement. No agreement or representations, oral or otherwise, 

8 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

express or implied, with respect to the subject matter hereof have been 
made by either Party that is not expressly set forth in this Agreement. No 
failure or delay on the part of either Party to the Agreement to exercise 
any right, remedy, power or privilege will preclude or limit any other or 
further exercise of such right or the exercise of any other right, remedy, 
power or privilege with respect to the same or any other matter. 

16.6 Headings. The headings used herein form no substantive part of this 
Agreement, are for the convenience of the Parties only, and shall not be 
used to define, enlarge or limit any term of this Agreement. 

16.7 No Conflict of Interest. During the term of XSELL's position with the 
City and during any period that XSELL is receiving payments from the 
City, XSELL must not engage in any work, paid or unpaid, that creates an 
actual or potential conflict of interest with the City, as may be determined 
by the Mayor, in his reasonable discretion. If the Mayor believes such a 
conflict exists during the tenn of this Agreement, the Mayor or his 
designee may ask XSELL to choose to discontinue the other work or 
resign its position with the City. 

16.8 Right to Counsel. XSELL acknowledges that it was informed that it has 
the right to consult with an attorney before signing this Agreement and 
that this paragraph shall constitute written notice of the right to be advised 
by legal counsel. Additionally, XSELL acknowledges that it had an 
opportunity to and did negotiate over the terms of this Agreement. The 
Parties acknowledge that they have been given a reasonable time to 
consider and sign this Agreement and agree that this consideration period 
has been reasonable and adequate. 

16.9 Signing in Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart 
originals, each of which shall be deemed to be an original with the same 
effect as if the signatures thereto were on the same instrument. A 
signature affixed to this Agreement and transmitted by facsimile shall 
have the same effect as an original signature. 

16.10 Assignment. This Agreement is personal in character and neither the City 
nor XSELL shall assign its or his interest in this Agreement without the 
prior written consent of the other. No assignment, even if consented to, 
shall in any way reduce or eliminate the liability of the assignor for 
obligations accrued prior to such assigrunent. 

16.11 Records. During the tenn of this Agreement and for a period of not less 
than three (3) years after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, 
or longer if required by law, the Parties shall maintain complete and 

9 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

accurate records concerning their obligations and performance under this 
Agreement. 

16.12 Excusable Delays.:. Neither party shall be held responsible for delays 
caused by acts beyond its control, such as acts of God, utility or 
communications delays or failures, fire or other casualty, accidents not 
caused by its own negligence or fault, labor disputes, war, or failure of the 
other Party to provide required data or access. 

16.13 Further Assurances. The Parties shall cooperate reasonably with each 
other and with their respective representatives in colU1ection with any 
steps required to be taken as part of their respective obligations under this 
Agreement, and shall: (i) furnish upon request to each other such further 
information, (ii) execute and deliver to each other such other documents, 
and (iii) do such other acts and things; all as the other Party may 
reasonably request for the purpose of carrying out the intent of this 
Agreement. 

16.14 Prevailing Party. The prevailing Party in any action brough t with respect 
to this Agreement shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable 
attorneys fees incurred in any such action from the non-prevailing Party. 

16.15 Independent Contractor Status; Reporting Requirements. XSELL's 
relationship with the City will be that of an independent contractor and not 
that of an employee, agent, partner, joint venturer or appointed official. 
The City will not make deductions from payments made to XSELL for 
state, local or federal taxes, impositions and charges, all of which will be 
XSELL's responsibility. Other than in furtherance of its obligations 
hereunder in rendering the Services, including without limitation, 
necessary revenue reconciliation filings with the IOC, XSELL will have 
no authority to enter into contracts that bind the City or create obligations 
on the part of the City without the prior written authorization of the City. 
XSELL will report to the Mayor concerning the Services performed under 
this Agreement. The nature and frequency of these reports will be left to 
the mutual agreement of the Mayor and XSELL. 

16.16 Business Cards and Uniforms. XSELL will be given neither business 
cards nor City uniforms. 

10 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

17. DISCLAIMERS AND LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT 
SHALL EITHER PARTY BE LIABLE FOR ANY CONSEQUENTIAL, 
INCIDENTAL, INDIRECT, SPECIAL OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES 
ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT AND/OR ITS 
SUBJECT MATTER. REGARDLESS OF THE THEORY OF LIABILITY 
GIVING RISE TO SUCH DAMAGES, WHETHER ARISING IN CONTRACT, 
TORT OR OTHERWISE, AND REGARDLESS OF WHETHER SUCH PARTY 
WAS ADVISED OR A WARE OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

THE WARRANTIES PROVIDED HEREUNDER AND THE LIABILITIES OF 
A PARTY HEREUNDER ARE EXCLUSIVE AND IN LIEU OF, AND EACH 
PARTY HEREBY WAIVES, ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, GUARANTIES 
OR LIABILITIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, ARISING BY LAW OR 
OTHERWISE (INCLUDING WITHOUT LIMITATION ANY OBLIGATIONS 
WITH RESPECT TO FITNESS AND MERCHANTABILITY FOR A 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE) OR WHETHER OR NOT OCCASIONED BY A 
PARTY'S NEGLIGENCE. THE WARRANTIES HEREUNDER SHALL NOT 
BE EXTENDED, ALTERED OR VARIED EXCEPT BY A WRITTEN 
INSTRUMENT SIGNED BY XSELL AND THE CITY. 

THE PARTIES TO THIS AGREEMENT HAVE READ THE FOREGOING 
AGREEMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY AND FULLY UNDERSTAND EACH AND 
EVERY PROVISION CONTAINED HEREIN. 

11 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed 
as of this day of ,2012. 

Executed: 

CITY OF BERWYN. 
an Illinois municipal corporation 

Attest: 

(SEAL) 

XSELL TECHNOLOGIES, INC., 
a Delaware corporation 

By: 
Matthew Coughlin, President & CEO 

12 

Date 

Date 

Date 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

Exhibit A 
(Job Duties) 

XSELL will provide revenue reconciliation services employing its own custom made software 
that will allow the City, as a local claiming entity (LCE), to overcome the complexities in revenue 
reconciliation and administrative procedures related to the Local Debt Recovery Program 
administered by IOC. XSELL shall create a fact based, data driven sustainable solution that 
identifies funds outstanding, locate matches, and apply to the IOC for offset payments of 
revenues available to the City under the Local Debt Recovery Program. 

XSELL's Revenue Reconciliation Program is created with the following intentions: 

1. Provide IOC file preparation for the following files: 
1. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary Pre Add File 

11. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary With-Holding Maintenance Add 
Ill. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary Maintenance Change 
IV. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary Match 
v. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary Statistical Analysis 

vi. Local Claiming Entity Involuntary Delete File 
2. Increase match accuracy with IOC system of records to create increase revenue 

reconciliation. 
3. Provide accurate and ongoing maintenance to file amendment per IOC guidelines. 

13 



The City of Berwyn Independent Contractor Agreement 

Exhibit B 
(Remuneration Schedule) 

Price of Services/Compensation: XSELL shall receive from the City an amount equal to ten 
percent (10%) of actual revenues received by the City from the IOC's Local Debt Recovery Trust 
Fund (or similar depository) under the Local Debt Rerovery Program administered by the IOC as 
a result of using XSELL's services and/or technology. 

14 



Denis O'HaUoran 
Fire Chief 
do'halloran@ci.herwyn.il .us 

Sam Molinaro 
Assistant Fire Cltief 
smolinnro@ci.berwyn.il.us 

August 10, 2012 

BERWYN 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

6700 W. 26th Street. Berwyn, IL60402-0701 

708.788.2660 exl3281 

FAX 708.788.3039 • Emergency 9-1-1 

To: Mayor Robert J. Lovero & Members of the City Council 

Mayor Robert J. Loven) 

Re: Recommendation to award bid for construction of the North Fire Station parking lot project 

The City of Berwyn opened bids for the above mentioned project on August 7, 2012. They were 
four bids submitted, three of which met the requirements listed in the Request for Proposal. 

The three companies' were: 

FM & J Asphalt Paving 

Abbey Paving 

Martam Construction 

$85,050 

$116,500 

$138,000 

The firm that the City has contracted with regarding the design and scope of the project, Wold 
Architects, has made a recommendation concerning awarding the contract for the project. Their 
recommendation letter is attached. 

It would be my recommendation to concur with the attached letter of recommendation, and 
award the contract to Abbey Paving and Sealcoating Co. Inc. of Aurora, Illinois in the amount of 
($116,570.00) 

This project is funded & budgeted for through the CDBG. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Sam Molinaro 

Assistant Fire Chief 



architects 
engineers 
www.woldee.~m 

110 Norlh SIoclcway St 
Two Hundred Twenty 
Palatine, Il 60061 

tel 847241 6100 
fax 847 241 6105 
mail@woldae.com 

MlnnesDta 
Illinois 
Michigan 
Colorado 

August 9,2012 

Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
City of BelWYn 
6700 W. 26111 Street 
Berwyn, illinois 60402 

Re: City of Berwyn - fire Station No.2 Parking Lot Project 
Commission No. 113016 

Dear Mayor Lovero and Members of the City Council: 

On Tuesday, August 7, 2012 aI2:00 p.m. we received four (4) bids for the Berwyn Fire Station No.2 
Parking Lot project. A'copy of the Bid Tabulation is enclosed for your review. 

We have reviewed.all bids. Please note that twO oOhe bi~s received, including the lowest bid, 
represented incomplete bids as they were not inclUSive of the overall scope of work specilied to be 
included for this project. These JrregularHies are noted ori the Bid Tabulation. 

The preliminary budget developed by Wold for this project was $71,500. During deSign and 
construction document phase soil borings and geotechnical analysis were completed, and the existence 
of unsuitable soils was discovered. Therefore, over-excavating and removal of unsuitable soils to an 
approved offsite location had to be specified. In addITion, the thickness of the parking lot surface was 
increased to accommodate the potential for occasional parking of fire department apparatus, whereas II 
was originally conceived to be for parking of personal vehicles. 

Based on our review of the bids, our recommendation is to award the contract to Abbey Paving & 
Sealcoating Co., Inc. of Aurora, IllinoIs for a total contract amount of $116,570.00. 

Please 'do not hes itate to contact me with any questions. 

Sincerely, 

Wold Architects and Engineers 

11'J,w, 'rwv/~ 
Matt Bickel II AlA. LEED AP BO+C 
Partner 

Enclosure 

cc: Chief Denis O'Halioran, BerNYn Fire Department 
Assistant Chief Sam Molinaro, Berwyn Fire Department 
Thomas J. Pavlek, City of Berwyn 

designers and researchers for public environments 



architects 
engineers 
www.waldae.oom 

Bidders Name 

l~_ Paving & Sealooating 
1949 County line Road 
Aurora, Illinois 60502 
Ph. 630.585.7220 
Fx.630.585.7220 
FM&J Asphalt Paving Inc. 
4302 W. Wanen Avenue 
Hillside, illinois 60162 
Ph. 708.544.6700 
Fx. 708.544.3761 
Martam Construction, Inc. 
1200 Gasket Drive 
Elgin, illinois 60120 
Ph. 847.606.6BOO 
Fx. 847.60B.6804 
TK Concrete, Inc. 
110 East Scl:llUer Street, Suite 234 
Elmhurst, Illinois 60126 
Phone 
Fax 

-

§ ~ 
-g,! 
-8E 
:¥~ 

nla 

nla 

nla 

nla 

Project Name: 

Commission No.: 
Date: 
Time: 

~ 
"'t:; 
:3 

~ 
"'C 
iIi Base Bid 

bond $116,570.00 
10% 

bond $85,050.00 
10% 

bond $138,000.00 
10% 

none $8,200.00 

Berwyn Fire Station No. 2 Parking Lot BID TABULATION 

Remarks 

113016 
817/12 

2:00 PM 

Wold Architects and Engineers 
110 N. Brockway St. - Suite 220 
Palatine, Illinois 60067 
847.241.6100 Fax: 847.241.6105 

Bm form Indicates "Asphalt. concrete & Curb Gutter QNI.r' 

No bid security. Bid concrete work only. 

--

\ 

I 

I 



REQUesT fOR PROPOSAL 

NOTICE. TO PROPOSERS: Sealed Bidding Document:; will be received at the Office of the City Clerk, until the time 
and date specified below for: 

Berwyn Fire Station No.2 Parking Lot 

This project includes: Site demolition and grading, excavation, engineered fills, storm sewer, concrete curb and 
gutter, bituminous asphalt paving. metal panel siding, standing seam metal roofing. caulking and sealants, PVC 
privacy fencing. site lighting, electrical power distribution 

Proposal documents IncludIng the Proposal Form, Drawings and SpecifIcations, will be available and on file at 
the following locations: 
The Offices of the Architect, Wold Architects and Engineers, 110 North Brockway, Suite 220, Palatine, Illinois, 
60067 (847) 241-6100.; at the McGraw Hill Construction Dodge Plan Room (St. louis, MO) 314-781-2504; Reed 
Construction Market Data (Oak Brook, IL) (800) 699-8640; Wowa Builders Exchange (Rock Island) (309) 788-9260; 
Northern Illinois Building Contractors AssOCiation (Rockford) (815) 229-5636; Greater Peoria Contracto~s & 
Suppliers Association (Peoria) (309) 692-5710; Construction Resource Technology (888) 506-7613 and Master 
BuUders of Iowa (Des Moines, IA) 1-800-362-2578 for both a deposit of twenty dollars ($20.00) and a non
refundable fee a/ ten dollars ($10.00) mode out to "Wold Architects and Engineers". The following information 
must accompany the deposit: Company name, mailing address, street address, phone and facsimile numbers and 
type of bidder (Le. General, Mechanical or Electrical Subcontractor to General, or other). A refund of twenty 
dollars (S20.00) will be sent to prime contractors who submit a bid to the Owner and subcontractors for each set 
(including addenda) returned to Wold Architects and Engineers in good condition within ten 110) calendar days of 
the award date, subject to the conditions of AlA Document A701. 

ADDRESS PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS TOi Attention of the City Clerk's Office, City Hall, 6700 W. 26
th 

Street, Berwyn, 
IL 60402, on or before 2:00 p.m. on August 7, 2012. Bidding Documents shall be sealed and clearly marked on the 
front "Bid for Berwyn Fire Station No.2 Parking Lot.» fAXED PROPOSAlS WIU NOT BE ACCEPTED. 

PROPOSAL DOCUMENTS ARE DUE NO LATER THAN; 2:00 p.m. on August 7,2012. These proposals will be opened 
and read aloud Immediately thereafter in the Conference room located on the second floor at City Hall. Make 
proposals on the bid forms supplied in the Project Manual. No oral, telegraphic or telephonic proposals or 
modifications will be considered. Submit with each bid, a certified check or acceptable bidder's bond payable to 
City of Berwyn in an amount equal to ten percent 110%) of the total bid. The successful bidder will be required to 
furnish satisfactory Labor and Material Payment Bond, and Performance Bond. 

The City of Berwyn is not responsible for delays occasioned by the U.S. Postal Service, the Internal mall delivery 
system of the City of Berwyn, or any other means of delivery employed by the bidder. Similarly, the City of Berwyn 
Is not responsible for, and will not open, any bid responses which are received later than the date and time stated. 

Bids may not be withdrawn within thirty {3D) days after the scheduled time of opening bids, withoot the consent of 
the Owner. The Owner reserves the right to accept any bid or to reject any or all bidS, or parts of such bids, and 
waive Informalities or irregularities In bidding. 

The Owner requires Substantial Completion of the project on or before October I, 2012 

QUESTIONS: All questions and clarifications regarding thiS Request for Proposal must be submitted no later than 
3pm, August 2, 2012 by e-matling the following City Representative: 

Sam Moilnaro, Assistant Fire Chief 
smollnaro@cLberwyn .il.us 

By Order of: Mayor and Berwyn City CounCil 
s/ /Thomas J. Pavlik, City Clerk 



NAME 

TKCONCRETE 

BERWYN FIRE STATION NO 2 
PARKING LOT 

2:00 PM AUGUST 7,2012 

BUS. 
CARD 

F.M. & J ASPHALT PAVING 4302 WARREN AVE, HILLSIDE, IL 

ABBEY PAVING 1949 County Line RD. Aurora. IL 

RECEIVED 
BID PKGE 

DEPOSIT 
CHECK 

MARTAM CONSTRUCTION 1200 GASKET DR. ELGIN, IL OtJ&. ~o 
--~~--~~~----~~~~--~~~------------~~~~~~~~~ 



K. Consent Agenda 



The City of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 We!lt. 2G'h Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402·0701 Telephone: (708) 749-ti401 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

August 9,2012 

Mayor RobertJ. Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

SUBJECT: Payroll August 1, 2012 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

Fax: (708) 788·2675 

The current payroll has been prepared for review by the finance department and is ready for approval at the 
August 14, 2012 meeting. 

Payroll: August 1,2012 in the amount of $1 ,029,203.76. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



The City of Berwyn Nona N. Chapman 
1 st Ward Alderman 

J. ,,~ A Century of Progress with Pride 
\) 6700 West 26(h Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 749.{i401 Fax: (708) 788-2675 

August 9, 2012 

Mayor RobertJ. Lovern 
Members of the City Council 
City of Berwyn 

www.berwyn-il .gov 

SUBJECT: Payables August 14, 2012 meeting 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The current payables were prepared for review by the finance department and are ready for approval at 
the August 14,2012 meeting. 

Total Payables: August 14, 2012 in the amount of $2,374,264.65. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Nona N. Chapman 
Budget Committee Chairman 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date : 8/10/2011 - To Payment Date; 8/10/2012 

Reconciledl Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Payee Name Amount Amount Difference 
01 - General Cash 
Qh& 
18390 07/2312012 Open Accounts Payable JCCIA Columbus Day Parade $125.00 
18391 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable Key Equipmenl Finance 53.901.64 
18392 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable Key Govemment Finance, Inc. 53,521 .52 
18393 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable Marking Specialists Corporation 519,120.15 
18394 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable SecretaI)' of State $10.00 
18395 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable Taylor Lazzara $400.00 
18396 0712612012 Open Accounts Payable The Law Offices of Marshall J. Burt S6,020.OO 
18397 07/2612012 Open Accounts Payable Wayne Parthun $3,990.00 
18398 07/31/2012 Open Accounls Payable GG Development Corp. 516,515.00 
18399 07/3112012 Open Accounts Payable Gould & Ratne,. LLP $650,000.00 
18400 08/0112012 Open Accounts Payable 3-D Sound Company 51,550.00 
18401 0810112012 Open Accounts Payable AA Renlal $6,573.00 
18402 08/0112012 Open Accounts Payable Brian Pabst $48.60 
16403 08101/2012 Open Accounts Payable Dave Edgren 5200.00 
16404 08/01/2012 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics, Inc. $108,00 
18405 0810112012 Open Accounts Payable Eggie Mills-Flelcller 5150.00 
18406 0810112012 Open Accounts Payable Evan Summers $14.00 
18407 0610112012 Open Accounts Payable KCM Productions $875.00 
18406 0810112012 Open Accounls Payable Making Faces Chicago 5880.00 
16409 08/0112012 Open Accounls Payable Marie S. Lauretana $200.00 
18410 0810112012 Open Accounts Payable Melrose Pyrotechnics, Inc. $5,000.00 
16411 08101/2012 Open Accounts Payable The Bagpipers & Drums ollha $300.00 

Emerald Society 
18412 0810812012 Open Accounts Payable R.D.V. Eleclric, Inc. $1,070.00 
18413 08rl0/2012 Open Accounts Payable 1 st Source America 51.776.89 
16414 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable 3 Branch Products. Inc. 51,027.73 
18415 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable A & A Sprinkler Company, Inc. 5330.00 
18416 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable A Square Deal Glass Company 5650.00 
18417 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable ABC Aulomotive Electronics $1,047.50 
18418 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable ABC Commercial Maintenance $9,268.00 

Services, Inc. 
18419 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable AETNA $27,226.14 
18420 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Air One Equipment, Inc. $2,713.00 
18421 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Alrgas North Central $196.70 
18422 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable AI Warren Oil Company $47,153.86 
18423 O8fl012012 Open Accounts Payable All American Exterior Solutions $350.00 
16424 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Alliance Entertainment $10.49 
18425 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable ArnAudit S961 .68 
18426 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Amazon.com S679.41 
18427 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Anthony 8ertuca S19.00 
18428 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable AntoniO Montiel ~.49 
18429 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Apple Books S352.66 
16430 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Aqua Chill of Chicago # 22 $258.00 
18431 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Art Flo Shirt and Lettering $1,680.00 
18432 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Associated Tire and BatteI)' $506.00 
18433 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable AT&T $5,263.32 
18434 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable AT&T 513,435.19 
18435 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable AT& T $1,656.01 

user: Ic ... ·lne lli. Lu na Pages: 1 of 7 Thursday, August 09. 2012 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/10/2011 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2012 

Reconclledl Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Pal!88 Name Amount Amount Difference 
18436 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Peyable AT&T $1,104.00 
18437 08110/2012 Open Aocounts Payable A T& T Long Distance 549.27 
18438 0811012012 Open AC(;Ounts Payable AWESOME Pest Service 5725.00 
16439 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable B & B Wholesale Distributors S365.46 
18440 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable B. Davids Landscaping $1.465.00 
16441 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Baker & Taylor Entertainment, Inc. S682.76 
18442 0811012012 Open AC(;Ounts Payable Banc of America, Public Capital S5,512.68 

Corporation 
18443 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Barge Terminal & Trucl<ing 52.258.43 
18444 08/10/2012 Open Aocounts Payable Becky Spratford S2O.00 
16445 0811012012 Open AC(;Ounls Payable SelWYn Ace Hardware 574.48 
16446 08110/2012 {)J>en Accounts Payable BeIWYn Western Plumbing & Heating 518.00 
16447 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Bio-Tron. Inc. S160.00 
18448 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Blackstone Audiobooks S115.50 
16449 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Bluders Tree Service & Landscaping $1 .500.00 
18450 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Brian Pabst 51n.50 
16451 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable BSN Sports $272.99 
18452 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Cabreana Audio Group 5229.82 
18453 0811012012 Open AC(;Ounls Payable Carlos Salinas 523.35 
18454 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Cassidy TIre $1 .233.41 
18455 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable COW Government, Inc. S378.69 
18456 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable CenterPoint Energy Services,lnc. 51.322.40 
18457 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Cermall Anmal Clinic 526.00 
18458 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Office Technology Group 5399.10 
18459 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Chicago Public Uibrary S509.4S 
18460 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Christine Mangold $43.01 
18461 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Cindy Vogi S70.05 
184S2 08/1012012 Open AC(;Ounts Payable Citadel S180.00 
18463 0811012012 Open Acoounts Payable Clean Source, Inc. $1,795.00 
18464 0811012012 Open Acoounts Payable Collision Centers Of America 565,000.00 
18465 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Corneast Cable $11.94 
18466 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable CornEd 51,291.59 
18487 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable ComEd S17,032.38 
18468 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Comfort Suites Minneapolis- 51,261 .04 

Downtown 
18469 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Communication Revolving Fund $439.15 
18470 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Complete Temperature Systems, lnc. $2,105.00 
16471 08/1012012 Open Acoounts Payable Cory Glabe(son S25,OOO.00 
18472 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Cuda law Offices, L TO $1,369.50 
18473 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable David Jelonek $21.56 
18474 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable David Norton S75.87 
18475 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Debra Elmore 534.94 
18476 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Deece Automotive $4,954.80 
18477 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Dell Marketing. LP 53,715.42 
18478 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Dell Marketing, LP 580.38 
18479 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Depot District Development, LLC 575,000.00 
164$0 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Diamond Graphics,lnc. $1,180.00 
18481 08110/2012 Open Acoounts Payable Dolores Wojnarowski 536.69 
184a2 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Don Morris Architects, PC $9,318.00 
18483 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable OVA. com S126.29 

user: lovlne ll i. Luna Pages: 2 of 7 Thursday, August 09. 2012 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8f1DI2011 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2012 

Reconciledl Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source P8~ee Name Amount Amount Difference 
18484 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable E & M Maintenance Group $1,315.00 
18465 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Eagle Engraving 5140.33 
18486 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable ESSCO 555.55 
18467 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable eOot 5200.00 
18488 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Elite Construction Solu1ions, Inc. Sl .630.00 
18489 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Empire Cooler SelVice, Inc. $92.00 
18490 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Equilibrium IT Solutions, Inc. S4,652.50 
18491 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Esther Corral $40.00 
18492 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Exelon Energy Company 55.959.09 
18493 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable FBI-LEEOA 550.00 
16494 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Federal Express Corporation $166.76 
16495 08{1012012 Open Accounts Payable Federal Rent-a-Fence, Inc. 572.00 
16496 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Felco Vending. Inc. $200.00 
16497 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Film Ideas, Inc. $115.00 
16498 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Fire Safety Consuhants, Inc. 51.560.00 
18499 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Flash Electric Company $2.340.00 
18500 0611012012 Open Acoounts Payable Florence Ruffino 527.10 
18501 06l10{2012 Open Accounts Payable Fort Dearborn Ufe Insurance $5.629.00 

Company 
18502 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Fox Valley Fire & Safety $97.20 
16503 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Frank Sedlacek 523.35 
18504 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Freeman Fence, Inc. 510,000.00 
18505 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Freeway Ford Truck Sales, Inc. $140.28 
18506 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable G.W.Serkheirner CO .. lnc. S334.OO 
18507 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Gabriel Sales Sl19.76 
18506 0811012012 Open Accounls Payable GALE $203.16 
18509 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Gaylord Bros, Inc. $77.94 
18510 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Gene Ha $40.00 
18511 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Goldstine,Skrodzki.Russian.Nemec & $4.788.30 

Hoff. LTD. 
18512 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Grainger 529.02 
18513 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Greater Illinois Title $3,140.00 
18514 08/10/2012 Open ACCCMJnts Payable Grey House Publishing $14$.50 
18515 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Gurtner Plumbing. Inc. 58.482.00 
16516 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable H-O-H Chemicals, Inc. $550.00 
18517 06/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Haiges Machinery. Inc. 5206.84 
18518 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Halogen Supply Company. Inc. $4,775.67 
16519 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable HO Supply WatelWorks. L TO $6.226.48 
18520 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Health Care SelVice Corporation $037.213.96 
16521 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable High PSI, L TO $327.78 
18522 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Hinckley Springs $30.42 
16523 08{1012012 Open Accounts Payable Holiday Camera. Inc. $45.00 
18524 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Home Depot Credit Services 5222.82 
18525 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Illinois Department of Employment $7,677.00 

Security 
18526 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Illinois Fire SelVice Administrative $35.00 

Professionals 
18527 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Ininois Paper & Copier Company $140.00 
18528 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Industrial Organizational $2.070.00 

Solulions.lnc. 

usee lovinelh, Luna Pages: 3 or 7 Thursday. August 09.2012 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/10/2011 - To Payment Date: 6/10/2012 

Reconciledl Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Pa'iee Name Amount Amount Difference 
16529 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Infinity Sign & Graphics $212.96 
18530 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Ingram Library SelVices S2.601.03 
16531 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable InternationallnstilUle of Municipal $250,00 

Clel1cs 
18532 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable J & L Uniforms S98.94 
18533 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable J. G. Uniforms, Inc. 522.035.00 
16534 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable J. Sterling Morton High School S5,000.00 
18535 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Jack's Rental, Inc. $4.280.55 
16535 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Jack's Renlal, Inc. $1,896.58 
18537 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Jack's Rental. Inc. 511.99 
16538 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Jack's Rental, Inc. $426.25 
18539 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable James Frank $65,95 
16540 06/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable James R. Acanfora 5396.00 
18541 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable James Wojnarowski 571.25 
16542 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Janice Keen S40.OO 
16543 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Javier Mandujano $1,475.00 
18544 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable JNC Consulting, Inc. 53.300.00 
18545 06/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable John E, Reid and Associates. Inc. 5500.00 
18546 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable John Tarullo 53.740.00 
18547 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable John Wysocki $63,39 
16548 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Jonathon Kunz & Associates $6,000.00 
18549 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Joseph Renholds $19,43 
16550 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Juan, Cheryl & Margarita Vergara $1,475.00 
18551 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Judy Pavel $42.78 
18552 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable K's Quality Construction, Inc. $2.689.00 
16553 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Key Govemment Finance. Inc. $24,820.71 
18554 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable KEYper Systems $402.65 
18555 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Kus Stanislaw $70.05 
16556 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable L - K Fire Extinguisher Service 5114.45 
18557 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Lakeshore Plumbing,lnc. $10,000.00 
18558 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Lakeview Bus Lines. Inc. 53,820.00 
18559 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Lanzillotti. Gribben & Marchuk $2,211.00 
16560 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Lawndale News 5790.80 
18561 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Lori Thielen S200.00 
16562 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Lyons Electric Company S189,400.96 
18563 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Lyons Tree Service, Inc. $17,430.00 
16564 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable M. K, Sports $3,990.00 
18565 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable MacNeal Phy Group [OCCMED) S80.00 
18566 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Magdelena Avila 51,475.00 
18567 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Margaret Hogan $62.21 
16568 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Maria I. Nieves $40.00 
18569 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Maria Rosol $23.35 
18570 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Maricela N. Leon $150.00 
18571 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Martin-Aire Heating & Cooling, Inc. $24.650.00 
16572 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Mary Baratta $42.78 
18573 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Mary Noriega S40.00 
18574 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable McCann industries, Inc. $924.61 
18575 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable McDonald Modular Solutions, Inc. S285.00 
18576 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable McDonough Mechanical Services, Inc. 51,702.42 
16577 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable McGuire's II, LLC S150.00 

user: lovlnelli, Luna Pages: 40f7 ThurSday, August 09, 2012 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/10/2011 - To Payment Dale: 8/10/2012 

Reconciled! Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date, Status Void Reason Voided Date Source Pa~ee Name Amount Amount Difference 
18578 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable McMaster-Carr Supply, Inc. S841.01 
18579 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Medical Reimbursement Services. 55.340.00 

Inc. 
18580 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Menards $54.66 
16581 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Metro Power, Inc. $2,100.00 
18582 08/1012012 OJ)en Accounts Payable Midlael Fellows $1,274.53 
18583 06110/2012 OJ)en Accounts Payable Michele Sowa $460.00 
16584 06110/2012 Open Accounls Payable Micro Marketing, LLC $384.52 
18585 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Midway Building $2,006.00 
18586 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Midwest Tape $544.72 
18587 08110/2012 Open Acrounts Payable Mike & Sons $6,957.40 
18566 08110/2012 Open . Accounts Payable Miriam Lisbeth Amaraz $1.475.00 
18589 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable MRA $14,714.00 
16590 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable MTS Safety Products. Inc. $1,672.52 
18591 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Municipal Clerks of Illinois $105.00 
18592 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Municipal Clerks of SW Suburbs $40.00 
18593 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable NAEIR $42.00 
18594 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Nanette Ambriz $1,475.00 
16595 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Neldel Communications $627.73 
18596 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable NicorGas 5109.69 
16597 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Nora Laureto $831 .28 
18596 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable North Berwyn Park Distric1 530,000.00 
16599 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable North Riverside Public library $144.00 
18500 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable O'Dea Entertainment $275.00 
18601 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Odelson & Sterk, LTD $31,366.71 
18602 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Office Depot $138.45 
18603 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Office Equipment Sales $790.69 
18604 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Ogden Top & Trim Shop $620.00 
16605 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Oldies.com 5188.12 
18606 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Orlando Diaz $3,760.00 
18607 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable PACE Vanpool $400.00 
18608 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Pamela Bollnow $34.50 
18609 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable ParacJete Press. Inc. $105.43 
18610 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Patrick N. Murray 52,275.00 
18611 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable PBS Distribution, LlC $155.63 
18612 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Personalized Awards 516.50 
18613 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Pins News $12.00 
18614 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable PR Newswire Association, lLC $643.50 
18615 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Professional Pest Control, Inc. $65.00 
16616 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable R.A. James Construction $2,160.00 
18617 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Ray O'Herron Company, Inc. 5153.50 
16616 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Raymond Paradee $46.70 
18619 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Richard Janda $19.43 
18620 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Robert Bloch $23.35 
18621 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Robert Churchill $44.46 
18622 06110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Robert E. Dwan $211.92 
18623 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Robert J. Lovero $202.37 
18624 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Robert R. Andreas & Sons $1 ,216.10 
16625 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Roscoe Company $1,790.82 
18626 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Rose Productions $350.00 

user' JovinelJi , Luna Pages: 5 of 7 Thursday, August 09. 2012 



CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date; 8/10/2011 - To Payment Date: Bf10/2012 

Reconciled( Transaction Reconciled 
Number Date Status V04d Reason Voided Date Source Pallee Name Amount Amount Difference 

16627 08/10/2012 Open Accounts Payable Ruth Hokecek 566.13 
16628 0811012012 Open Aca>unts Payable Ruth Volbre 523.99 
18629 08110/2012 Open Aca>unts Payable S. Jantelezio Insurance Company 530.00 
18630 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Safeguard Business Systems $562.89 
18631 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Sam's Club I GECRB $106.21 
18632 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Sam's Club I GECRB $182,67 
18633 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Sam's Club 1 GECRB $1,279.09 
18634 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Sam's Club I GECRB 5261.36 
18635 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Samuel Lozada 5250.00 
18636 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Santo Sport Store 5653.40 
16637 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Sarah's Inn 53,094.00 
18638 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Scot Decal Company, Inc. S6,625.oo 
18639 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable SecretaI)' or State 510.00 
18640 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Shark Shredding, Inc, 5730.30 
18641 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable ShelWin Williams $1,411.69 
18642 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Shoestring Business Mariteling 5625.53 
18843 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Snappy Convenience Center #12 513.50 
18644 0811012012 Open Aocounls Payable Sound Planning Associates, Inc. 5751.50 
18645 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Sprint 5471 .31 
18646 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Standard Equipment CCIIT1JIany $173.68 
18647 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable State Industrial Products 5127.73 
16646 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Siorino, Ramello & Durkin $4.126.40 
18649 08/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Strictly Sewers $7,800.00 
18650 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Studio R Architecture, Inc. $4,233.50 
18651 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Suburban Laboratories, Inc. 5340.00 
18652 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Summitt Supply of Colorado $1,269.00 
18653 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Superior Lamp Inc. $401.55 
18654 06/1012012 Open Aocounts Payable Susan Slattery $70.05 
18555 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Swank Motion Picture, Inc. 51,576.00 
16656 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Tammy R. Clausen $83.96 
18657 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Tele-Tron Ace Hardware $573.54 
18658 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Tele-Tron Ace Hardware $961 .22 
18659 0811012012 Open Accounts Payabte Tele-Tron ~ HardWare 5227.88 
18660 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable The Sign Edge $30.00 
18661 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Theresa Crowley $11 .59 
18562 0611012012 Open Accounts Payable Thomas Hayes $10.91 
18663 06/1012012 Open Accounts Payable Thomas J. Pavnk 5231.79 
16664 0811012012 Open Aocounts Payable Titan Outdoor. LLC $1,216.00 
18665 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Total Par1<ing Solutions. Inc. $1.920.00 
16666 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Triple M Mechanical, Inc. $2,405.50 
16667 0811012012 Open Accoun~ Payable U.S. Cdular 5325.47 
18666 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable U.S. Postmaster $1,427.00 
18669 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Uline $82.90 
18670 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable University or II at Urbana-Champaign $400.00 
18571 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Upstart. Inc. $57.00 
18672 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable US Gas $304.80 
18673 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable VCA BeIWyfl Animal HO!;9ital $160.57 
18674 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable Vermeer - Illinois, Inc. $792,34 
16675 08110/2012 Open Accounts Payable Walgreens Company 564.70 
18676 0811012012 Open Accounts Payable West Payment Center S28.00 

user ' lovlnelll, Luna Pages: 6 of 7 ThursdaY,August09,2012 



Number Dale 
18677 0811012012 
18678 08110/2012 
18679 0811012012 
18680 0811012012 
18681 0811012012 

Type Check Totals: 
01 - General Cash Tolals 

Grand Totals : 

user lovinelli, Luna 

Status 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 
Open 

Void Reason 

CITY of BERWYN 

Payment Register 
From Payment Date: 8/10/2011 - To Payment Date: 8/10/2012 

Reconciled! 
Voided Date Source 

Checks 

All 

Checks 

All 

Accounts Payable 
Accounls Payable 
Accounts Payable 
Accounls Payable 
Accounts Payable 
292 Transactions 

Status Count 
Open 292 
Reconciled 0 
Stowed 0 
Total 292 

Stalus Count 
open 292 
Reconciled 0 
Slopped 0 
Total 292 

Status Count 
Open 292 
Reconciled 0 
Stopped 0 
Total 292 

Status Count 
Open 292 
Reconciled 0 
Stopped 0 
Total 292 

Pages: 7 of 7 

Pavee Name 
WESTPF 
Winiam Pack 
Willowbrook Ford 1 Kia 
Youth Crossroads 
Zee Medical,lnc. 

Transaction Amount 
52.374.264.65 

SO.OO 
SO,OO 

52.374.264.65 

Transaction Amount 
$2.374 .26465 

$0.00 
SO.OO 

S2,374.264 .65 

Transaction Amount 
$2,374,264.65 

SO.OO 
$0.00 

$2,374,264.65 

Transaction Amount 
$2,374,264 .65 

$0.00 
$0.00 

52,374,264.65 

Transaction 
Amount 

$1 ,250.00 
S300.00 

580.000.00 
$5.367.86 

515.85 
52.374.264.65 

Reconciled 
Amount 

Reconciled Amount 
50.00 
SO.OO 
SO,OO 
SO.OO 

Reconciled Amounl 
$0.00 
SO.OO 
so. 00 
$0.00 

Reconciled Amount 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

Reconciled Amount 
50.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 

Difference 

Thursday, Augusl09. 2012 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

Charles D. Lazzara 
Building Director 

(;700 West 2G'Io Str~et llCl·wyn. lJIinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fllx: (708) 788· 1427 
IVww.berwyn-jl.gov 

August 7, 2012 

Honorable Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor of the City of Berwyn 
Members of City Council 

Re: Building and Local Improvement Pemlits 

Gentlemen : 

Attached hereto is the financial report of Building and Local Improvement 
Pennits issued by the City of Berwyn for the month of July, 2012 along with a 
copy ofPerrnit Statistics for this same period. 

CDLer 
encs. 



Report Of Buildillg Permits Issued By The City Of Berwyn Tilesda)" A"gllst 07.2012 

Name a"d Address 
Pamela PoweR 

Vincent & Elizabeth Ri99 

Frank Balzano 

Richard Vargas 

Vintage 1, LL C 

J>E,H. & J,E.H" LLC 

R. Mendez & A. Barraza 

Alice Kiecan 

Wilson Vega & Ruth V"z 

City of BatWyn 

Benito Eloisa 

DNV Home Buyers, LLC 

Carl Knackstedt 

L.A. Develop(TIfJnt 

Betwee,,: 711/2012 

1617 S, Easl Avenue 

2339 S. Elmwood Avenue 

3226 S, Wenonah Avenue 

2537 S. Grove Avenue 

6530 W. 281t1 Street 

2405 S. Euclid Avenue 

1617 S. Cuyler Avenue 

3731 S. KenilwOfth Avenue 

2514 S. Scoville Avenue 

2240 S. Highland Avenue 

1641 S. Elm~od Avenue 

2714 S. Wesley Avenue 

3420 S. Lomban:J Avenue 

1504 S. Wesley Avenue 

14 Building Permits Issued Dllring Period 

(Blli/dine: J --:1. " Repr)N) 

A"d 7/3112012 Cost Of 

Issued Per",;1 No. Improvements 

SECOND FLOOR ADDITION AND INTERIOR REMODELING 7/10/2012 Bldg-B 7692-0 $28,000.00 

RADIATORS TO FORCED AIR WITH NC. SPOT 7/11/2012 Bldg-B 7693-0 
TUCK POINTING. DEMO BSMT WALLS, FRAME, INSULATE 
& DRYWALL ATTIC - CHANGE LIGHT FIXTURES. 

BUILD 2 NEW GARAGES 30 X 22 WITH NEW CONCRETE 7/1212012 Gar-B 7694-0 
DRIVEWAY 

ERECT DET. FRAME GARAGE 20 X 20 X 12 H. (PREV. 7/1312012 Gar-B 769S-<J 
YRS. HAD GARAGE AT THIS SITE) ·"ELECTRICIAN 
MUST BE AT JOB SITE AT TIME OF ELECTRIC 
INSPECTION'" 

DEMO'O OLD GARAGE AND BUILT NEW OET. FRAME 2 7/1712012 Gat-S 7696-0 
CAR GARAGE - 24 X 22 X 12 H. 

FINISH BASEMENT - ADD NEW BATHRM. LAUNDRY RM & 7/2512012 Bldg-B 7697-0 
OFFICE. ATTIC: 2 BEDROOMS & SKYLIGHT. WINDOWS 
MUST BE TO CODE. NEW PLUMBING, ELECTRIC & HVAC 
WITH NC & DUCTWORK. REPL. KITCHEN CABINETS. 
REMODEL EXISTING BATHROOM, PAINT, SAND FLOORS 
& ALL COMPLIANCE REQU 

DEMOLISH OLD GARAGE AND BUILD NEW 2 CAR DET. 7/1912012 Gar-B 7698-0 
FRAME GARAGE 22 X 24 X 13-10 H. 

RIR FURNACE AND INSTALL A NEW NC UNIT - DUCT 
WORK EXISTS. 

BSMT: INSTALL 1 FULL BATH. 1 HALF BATHRM - WET 
SAR - HOME OFFICE - WORK OUT ROOM. FAMILY RDOM 
& UTILITY ROOM. 

RADIATORS TO FORCED AIR. INSTALL FURNACE, AlC 
AND DUCTWORK. CONDENSORS MUST BE BEHIND 
HOUSE & 3 FT AWAY FROM LOT LINE 

7/25/2012 HVAC-B 7699-0 

712712012 Bldg-B 7700-0 

712712012 HVAC-e 7701-0 

DEMOLISH GARAGE ONLY - WILL NOT BE BUILT ON THIS 7/3012012 Gar-B 7702-0 
PERMIT 

INSULLATION RE INSPECTION 7/1012012 Bldg-R 7596-4 

FRAMING RE INSPECTION 7/2512012 Bldg-R 7653-1 

ELECTRIC SERVICE RE INSPECTION (GAS PRESSURE & 7/2712012 Bldg-R 7668-3 
STACK TEST THAT WERE DONE BUT NOT PAID FOR) 

Totals . . _ , . 

$4,500.00 

$40.000.00 

$11,000.00 

$9,500.00 

$22,400.00 

$17,539.00 

$5,913.00 

$30,800.00 

$5.380.00 

S400.00 

$0.00 

SO.OO 

$/75.432.00 

Cost Of 

Permit 

$650.00 

$130,00 

S748.00 

$330.00 

$280.00 

$985.00 

S305.00 

$240.00 

$905.00 

5130.00 

S100.00 

$65.00 

$65.00 

$150.00 

$5.083.00 

."I.rt: ' I of I 



Permits Issued By The Building Department MOllday, August 06, 2012 

Behveell: 71111012 AIJd 713112011 

Permits Issued: 1 
Cost of Improvemellts: $0.00 

Buildillg Permits Issued: 8 
Cost of Improvements: $85,700.00 

DJlmpster Permits Issued: 9 
Cost of ImprovemelJls: $540.00 

Electrical Permits Issued: 31 
Cost of Improvemellts: $21,528.56 

Felice Permits Issued: 18 
Cost of Improvemellts: $34,160.00 

Garage Permits Issued: 5 
Cost of Improvements: $78,439.00 

HVAC Permits Issued: 20 
Cost of Improvemellts: $85,454.00 

Loculllllprovemellt Permits Issued: 150 
Cost of Imp rovemelt ts: $1,530,687.84 

Pillmbillg Permits Issued: 38 
Cost of Improvemeltts: $101,000.00 

Roofing Permits l.,sued: 38 
Cost of Imp ro vem ell ts: $204,830.00 

Sign Permits Issued: 6 
Cost of Improvements: $10,750.00 

Total Permits: 324 Total Improvemellts: $211531089.40 

Fees Collected 
Building Final $3.105.00 

Local Improvement Permit $23.835.00 

Electrical Fees $555.00 

( Buildillg: Permil Fus Report ) Page J of 1 



Permits Issued By The Building Department MOllday, August 06,2012 

Between: 71}12012 Alld 713112012 

Electric (Underground) $100.00 

Electrical Service $200.00 

Electrical Inspection $6,100.00 

Signs $475.00 

Footing Inspection $65.00 

Framing Inspection $1,645.00 

Inspection $4,975.00 

Fence Fees $545.00 

Plumbing Fees $1,455.00 

Plumbing Inspection $4,100.00 

Plumbing Inspection (Underground) $1,000.00 

Post Hole Inspection $1,230.00 

HVAC Permit $2,600.00 

HV AC Inspection $2,790.00 

Service Charge $2.803.17 

Insulation/Fire Stopping Inspection $520.00 

New Water Meter $950.00 

Tap Fee $2,000.00 

Demolition Fees $25.00 

Dumpster $1,000.00 

Parkway Use $100.00 

Parkway Inspection $100.00 

Pre-Pour Inspection $1,750.00 

Stack Test $500.00 

Sidewalk Opening $150.00 

Street Opening $75.00 

Fine - Working Without Permit $2,000.00 

Fine - (Mise) $50.00 

Roof Covering Fees $3,480.00 

Garage Permit $550.00 

Gas Pressure $50.00 

Fire Department $600.00 

Health Department $100.DO 

Miscellaneous Fees $33.00 

Plan Review Fee - w/Permits $2,710.00 

I Total Fees Collected. . . . . $74,321.17 

( Blilldillg: Permit Fees Report ) Pagel 0/2 



Permits Issued Tuesday, August 7,2012 11:41 AM 

For Period Beginning 7/1/2012 And EndJng 71311:2012 

o Sign 

Roof 

.Plum 

Olmpr 

• HVAC 

IIII!lGar 

Jul '201 III Fence 

~E1ec 

o Dump 

gBldg 

o 25 50 7S 100 125 150 

Permit Detail 

2012 July 1 
2012 July S1dg 8 
2012 July Ollmp 9 
2012 July Sec 31 
2012 July Fence 18 
2012 July G81 5 
2012 July HVAC 20 
2012 July Impr 150 
2012 July Plum 38 
2012 July Roof 38 
2012 July Sign 8 

324 

Total Permits Issued 324 



Permits Issued Tuesday, August 7,2012 11:41 AM 

For Period Beginning 7/1/2011 And Ending 7/31/2012 

Jul'201 
. Slgn 

Jun '201 
Roof 

May '201 
o Prelim 

Apr '201 
POD 

Mar '201 
.Plum 

Dlmpr 

Jan '201 
• HVAC 

Dec '2011 
.Gar 

Nov '2011 
(gFence 

Oct '2011 
mSec 

Sep '2011 
ODump 

Aug '2011 
I!!IBldg 

Jul '2011 
.<> 

0 25 50 75 100 125 150 175 200 

Permit Detail 

2012 July 1 2012 May 1 
2012 July Sldg 8 2012 May Sfdg 13 
2012 July Dump 9 2012 May Oump 7 
2012 July Elec 31 2012 May Elec 31 
2012 July Fel108 18 2012 May Feoce 37 
2012 July Gar 5 2012 May Gar 5 
2012 July HVAC 20 2012 May HVAC 16 
2012 July Impr 150 2012 May Impr 176 
2012 July Plum 38 2012 Mev Plum 31 
2012 July Roof 38 2012 May Prelim 1 
2012 July Sign 6 2012 May Roof 64 

324 2012 May Sign 8 

2012 June Bldg 14 390 

2012 June Oump 18 2012 APflI Bldg 9 
2012 JUfle Elec 31 2012 April Dump 4 
2012 Jlltle Fence 19 2012 April Elec 18 
2012 June Gal 4 2012 April Fence 16 
2012 June HVAC 19 2012 April Gar 3 
2012 June Impr 181 2012 April HVAC 7 
2012 June Plum 26 2012 April Impr 163 
2012 June Roof n 2012 Aprll Plum 26 
2012 June Sign 3 2012 Aprll POD 1 

392 2012 April Roof 64 
2012 April Sign 7 

318 



Permit Detail 

2012 March Bldg 11 2011 September Bldg 4 
2012 March Dump 5 2011 September Dump 3 
2012 March flee 26 2011 September Elee 24 
2012 March FellCe 10 2011 September FerM:e 18 
2012 March Gar 3 2011 September Gar 1 

2012 March HVAC 12 2011 September HVAC 16 
2012 March Impr 143 2011 September tmpr 190 
2012 March Plum 18 2011 September Plum 23 
2012 Match Roof 59 2011 September POD 1 
2012 MalCh Sign 3 2011 September Prelim 4 

2011 September Roof 90 

2012 February Bldg 8 2011 Septembel Sign 18 

2012 February Dump 10 392 

2012 February Elee 16 2011 August 1 
2012 FeIlnIary Fence 4 2011 August Bldg 3 
2012 February Gat 4 2011 AUQust Oump 11 
2012 February HVAC 13 2011 August Elee 21 
2012 February Imp!" 70 2011 August FerM:e 14 
2012 February Plum 16 2011 August Gar 9 
2012 February Roof 18 2011 AUQust HVAC 21 
2012 February Sign 6 2011 August Impr 189 

165 2011 August Plum 29 

2012 January Bldg 6 2011 August POD 5 

2012 January Dump 4 2011 August PreUm 1 

2012 January Elee 20 2011 August Roof 91 

2012 January Fence 2 
2011 August SIgn 8 

2012 January Gar 1 403 

2012 January HVAC 15 2011 JUly Bldg 3 
2012 January Imp!" 69 2011 Ju~ Dump 7 
2012 January Plum 17 2011 Jut)' EIec 13 
2012 January Prelim 2 2011 July Fence 21 
2012 January Roof 23 2011 July Gar 9 
2012 January Sign a 2011 July HVAC 26 --- 167 2011 July Impr 157 

2011 December Bldg 9 2011 July PlUm 23 

2011 December Dump 3 2011 July POD 2 

2011 December Elee 24 2011 July Roof 64 

2011 December Fence 6 
2011 July Sign 5 

2011 December Gar 6 330 

2011 Oecembef HVAC 14 
2011 December Imp!" 86 
2011 December Plum 16 
2011 Decembef POD 1 
2011 Decembef Prelim 4 
2011 Decembef Roof 42 
2011 December Sign 1 

212 

2011 November 
2011 Novembef Bldg 3 
2011 Novembef Dump a 
2011 Novembef Elee 18 
2011 NOV8fIIbef Fence 9 
2011 November Gat 8 
2011 November HVAC 23 
2011 NO\lefllOer Imp!" 139 
2011 November Plum 23 
2011 Novembef POD 1 
2011 NOV8fIIOer PreLin 1 
2011 November Roof 85 
2011 November Sign 8 

327 

2011 Odober Bldg 4 
2011 October Dump 6 
2011 October EIec 32 
2011 October Fence 10 
2011 October Gar 4 
2011 Octobef HVAC 24 
2011 Octobef 1mpi' 183 
2011 October Plum 18 
2011 October POD 1 
2011 Oc\obef Prelim 2 
2011 October Roof 102 
2011 October Sign 3 

389 



Permit Detail 

Total Permits Issued 4099 



Robert J. Lovero 

.... ~ Mayor 

Collections and 
Licensing 

0700 West 20,1, Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402'0701 Telephone: (708) 788'2660 Fax: (708) 740'8010 
www.berwyn·il.gov 

August 8,2012 

Honorable Mayor Robert J. Levero 
And Members of the City Council 
Berwyn City Hall 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

Attached please find a list of business licenses which were issued by the Collection and Licensing 
Department for the months of June and July, 2012. Included are; storefronts, phone use only 
businesses as well as out of town contractors. I am also providing a list of businesses that have 
applied for a license with a current status of Application ReviewlPending as well as businesses 
waitin for inspections with a status of Inspections Pending. 



BERWYN BUSINESSES - LICENSED IN JUNE and JULY, 2012 (STOREFRONTS) 

CORP. NAME ANDIOR 
NAME ADDRESS OWNERS NAME COMMENTS 

Papa Johns 662B W . Cermak Road RUP, Inc., Pritesh Patel, Owner Restaurant (70B) 4B4-1999 (June, 2012) 

Reel Art, Inc. 6727 W. Stanely Avenue Cory Glaberson Memorabilia (708) 288-7378 (July, 2012) 

Perez Health, Inc. 2215 S. Oak Park Avenue Perez Health, Inc. Medical Office (708) 7BB-01 01 (July. 2012) 



BERWYN BUSINESSES ~ LICENSED IN JUNE and JULY, 2012 (PHONE USE ONLY) 

NAME ADDRESS 

No June, 2012 Phone Use 

Dirty Deeds Environmental 
Services, LLC 3240 S. Highland Avenue 

Saucedo's Towing Serv 1300 S. Cuyter Avenue 

A & N Expert Bldg Maint 1615 S. Wenonah Avenue 

CORP. NAME OR 
OWNERS NAME 

Same as Business Name 

Ramiro Saucedo 

Nilsa Sanchez 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Environmental) (July, 2012 

Towing Service (July, 2012) 

Contractor (General) (July,2012) 



NAME 

Battaglia Industries 

JVR Electrical 

BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED FOR JUNE, 2012 
OUT OF TOWN CONTRACTORS 

CORP, NAME OR 
ADDRESS OWNERS NAME 

406 Cam pus, Arlington Hgts Battaglia Industries, Inc. 

2302 Blue Island, Chicago Javies Garcia 

Side Kick Property Finder 7404 59th, Summit Juan & Alida Saucedo 

A Advance Heating & Air 111 Washington, Westmont A Advance Heating & Air, Inc. 

Bob Lewis Roofing 8312 Jolies Road, McCook Bob Lewis Roofing, LLC 

Davis Roofing & Constr. 126 Wing, Arlington Hgts Davis Roofing & Construction 

Page 1 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Electrical) 

Contractor (Electrical) 

Contractor (General) 

Contractor (HVAC) 

Contractor (Roofing) 

Contractor (Roofing) 



NAME 

FCC Corporation 

ANG Electric 

Baltic Pro Electric 

Fire Pros, Inc. 

Aspen General Contr 

A to Z Mobility and 
Medical Equipment 

Heatmasters, LLC 

All Steel Iron Works 

Northwest Asphalt 

Copperhead Plumbing 

Clearing Construction 

PirTano Construction 

Earls Building Supply 

BUSINESS LICENSES ISSUED FOR JULY. 2012 
OUT OF TOWN CONTRACTORS 

CORP. NAME OR 
ADDRESS OWNERS NAME 

15941 Harlem, Tinley Park FCC Corporation 

1901 Grove, Cary Angela Mesi 

1511 GolNiew, Glendale Hgts Baltic Pro Electric 

2710 Northridge, Grand Rapids, MI Fire Pros, Inc. 

1509 Raymond. LaGrange Park Aspen Genral Contractors, Inc. 

2043 US Rt 34, Leland Same as business name 

5540 Lawrence, Chicago Heatmasters, LLC 

4920 Central, Forest View All Steel Iron Works, Inc. 

2BW059 Commerical. Lake Barrington Northwest Asphalt. Inc. 

414 First. Peotone Daniel H. Flynn 

5400 Lorel, Chicago Clearing Construction, Inc. 

1766 Armitage, Addison PirTano Construction Co., Inc. 

1315 Cedar, Gladwin. MI Earls Building Supply 

Page 2 

COMMENTS 

Contractor (Cement) 

Contractor (Electrical) 

Contractor (Electrical) 

Contractor (Fire Sprinkler) 

Contractor (General) 

Contractor (Handicap Lift Installer) 

Contractor (HVAC) 

Contractor, Iron Works-Structural) 

Contractor (Paving) 

Contractor (Plumbing) 

Contractor (Roofing) 

Contractor (Underground Utility) 

Contractor (Window & Door) 



._._ .. _ ..... _= ...... :.....-. ..:=' ====:;::-:---------
Business Directory By Category For: Wednesday. August 08, 2012 

Application Review 

Business Name Address Lllst Update Phone 10# 

Raymond's Tacos alld BlIrritos (708) 12365 
6401 W. 34th Street Berwyn IL 60402 7/8/2010 

Total Businesses ....... . 1 

( Ilusincss DireCIOry By Category ) 
Page #......... 1 



_~._, ._ .. _ ... .. ·._.·.· .. ·._ .. ·.·K·._.·._.·._._._. _ .•.. _ ..... _ ..... _ ••. __ •. ___ • _ __ ... _ .. __ ._ .. __ ._ ._ .. ____ •.. '.'_' ..... ' .... __ .•... ~ ... _ ......• _ ..... _ ... _._._. ,-........... _ ........ _ .. ___ ._ ... __ ._ .• _ .. __ .. _ ... _______ _ 
, . . , " ... _ .. _ ... .. . . ... _._ .. - .. ,. . .. . .. -~ -_ .. , . _.-.. . -- --.. ... .. . .. 

Business Directory By Category For: Wedl/esday, August 08, 20]1 

Applicatioll Pending 

Business Name Address Last Update Phone ID# 

Alldies II/vestmellt (708) 795-2909 12367 
6847 W. Cermak Road Berwyn IL 60402 7/8/2010 

Laglliappe, LLC (312) 651-2037 11541 

2905 S. Ridgeland Avenue Berwyn IL 60402 7/8/2010 

Total Businesses .......• 2 

( l3U$i""", DireclOl)' Dy Category ) 
Page # ..•.•.... 1 



- ---- - - --- - -_ .:.... . -. -.. ----- ._.----- - . ----.--.--:.~-; .. -:.---;-.-.-;;.,-: .. -... .-.-:~-~ . - --;::-.-- --. - . :-:- -:'-:'-~ ....... ----
Business Directory By Category For: Wedllesday, Allgust 08, 2011 

Inspections Pending 
-- -- ------ - .. "._---

Business Name Address Last Update Phone IDil 
------~-~-- --------~=======--------

Berllryll Liquidators 
6609 W. Stanley Ave. Berwyn 

Bdde's Palace Illc. 
6907 W. Cermak Rd. Berwyn 

Collisiio/l Celtters of America Illc. 
6305 W. Ogden Ave. Berwyn 

Ellterpl'ise Relit -0- Car 
6301 W. Ogden Avenue Berwyn 

Femalldo Fuellles D.B.A. Roberto's Place 
3244 S. OakPark Avenue Berwyn 

Freedom Foot elillics 
6842 W. CennnkRd. Berwyn 

Jua/l Ocampo d.b.a. Quality Allto Service 
6619 W. Cermak Rd. Berwyn 

K ' Natllrallllc. 
6610 W. Cermak Rd. 

Milly's Beallty Solon 
6909 W. Cermak Rd. 

MUI/oz Medical Cellter LLC 

3100 South Oak Park Avenue 

Pav Realtors 
6308 W. Cermak Road 

Release Dallce Productions 
6803 W. Roosevelt Rd. 

Roosevelt Bar Inc. 
7005 W. Roosevelt Road. 

Taquerla El Polenque Inc. 

1547 S. Oak Park Ave. 

Ulliolt Arms Compa/lY 
6340 W. 26th Street 

( Ousillcs~ Directory By Calegory ) 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

Berwyn 

(708) 355-0790 13036 

IL 60402 2/2112012 

(708) 637-5138 13162 

IL 60402 4/1312012 

(708) 788-5944 13389 

IL 60402 8/812012 

(708) 749-2000 12778 

IL 60402 3/1612012 

13011 

IL 60402 2/1/2012 

(708) 484-3599 13352 

IL 60402 7124/2012 

(708) 749-7449 13304 

IL 60402 7/5/2012 

(708) 788-7900 12533 

IL 60402 6/9/2011 

(708) 484-9424 13191 

IL 60402 412612012 

(708) 484-2600 12702 

IL 60402 812212011 

(708) 79S-7100 10965 

IL 60402 4/1/2011 

(708) 513-5662 13331 

IL 60402 7/10/2012 

(708) 393-2596 12725 

IL 60402 11/112011 

13049 

IL 60402 2/2312012 

(708) 646-5605 12366 

IL 60402 8/30/2010 

Total Businesses ...••••• 15 

Page II •.•.••.•• 1 



. 60bert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

'f\ ell Y OF BERY1Yl 
A Century of Pl.'ogress with Pride CLER W5 OFfIC[ 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, llllnoLs 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-~"Q ~: ~7P8) 7,88if.7fi) 1 
www.berwyn-ll.gov lU I L I\Ub b P. L 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party ----'\"-":un~...,..,..O'___ __ block of C vy \eQ. fN-Q, 
Honorable Mayor Lavero & Members of City Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the -"'-' 3-"'--J.I~Q;..>..m""""",,,,-,,--_ ___ block 

or r A .LlJ\£ Q y)Ve._-__ _ 
The residents request permission to hold the event on --J...Q--'-""L",-,=~~ .. \8 __ ,~d0~..<...\~J/...c=. __ 

With a rain date of Vjug ,1$ I d<J \7 , We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them, 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Y,ours truly, G 

. )..1 • ( 

Address is: 
. I ) 

Phone number is: 

****PLEASE RETlJRN J~4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE 3!oOCJ BLOCK OF C UJd ~~K. 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON ~ dC'J ~L 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF Berm AND Q\2m .oURRAINDATEYS I¥)Ol'L 
ALL REFUSE MUST RF PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DiSPOSAL .... 

ADDRESS 

rhh.3.~~:.1h0···~~··IJJ?:t.~ __ 
.......... g~3S ......... a. .-.-.~-.M. ...... -.. . 
hhh3i/.4-5hh hh .. hh" hh4.£.h"h."". 
=.:!J.~d4",,· "h'--' . . 'h4ft;h--'hh 
''''hJ.WrJ.:L .:t." .. ,," " "h o.n;" ........ . 

::·it~·::: ::::.:. ::.' .. :::::tt::::: 
.. '3P/2"h' ... : .. h' ' __ hhh"'~ __ '''' 
<=-~lRj£--"o:.. . -". " ...... "h'''",,,.h,,,,, 
~~O'~"h.~.L__ h.' h ... "h.M .... hh .. __ 
*~(f. O' ........ ~ .. I ••••••• _.. ••••••••• ..~ •••••••• _ •••• 

. J .. O'O ... ~I •••• -. •• ••• ••• • •••• M ..... 

. .~,O'.0 .... ~h'... '.. h' ..... '.~ .. 

.......... k.!!3 .... C ift( Ud.- A-vt-- ' :~~ .. 

.. . ,. 3.1£2 .. ~{ ... s: ...... (~_.~.Lt;~ ...... k~t; .. 
~-..... .. J.~.q.~ ... s .. : ...... ~. P.V. !.~ . .fl:.. fYI.~ .............. _ 

.. _"h~2.~h"'~"jj~ ..... L .. .. 
...... .. ?.ltJ.~ .'B ... . ~ .. :. CU}I..V.r..: ...... ~ ...................... . 
. . .. .. . ~.~~~ .... ~ .. ~ .......•...•••..•••...•• 

...... . l.w t· ~ ..... C . ""'t(· .'-. 'm.~ v..~.: .. __ h ... h ... · .. h 

....... 3..f..e. .. :t. ..... . ... , .......... rn .. : ..................... _ . 

........ 3.~.y.J........ .. . .......... Ihtt ................... . 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Centw'Y of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, Dlinols 60402-0'701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788·2675 

www.beI.WYIl-U.gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: _ry~h~/5---L..1-,--1 '-__ 
I 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party _ 3_'_0_0 ____ block of ). iJe rlL! At"<. It A ~ " 
Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of City Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the ---,3~j_o_O ______ block 

Of _5_-_~_'l ~---,,---,,------,A_· _v-t ____ _ 

The residents request pennission to hold Ibe event on 5.-lu r ~ ~ ~ rt'2Jt L~ ~ L 

With a rain date of .s;:,...~.A '1l ~<--c~, U!/ 'L We are aware ofthe ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yoursrr~/~ 

Contact person is: 
I I 

Address is: 

Phone number is: 

***"'PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED"'''''''''' 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RES IDENTS OF THE 3' 0 D BLOCK OF W.e vt...o ~ ,I,. A ~ , 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERM ISS ION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON ,)dIA..0:4u A"", u.Tb 2..t 'b rL 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 1: orJ A.M.AND CZ~ 00 (J jJA , OUR RAIN DATE IS Sk..uf.-.a A'(; ?J.> 2c j?. 

ALL REFUS~ MII~T R~ PI Ar.~n 11\1 P~()PS::R t:ONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

ADDRESS 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

~ITY OF 8ER~l i I,J . 
, 1 f:'RI " r-' 7 J " ''' '- -- ", ~ [lFF'{CF 

A Century of Progress with Pride lOl l AUG - b p 2; ' 8 
8700 West 28'" Str1!et Berwyn. Dllnols 60402-0701 Telephone: (70S) 788-2880 Fax: ('708) '788·2B'7~ 

www,berwyn·ll ,gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: '1 -:L '3 - I L 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party _ ....... /L...:~=' ~Q~O _ _ _ block of --!...~......:o~m~f""":'''----2.A--1-..:.V_~=-,-
Honorable Mayor Lavere & Members of City Council : 

Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the , [1,0 0 block 
I 

Of Ho rne. sAv ~ 
The residen" request permission ~o hold the event on A l.j ( j S ~ ) )5, ,;co I ~ 
With a rain date of A gU s+ I S (lo I ~ , We are aware of the ordinance 

-J . ~ 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them, 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: ) 7=" 

****PLEASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE J (l () D BLOCK OF J~ 0 III ~ 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PAR1Y ON t\ ~ -) lSI i9-.o I c;L 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF I d : 00 pMND q 0 0 Del) . OUR RNN DATE IS A G _ /1 ;;Z a iJ 
) ) 

All Rt=i=II~F MII~T RI= PI Ar~n ...... PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL·· 

ADDRESS 

._ ......... _ ... /oV.. 7. _ ~ .. __ ~g_.-L ...... . _ .. _ ......... , ._ .. 

~ __________ ~~_~J' ____ ._. __ ~ ____________ ......... _. _________ _ 

~ ...... ~ .... ~~ ...•..... ~.~ .... -..... -.. -..... -... . 
......... . 12/1.. -.. Y(}ld. c .............. -.. -. -............ -... , -.... -.. 
' ... -_ ..... ,I J...3;t ___ ./\.o.'!LLe-___ .. __ .............. _ ..... _ ..... _ ..... . 

/<-i/O ~ ....... ',i~~- ... ~.~~ ... -.~~ ........ -.---.-..................... -.. 

~~;~~: i i~3:£: ::jj~~:: ~ :i1~~:~: :::::::::: :::: :~::::::::: ~::::: :::: ~ 
:d/. __ . .L-?:::"3 __ -.~~,. ____ ~ 
.. , .. ,l .. ~.3?.~ ..... ~ .. : .... ~~C?!~.~ .... ~ ....... .. _ .... ___ ._ 

........ (~3~ ...... Hqn{. Aue .... _ .. _ ............. _ .... _ .. _ ....... _ .. 

...... !~~.-.- ...... ~;!?~~~ ...... ----..... .. -............... _. 
/:1)A . ~ . 

.... -, ... -... -...... ":'T' .(;j) ..... -1[············· .---.................. . 
' ........ ~ ~~.~ .... __ :1t? ...... __ !1.( .. __ .. : ..... __ ................ _._ ..... __ ._ 
., ..... t .? .1.~ ......... ±k!.~ R_ .... fJ.\k._ .. __ ...... _ '_ .... __ .............. . 



Robert J. Lovero 
' ~. Mayor 

CllY OF 8lJ-\\\'Y i
r U:HWS OFFlCl 

A Century of Prog'l'ess with Pride 
6700 West 2«"' Stl'oet Berwyn, nUnola 60402.{)'701 Telephone: (708) 788-2880 

www.berwyn-ll.gov 

znl1 JUL 2l A 10: 12 
Fax: (708) 788·~6"t5 

Dale: ,~ db)< ),/} 
MayoI' Lovel'o & Members 
or (he Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Blnck PLlrty 2100 block of _....).C~U~/..;...lQ~L~ __ _ 
I 

HOflorahlc MIIY01' Lovero & Members of City Council: 

A((a~hed. please find n petition for a block party on the __ ';{-"....L.{CO=-_____ block 

()I · ~.s::;e...!..('-----------
The residcnls request pennission to hold the event on ih>'Z) c I R I ~:L. 
With fl rtlin dute Of __ 'l\p\I-t\ ........ ~ _ _ _______ . We are aware of the ordinance 

~1 
I'cgmd i Ilg hlock parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

YOllrs truly. 

-9lLv=7)u kid 
COnl;u.:1 person is: ShL 1I i4 1) 0 ko t,D 

Addrl~SS is: 11-( 
-=-------

I 

Phollc numher is: 
J 

***'I<PU':ASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE d(OJ BLOCK OF _G_~I-'-\~_t" ___ _ 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON _ ..... ~ ..... \:.~li'+"le"-'-· ,/ ___ _ 

CO rY\ ~ ,. 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF ~,.DO., !%:-AND~ , OUR RAIN DATE IS N I~ 
All R~I=II .C::I= ~~IICT r:.~ ... , • CED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

ADDRESS 

.. _ ....... _~_.l_?.k. ____ . __ ~~ __ ..... ~ ..... _ .... _ 

. ---........ ~.-9.S" ......... 0-'1 ~.\( ....... ~~-. -... --... . 

... --..... z.J. U. 0 ...... s..~ .. C-I!J.l {.c ....... -·4 ~ .. -... -.-.- .. -. 

.......... J)lI ___ ~ .... C~~~1-.- ...... ~ ............. . 
........ 6.L?:2_ .. ~5. .. {'pSI. fL .. Av.e--........ ---- ... --- -. -. 
. --.-.... ~.l:~~--... ~!- ..• ~~t~.~.- .. -.-......... -.-
---------~.l~-----t::~~-~-----.. ----- .... -.. -.. . 
. ... --- .Z.! .l .. t._ ... -.. S-til f-~ ................ '" -...... -
..... _. a/J.f ........ ~::::' ... --.... --....... -.. -....... -.--



3\2-42\-6fi{)9 tine 1 

· Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

08; lS: 24 07- )1- )012 1 12 

cn y 0/· t3ERW\'. 
CLERWS nr-Fi~~ . 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 Wea~ 26" St"eet Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) '788·2860 

www.berwyn-Il.gov 
Fruc: (7k~lls84tl.,~ I A 'I: J 2 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Re: Block Party .->...fR"'<--j ........... Oc...=U __ bJock of -o=J.lLL...O (1\,.,-J • .L::-<_ .L......;p t~.aIucr;Ltd.606.<--' 
Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of City Council: 

Attached, please find a petition for a block parly on the __ -J...Ct,L.O-,1t,-,,~<-O _ ___ block 

Of-fP-~~-I-f.u<-=la{j~/ ___ , 
The residents request permission to hold the event on aU ~/uAt If I 201 Z-

1711 
With a rain date of ___ ...LM..::...-..t~---"f}....:....-______ . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by aU of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly. • 

un?kddj~/ . 
Contact person is 'k/lA ~ ft/.JJ.; ,@OIlf1 ..-

- .. ." ~ 

Address is: -1:' 

Phone number is: ... 
e 

**"''''PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**Jbll< 

JUL-31-2012 09:56 312 421 6669 94% P . 01 



312-<l21-Mifi9 line I 08 IS.39 07-31- 2012 

I . = 

• WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE &. W BLOCK OF 1tJ f'A-lia ct 
• DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BlOCK PARTY ON ~{J1" I JfV.-.., 1/11 Z

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF jOaM- AND q 1M , OUA RAIN DATE IS flit I 
-. I 

ALL REFUS~ MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSALu 

lDORESS 

........ ~g~ ..................... .. w .... ... _ •• _._. __ . .. _ .. __ • • • _ . _ ........... ......... _ .. .. .. _ .. 

~1t~ . 
. .. •• • ••• _ • •• _._ ••• ', •••• "U'" '~~"H' . .. . . ...... . ... . . ..... ... _ . _ . h . ..... _ ..... _ .... . .......... . . . ....... n •••• • • _ I . a •••• _, _ •• h oI 

-..... ... (f..~ ... \ ... 1 ...... _ ............ _._. ___ ..... _._._ .. _ .... _._._,--............. _ .. _._ .. _ .. _ .... . 
-~~Q3- ... , .... -.-...... -...... -..... -.................. --....... -.......................... .. 
. _ .... G .. _~_Q._J.. ......... _ ............ _ ........................ _._._ .. _._ ............. _._ ...... _ .... .. 
..... ... ~ ... '3:..~ .. 1 ..... .. w ... ............. _. __ ................. _ . _._ ........... _ ..... ..... . . __ ._ .......... . 

..... ... f.p ... 1.9..~ ...... _ ..... _._.,., ........... _ ... _ ..................................... .............................. . 

.......... tz ... L..~ .. Y... ......... ............... _ ...... _ ........... _ ................ _ ....... __ ................. , .. . 

"f!f!fL-------·--·-;;C;Xl-Lii= o·1I-pL . 
..... . ................................ _ .............. ................. _ ........ w ... _ ..... .... .. . .. .. . ..... _" ... 3 .............. . 
-.--.. -.- -6.J2?".-.Lf ----.--.---~~-:;-.::;ti:~ 
.2 ... .. ..... -..................... ,~".~~t.- .. IQ ...... ~ ... ~Pc . e 
... ~.r.3..k,. ....... 3. .. ?!~~ ... ~ .... " ... "" __ .... w . .. _ ........ _. 

~_.'i_'!;!_}~O_~~ ____ .. _. __ . __ 

}·E2 .. ·-··\0· __ ·3.P.~···· .. ·~·· ·_··_· _··· .. ·_· .. ·_··_I .. 
",.-

£ ..... .... _ ... '= .. ~ .. ~._<J. ......... 112 ... ... :.:_._.f .. ~ ...... , ... __ ........... , 
................. (Q ... j .. ls.. .... W ....... ,_~_ ... ~t? ... ~ ............. w......................... ~ 

.................. (g.~ .. l .. ~ .......... w. .......... 1?. .... f..~ ....... , .......... ................ " ............ .. 
..... ............. u .. ~ .. a1.. ............ ~9..~ .... rJ ... ~n ... ..... .. ........... - ........ .. 

............. ... ... ~ .. ~.7 .. .J. ... , .. '::v.:~ ... -... )·_--'2.tff.. ...... E.: .. ~ ...... .. 

..... -.. .. . -(... .. ~(jl ···~-·:·=?e~-ft"::: .. . 

.. ... ... -......... ,.tQ~.k\.~ ....... ..... ~ ... , .... \ ...... j: .... L ... .' ................. . 
1 6 J~J ;; & -t!:f f~· 

f1~ 1@~!{!t£L · 

21 b6G9 94 % P.02 



Robert J. Levero , 

Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 

CITY OF 8E!~Vry ', 
r, LERWS OFFICr-

ZU 11 JUL 3 I P 3: 4lJ 
8700 West 26'" Street BBrwyn. TIlin.oiB 604.02-0'701 Telephone: (708) 788-2860 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

M,lynr Lovern & Members 
or Ihe Berwyn City Council 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

J~e : Block Pmt y _-",{---"-~",,,---O_O____ block of 

I ]()1l0I'ilhle Milynr Lavero & Memhers of City Council: 

Allilchccl. pleilse find a petition for a block pruty on the ___ ....:..../ ...... ?fJ......c:=--fO ___ block 

(If ojenC]f];rh AV~ . I J 

Th, ,e.,idenls rcqueslperrnission to hold thee~ :5t{2/wher lJrtJ 
Wi' h " rai n ""Ie of ~ix:Jr fcxttJ . We are aware of tho ordinance 

rega rding hlock parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank YOIl 1'01' your consideration . 

YOll r:; Inll:Y, ' " 

./J!kdi{(/.Y /)etlia e-[f) 

CUIl'"el llerson is //)/}r tile{ ef..;..-/t7elr.'JJCl Df Iliac co 
I 

PIHIIH! Ilumher is: --< \ ' 

*:t:**PI,EASE RETURN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTEDI/<*** 



'~' ~ 
" .' ":- . 

:::~ ·r',,-
'--'7~~ 

... .,...... J 

14~ 

~E THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE r 000 BLOCK OF uJttt~Jlla_iL ::~'-f7? 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON - - ~ Lr'~ 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 80m AND qpt1l . OUR RAIN DATE IS q / . I~ ~ 

- -- ................... r-n CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL·· 

ADDRESS fA 
.iSk_L .. f(aCCO' ..... !.3.2(Q..$..~.~nQ.1(JOlr1 

~,~~S~~~0.~:~C~!\:::::::::::::::::::::::: 
~ .. .J.~.L.~_._.W_~~_?!_._ .. _ .............. ___ _ 
! r7f7 I lfi?,Y -I'r 12F'1r' ~ A.l:?l'J 4ft- liuc~ . ~ ~.~.~ ... ~ ....... ~ ... -.. ----- ---- --- --. -fr" ......... --

............... -- ... J -~. 0.1_ ._ .. LA!. ~?lq.i JJ:;t-~ - --- .... . 
r \ ~"-( d lUeV] oY/c,h • ___ •..•••.••••••••••• _ •••• ____ • ________ • ____ •• _ ••••••.•••••••• J.!."!. ___ •. 

114fa0~~ 
_____________________ ••• ___ •• aa.w ••••••••••••• ___________ a ______ •• _,. _____ _ 

_ _ _ _ . ___ .. _._ ....... 1.3 4. ~ ___ ~f:t_.~_ ~~ _~ __ ±:. _. __ ... , ... _____ _ 
-.. -. __ . -.. --_ .. _ .. _J311~ ___ ._\~.o.r:!.l<h. -.- . ____________ ....... ---
________ ............. .1.3 .~.cj ______ oW ,tM.~~.l1_.di£ .. ' 

.. -------------... -.. 1 32 .. ? ___ p~¥f: .. -.. ~-- ... fl.. " 
,-- ___ --- -- ........... 1 .. 2.(J .. -~~(&. --. ---~ 
;.l.~ .......... _._l_3. __ J_5 ..... ~g_~_~.!-:-!.~_~_. __ ~ ~ 
~_Q~~.~ .......... /3.3..5_ .. L~J.J.-~J.JA. ... IflJr 
, .. ___ .. _._ ... _. _._. _ ... f..i.2) ...... !l.f ~~~ 
.---._-........... .... -I}qf. riU1~- ......... __ a .- ••• _ • 

.... _ ... _ ............... l.:l .. 19 .... ~. ~ .0.~ ..... -.. _ ... _ .. __ .. . 

. -----....... -..... -.. ~ .. ?-.: Y.. __ ._f/~ ... r--
'" -_ .. --. -............. /'.2./. -(.s:.~. ---... . 
.. _. ___ ... __ .... ____ . ___ [_~ ~.t ___ .W_w_t?~ .tt .. 11<1 .. __ . __ . 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 WcsL 26 '" SlrOIlL Berwyn. Dllnois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 798-2660 FBX; (708) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITVCLERK 

Date: _________ _ 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the BerwYJI City Council 

Re: Block Party 

Honorable Mayor Levero & Members of City Council: 

AUached, please find a petition for a block party on the 71 (J 0 . ~) C; 9 

The resideTll,,' request permission Lo hold the event on ~:; r - A-Y\~ - I 8 

block 

With a rain date of _ -----_________ . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and WIJ] abide by all of them . 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours (ruly. 

~Q~ 
COlllttcl person is: 

Address is: 

Phol1e Ilumber is: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED~'*** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE ~I 0 () ~ ?Z IClQ BLOCK OF IV} f- "Ie. ~ 

DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON (; fA. t- '~ If) 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF 8 i!L1IV'\ AND [f~ . OUR RAIN DATE IS _ <-__ _ 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DiSPOSAL .... 
= 

ADDRESS 

.. } .I} .? ....... M.0:-fLt.: ..... ~ ...................... , .. 

. ;!J!!t;).~ .... ,1i:1:~.I!::;; .. ~~ .......................... . 

. 3lf?? ..... ~JX41!:!?:;'" ~ .-............... , ... . 

. ~( ~.~ .... ~ ... ~: ....... , ..... -........... -.... . 

~j /..'<;. ..... J.It'1.1!F.i..& .. . fuL .... , """'A' ..... , ...... . 
~' <' 

I , .' ' I .............. ,.... ....... . ........ ...... .... ....,. ... . 

. -- .... , .. ).l.~.::) ... -. .11/ .. ~~ ____ ........... _ ...... _ .... , .. 

......... 2t .. y .. ~ ..... t.kfLlL ... Av.~ ........ . 

... ...... . ).1. .9. .. 9 .......... !'::! .. <::t:) .. L ................... . 
; .......... .J.l. i.g ......... ~~tI.k ..... -.. , ........... . 
.... .. , .... 3.. /..D..I ...... d!:l r-p."~ ............ "'" .. , .. 
"""" -.3.J..L.I; ....... b~'J&p-~ ......... '" ...... ,.-
. -.- ---···d·l +4 .... &.1.~.l~ ................ , 



Robert J. Lovero 
• 

Mayor 

~IJY UF 8C:lr~!Yl i 
A Century of Progress with Pride f:I.. !:: RK'S OFFI C :~ 

6700 West 28"' Street Berwyn, nllnols 60402·0701 Telepbone: (708) 788·2860 F:uc: (7oeh7.~·2~7.f!i ,
www.berwyn.U.govlUll !<lJb - L All: 4 I 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: g -2 - i 2-

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block. Party __ """'B....>..L\1x)........;;..;."""""--__ block of (1 a cecCQ I ~ 

Honorahlc Mayor Lovero & Members of City Council: 

Attached, please find a pelilion for a block party on the __ ..L..a~Y.....,L...;:::a::....>O..:..-___ block 

The resi den lS req uesl perm issi on lo hal d the even t on ----'-&u~~_4r'--\ L-)'S->\-~----'\'-'~-=---t---12;==:-.U....:\:...=L 
J 7 

With a rain date of Ptv~ 2-~ ,'2..9:,)\.. G . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of lhem. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly. 

~ 

ContacL person is: 

r " 
Address is: 

/ /"\ I I ,J / -. _ 

Phone number js: 

****PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**"'* 



· .. , 

WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE CJ4ro BLOCK OF Cln ra ace Ptue... 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON A \Jgv~.J t B 1 2Dt 2-

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF \ Q ClcY\ AND 9, pm, OUR RAIN DATE IS ~ \15 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL" 

ADDRESS 

d.~~ ........ ~~ .......... -................... -..... .. ................... ............. ...... ...... . 
~/L. .2 .. 5 .... _ ... sJ.~J:.~n.~ .. ~ ........................................................... ................. . 
2..tJ.3..7.. .. _c18.rcXJcf-........ ... _ ............... _._ ........... _ ................................ .. 
. _ .. ff. .. ~.02 .. ..... C.l.~<=e:Y.1.~ ........... _ ........... _ ..... .............. .......... .. 
~.4.[)J. .... £ ... t .L.Q.l .. r:J1 .. ~.t ... : ..... ~_ ............ _ ...................... ... . 
.... ... ~~ ... Q .. ~ ....... _ .. 5.. ... _l...LQ".V..L.r:1.c.e._ .............. _ ................ _ .................... . 

~.0: ................ 2:.~._Q .. ~ ...... ~ .............. i.J.~.r..(.Y.l~~ .. _ .............. _ ............ . 
~'-?.(p .. .. ... c..Ir! .. r.f.~ .. _ ................................................ __ ................................................ . 
~~j):i212.~..._ ... ... _ .. 
..... ~ .. \ ... QQ .. ~a ... _ ..... ....... _ ......................................................... __ ........ ...... . 
... .... ?~.?.: .. 'i ..... ~.: ..... ~t.£ .. ~~ .... AyS ...................... .. 
..... '!::: ... Cf.(j~ ... : ..... s.::: ..... _~ .. 0..~Jk:.E.t:!!. .. ~L ....... u ............... _ ... ........ .. 

........ _~~&9_ ..... C. .. 1..c.UtOC.{ ..... _._ ........... _ .......... _ .................... .. 
to ~t qo.(~ 
.... _ ....... _ ...... _ ......... _-.......... _ ........ -............... __ ._ .... _ ............ - ..... .. -.. ~ ...... . 

1· .. ··· .. _?1c{~~ .... $. .. : .......... Cl..tl~.fl~ ... ~.-... ~ ....... -............. . 
........ _ .. ~.:Lk.:~ __ ....... s...: ...... C1.Ct.r.~11.C."'_J.\v&kW .. ~ ... ................... . 
............ ~ .. 1: .. 1_5. ....... _.s. ... ....... ~/~ .... A~._ ....... ........... . 
...... ... 2.t..iJ. ....... d..1?.t.P.1 ... ~.~ ....... t~.~ .... . ............. ...... ............ . .. . .. . 

Y2 ......... b~.2l ..... S .... ....... C.\Obn.Y.:CQ;. ... ~~ 
" ....... .... .... .. .. 4 ... y.-l.? ........ .............. ~.!.~..fXR .. ~.ff.C?:..f... ................. ..... ....... .. 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

Clr y UF UtR\'IYI 
C!_ER'\t~; OFFI~r 

A Century of Progress with Pride ZUI Z P,UG - Cj A 9: Il 
6700 West 26'" Street Bel·wyn. Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (708) 788-2676 

www.bel'wyn-ll.gov 

THOMAS J. PA VLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Mayor Lnvcro & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Rc: Block Party _~_s_a_(J ___ block of _~_l_I._1 tY.....;.,J1l_W_h __ t1....:;.,'-l.::..-ve-_ 

Honorahlc M nyor Lovero & Members of City COtlnci I: 

2-~(JO Attached, please find a petition for a block party on the _________ block 

Of (;JeUOft tl ~ ave . 
to hold O,e event on ~ 2" f'h 

With a rain date of -C.~~~~~~:..L _ _I__7'1_1 . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Yours truly, 

~=----------
Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone Iluillher is : 

****PLEASE RETURN 3·4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTED**** 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE 2.. S(J() BLOCK OF We,;UtfnC{.·b 
DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONOUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON M Y 
BETWEEN THE HOURS OF I () C{l'/1 AND q fII1 . OUR RAIN DATE IS ,Aefl q 
ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAL·" 

ADDRESS 

~.~.J,?_, .. 0.!..(,~.:?, .f(.\_,~.1...A~~ .. _ ... _ ........ _, ...... _._ .................. _ ......... .. 
?.$.:.~~, .. , .... s..: ..... ~.ruJ.o/H ... ~ ........................... , .. _" ....... _ .. .. 
2.~2..2_ .... :??...:. .. (,L/.J..&/#./JLL .. _._ ............ _ ...... _ ...... , .............. _ ............ _ 
... ~ .. ~.:t .. 7._$.: ... : ... __ ..... 0:! (!(.!.?!.!.~ .. ~ .... ... _ .. , ..... "" ............ _ ... _ ......... ,._ .. , .... . 

[). .. s. .. 02. ...... UJ.;JiJ ~ ... 4rL~ ....... .................. - .......... .. .. 
..... (l.t..d..l... .. . .. Ldr.t.ta.lL ..... _Li.iJ£. .. ~ ... _ ......... _ ................................. . 
... a..&. .. !.~ ....... _ .. ... ~ ....... _ ...... .... _ ........... .......... .. .... _._ ........ ....... . 
... 2.Y..fl..1.. ... _ ... .&!..t,.f.~.:&42.~ ..... .................... _ ............................ .. 

.. .... :h) ... ~ ............. yJ.~ ....... ~ .. _ ........................... . 

_ZC~--· .. ··tt·~~--~:· ·· .. .. 
.... .... a.~.? ........ _ .... <2 ..... !.~rut.71£k .. ....... C/AfLr. .. " .............. -................. .......... .. 
... ...... 00 .. t. . .!.P.. ............ ~.J.e~I ......... -... ~ ..................................... .. .......... . 
: ....... {)gL4 ___ ..... Wlll~ .. ....... ~ .............................. _ ... _ ....... _ ...... . 
:z,$. .. Lb. ...... -.LUe..J.{\.D .. \6. .. c.~~,,-CI\.~L.(. ............ _ ...... _ ................. __ ... -. 

'2:l...J..2=: .. _ .... _ ..... \J..!i::::.: .. 'l.. !:':': . .r.':-.b ....... &YC .. _ ................... __ ...... _ ............. _ ............ . 

:?f?f:"--.. · -r~~tlz .. r--.. · .. ----· .. -· 
~ .. ?:.I ... .................. 0.: ... t../1 .. ~ ... 41. t.~ ....................... V.~ .... ........................ .................... ......... .. 



Robert J. Lovero 
Mayor 

~ ~ .l~ CITY OF BERW)' 
('I r:R"(/S - r ~, - ,- II. 0 t 1-/ r r 

A Century of Progress with Pride I , ' . ' 

6700 West 26'" Street Berwyn, illi.nols 60402-()701 Telephone: (70s) 78S.:a!UY NJ[; ('10$) 7A'~'1~ 2 
www.berwyn-Jl,gov 

THOMAS J. PAVLIK 
CITY CLERK 

Date: ~. CO· I ~ 

Mayor Lovero & Members 
Of the Berwyn City Council 

Re: Block Party __ ;~"-,,",(),--,D~ _ _ block of 

Honorable Mayor Lovero & Members of City Council: 

Attached. please find a petition for a block party on the ___ ~~~~O=-O ___ block 

The resident!; request permission to hold the event on 

With a rain date of ____________ . We are aware of the ordinance 

regarding block parties and will abide by all of them. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Contact person is: 

Address is: 

Phone number is: , . 

'~~I* *PLEASE RETlJRN 3-4 WEEKS PRIOR TO DATE REQUESTEDI/l* .... * 



WE THE UNDERSIGNED RESIDENTS OF THE ~ (pDO BLOCK OF ·H(1Vt..-L) . 

DO HEREBY REQUEST PERMISSION TO CONDUCT A BLOCK PARTY ON OJ.. --<6 . ;;...D I ;;>- . 

BETWEEN THE HOURS OF q . A rf) AND 1P . P fl1 .. OUR RAIN DATE IS 

ALL REFUSE MUST BE PLACED IN PROPER CONTAINERS FOR PICKUP BY CLEARING DISPOSAV· 

A I ADDRESS ;;. b l' & HC{VVt?V 

._._...2.Cz ... 1.,5 . .JJlt-Q~ .. m. __ .. _ . 

...... ... ........... .. ..... -........ ~.~ .. ? .. -.. -.... ~.~.'::.y. ........ _."' .............. _ .......... _.-

..................... _ ................ ?-~ ... ~.? ... - ...... JlJ.Jk .. ~.~ ........... -.. -......... - ... 

. ~ ... ~ ............ _ .. __ ........ 4 ... 2_.~ __ .......... .J:i..~.~~~.1 .... __ ........ __ 

....... - ........... ---......... ~~J.£ ....... J£:}.f.JE.i .. ~_ ............ -.. --...... -
2 ................... __ ..... g.1P..l.~ ...... L.X1.fL'vL-e.~ __ We~ __ ._ 
-..... ;j) ..... ........... 7Jr2..I.~ ......... :C-k!...!2.L\.I--.. -.. ··· .. · ........ .. ···· ........ __ .......... . 
..... ut~ .... ..... _ ........ Q!R..~ .. ~ ...... l±N..)j..~ .. ~ 
···tJ_fiet;i- .. _ ..... 2L: .. 'J1L= ..... lMr.Ve.S.: .. 
.;Jf,!.~_ .. m..c,y.d.J:.::::_J::k,Lc?C. 

L .......... .......... ....... .. .......................... ... ~ .. Je .. 3 .. ~ ........ .... ...I:. .. .J.r.:.v.Y. .. ~ .. 1 .. . 
r·····-··-··-···2ieifD.~l!~ 
-oy .. -.....d0"3 . .J-l:k;~Y.!,&M· 

..... .... .. ............ _ .. _ ... _ ..... _. __ ........ i3f_g .... ~ ........... J./~.~ ..... .. 



}obert J. Lovero 

~\? Mayor 

Rafael Avila 
Seventh Ward Alderman 

A Century of Progress with Pride 
6700 West 26111 Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (708) 788-2660 Fax: (70S) 788-2675 

www.berwyn-il.gov 

August 3,2012 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

RE: 2200 Block of Grove Avenue Rummage Sale 

Dear Mayor and Follow Aldennan: 

Please be advised that the undersigned residents (petition attached) of the 2200 block of Grove Avenue would 
like to hold a front yard rummage sale on September 8th and 9th from 9:00am until 5:00pm. The streets will 
remain open during the rummage sale. 

I am asking for your concurrence in allowing this event to take place. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me with any questions that you may have regarding this matter. 

r;:ttk 
I Avila 

Aldennan, 7 Ward 



We, the undersigned residents of the 2200 Block of Grove Ave., Berwyn, IL, do hereby request 

permission to conduct a Front Yard Rummage Sale on..s:.t.r. Sapf g 1J.V14 Sun,~. pi. i 
2012, between the hours of 9 AM to 5 PM. Our rain date is _____ _ 

We will not want the street blocked off. 

***************************************************************************** 

Name Address Phone Number 

1/ 

l..:2.JJ GHJV-€ 

v I 
~;; :J if. S:4a Uc _~() ...... ~-'W'-';::.......z....Z'....!::LJ~I/::..:::.&.~ __ _ 

~ 1... ~B .b y1)\rt, , . 
./. 1.,..0,0 __ __ - __ 

I , ,.. 
) . ...... J 

I l.../ I -...>-- I , 

7 
z:~ 2.:1..' '- f?~ 5 ' & )10(/' e 



July 27th. 2012 

Mayor Robert Lavero 
In Care of the City Council 
The City of Berwyn 
6700 West 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402-0701 

nRST CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH 
(UnJted Chwch of Chrtst) 

'500 W. 14th Street • Benwya,.'" 60402 
~; 749-0676 • p~: 79S~57 

P»cor JoM I. Clark 

Dear Mayor Lovero and Berwyn City Council: 

The First Congregational Church of Berwyn respectfully requests that the City of Berwyn 

close Gunderson Avenue between 34th Street and Ogden Ave. on Sunday, August 26th, 

2012, between the hours of 9:00 a.m. And 5:00 p.m. The First Congregational Church 

Of Berwyn plans to bold a Festival in the afternoon of that day to which the public will 

be invited. Our church has no yard to speak of and Gunderson Avenue was closed off in 

the past for such an event. 

We are still working out the details of this, but we do anticipate that there will be food 

for sale. We are also in the process of getting the pennits from the Berwyn Health 

Department for this event. 

I thank you on behalf of the members of the church for your kind attention to this 

matter. 

SiflJ-~ ~ 
Rev. John R. Clark, Pastor 



July 30. 2012 ~ ~ 
Tom Pavilik, City ~~ 
City of Berwyn 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Can you believe it's THAT lime of year already!? Yes, it's time for the Girl Scouts of Greater Chicago and Northwest Indiana to reach 
out to the people and communities who make our council what it is today ... not only to thank YOU for your past assistance, but to ask 
you once again for your support as we soar into our 2012--2013 Girl Scout year! 

As we continue to celebrate Girl Scouting's 1001h anniversary, many troops have big plans to earn money to go places and do great 
things like purchase a wig for a fellow Girl Scout with cancer or SU~PIY a community food pantry with much needed items for their 
shelves. We are also throwing a huge 1001

1\ party on September 8 so come along and join us and meet some of the girls and thei r 
leaders who you help by giving us support to our programs! (Just go to www.gscookieclassic.org for more details!) Hope to see you 
there! 

As you probably are already aware, our Council has two Product Programs per year that we host: 
• Our Fall Product Program (with order laking starting at the beginning of October 2012Jdelivery before Thanksgiving) gives 

our girls the opportunity to eam start-up money for their troops. 
• Our Cookie Sale (with order taking in the month of January 2013, delivery of those pre-orders in February and cookie booths 

from February-May) strengthens the girls' 5 Skills for Daily Life which are: 
./ Goal Setting 
./ Decision Making 
./ Money Management 
./ People Skills 
./ Business Ethics 

Most Girl Scouts participate in our Fall Product Program by asking family and friends for support but there are troops who host a booth 
sale in a local business and still some who sell door to door. During our Cookie Program, our girls do much the same but participation is 
much higher which I'm sure you can attest to as you see Girl Scouts ringing your doorbell. in front of your favorite Church, store or at a 
neighborhood meeting. 

If your community requires us to apply for a pennit, please see the attached Fall Product and Cookie detail sheet If that is sufficient 
infonnatlon to process our request on behalf of our Girl Scouts. please simply check the box at the base of this letter and fax (219-795-
1224) or scan (Imiller@girtscoutsacnwi.org) It back to Linda Miller. Linda is our point person on this project. 

If more information is needed before processing our permit request. please send the fonns to Linda and we'll be sure to fill them out 
and get them back to you right away. 

We are the largest council in the country and because we have 85,000+ Girl Scouts, distribution of badges to individuals is not possible; 
however, your permit or letter of approval (in a PDF format) can be e-mailed to each girl and troop efficiently from our office. 

If you require a Certificate of Insurance, an updated Certificate of Insurance is automatically sent to you directly from our insurance 
agent on or about January is! of each year. If you need one and do not have It In your fires, please let us Imow by checic:ing below and 
we'll be sure to get that to you as welt. 

If you have questions or need additional information, please don't hesitate to e-mail or call Linda Miller at Imiller@girlscoutSfjcnwl.org I 
855-456-8347 ex1.1948 or email or cart Susan Rakis at srakis@girlscoutsgcnwi.Qrg 1855-456·8347 ext. 2309. 

Thank you for being there for our girls as we begin our 101 111 year of making a difference! 

Most Sincerely, 

Je~ 

Please check the appropriate box(es) below and return to the email or fax number listed above: 
o The attached information is sufficient and your request is approved as submitled\ o I need a copy of the Girl Scouts Certificate of Insurance. o Please complete and retum the enclosed application 
o We also require the following documents (please list below) 



APPLICATION FOR NON-COMMERCIAL SOLICITATION 
Not for Profit Organization 

Name of OrganizatIon: 
Corporate Address: 

Main Contact: 

Person to contact for additional 
Information: 

Non-Commerclal Solicitation Purpose: 

Program Dates: 

Hours of sollcftatlon 

Girl Scouts of Greater Chicago and Northwest Indiana 
20 S. Clark, Suite 200, Chicago, IL 60603 

Jennifer Fredericks, Vice President, Product Program 
P; 85S-456-8347ext 1965 F: 219-795-1224 
E: jfredericks@girlscoutsgcnwLorg 

Note: The person in charge named above is requesting 
permission and is responsible for the entire jurisdiction of 
the council. You should not receive requests from local 
constituents. 

linda Miller 
P: 855-456-8347ext.1948 F: 219-795-1224 
E: Imiller@girlscoutsgcnwi.org 

Annual Girl Scout Fall Product and Cookie Programs 

Fall Product: 
Order Card Sales: October 5-21, 2012 
Delivery: November 8-18,2012 

CookIe Program: 
Order Card Sales: January 5-25, 2013 (Girl Scout 
Communities decide on collection of payment at time of 
order or time of delivery.) 
Delivery of Order Card Sales: February 9-24,2013 

Arrangements and permission tor cookie booths are 
made directly with local merchants and take place 
between February 15,2013 and May 1,2013. 
Product is sold and paid for at the sale site. 

As described by ordinance code 

Description of Vehicles used in solicitation: None as of this request 

Last date of previous requests: October 2011-March 2012 

Has the pennit ever been revoked? If yes, when. 

Has anyone listed on this appllcatlon ever been 
convicted of a commission of a felony under 
the laws of the State of illinois or any other 
state or Federal law of the United States? 
If yes, when. 

No 

No 



The City of Berwyn Nora Laureto 
~ 8th Ward Aldermen 

'" ",I A Century of Progre •• with Pride 
, } 6700 West 26'~ Street Berwyn, Illinois 60402-0701 Telephone: (70B) 749-6408 Fax: (70s) 788-2675 

August 6, 2012 

Mayor Robert Lovero 
Members of the City Council 
6700 W. 26th St. 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

www.berwyn·iLgov 

RE: FitzGerald's 6615 Roosevelt Road, Berwyn, IUOpen Air Concert 

Dear Mayor and Member of the City Council: 

I am requesting that the City of Berwyn give permission to FitzGerald's for a "Concert under the 
Stars" on Friday, August 31 5

\ from 8:00-11 :30 p.m. FitzGerald's has hosted many of these concerts in 
the past without incident. This is an open air concert pending the weather. I am also asking that the 
Police Department be notified of this event. According to Bill Fitzgerald, no tent will be erected for 
this concert; this is an open air event. 

Sincerely, 

Nora Laureto 
A Iderrnan 8th Ward 
City of Berwyn 



A ""."7'CO<>.... ORGANI~:ATlClN 

CICERO-BERWYN LODGE NO. 1510 

City Of Bezwyn 
Mayor Robert J. Lovero 
6700 W. 261i1 Street 
Berwyn 11 60402 

Mayor Lovero 

BENEVOLENT AND PROTECTIVE ORDER OF ELKS 

2600 S. Ridgeland Avenue 
Berwyn, Illinois 60402 

(708) 484-1510 

Aug. 8,2012 

The Cicero-Berwyn Elks Lodge # 1510 is requesting pennission to solicit fimds that 
would benefit the ll1inois Elks Crippled Children Corporation. All funds collected will 
help parents of children with physical disabilities purchase much needed medical 
equipment. 

Ifpennission is granted. we would like to hold the event at Ogden and Oak Park Ave.,. on 
Saturday October 13111 and Sunday October 14th. From lOam to 4prn. 

If there are questions, my home phone 
roberlsuchY({I~com~asLnet 

Respectfully tJ 
J?~_t:. C A--~ -
Robert E. Suchy, Secretary r 
Cicero·Berwyn Elks, Lodge # 1510 
2600 S. Ridgeland, Berwyn II. 60402 

r., Mail is 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear Tom: 

Janet Cairo [nitelightcafe@yahoo.com] 
Monday, August 06,20121 ;04 PM 
Thomas J. Pavlik 
Door to Door Request for Flyer Distribution 

For the O.L.O.B.E. Music and Arts Picnic in the Park event being held atJanura Park on August 26th, we are 
requesting to promote the event by placing a 3" x 5" informational postcard on the doors of Berwyn residents 
who live within close proximity to the park, as well as, residents who live between Windsor to Pershing and 
Harlem to Lombard. This will be done by select members of our ministry team. 

Thank you for your consideration in this matter. 

Janet Cairo 
President and Executive Director 
Dedicated to Youth Ministries 

1 



Simply Saved Resale Store 

July 20, 2012 

Dear Business Owner: 

Dedicated to Youth Ministries 
7009 W. Ogden Avenue 

Berwyn. IL 60402 
708-788-7009 

The Nile LIght Cafe Above and Beyond Mus~ Store 

Dedicated To Youth Ministries is an Illinois Not-For-Profit organization that was founded in 1999. Our 
mission is to provide a positive, loving and encouraging environment to every single person that graces the 
doors of each of the three businesses it owns and operates at 7009 W. Ogden Avenue in Berwyn. The Simply 
Saved Resale Store opened in November, 2003 and has become known in the neighborhood for offering 
gently used clothing, toys, memorabilia and household items at affordable prices. All items in the store are 
donated and it is run by a team of volunteers. The Nita Light Cafe opened in May, 2004 and is a faith based 
venue that hosts various music related events on the weekends in a drug-free and alcohol-free environment. 
Thousands of teenagers have graced the doors over the years and numerous lives have been impacted by the 
various events and outreach programs held at the venue. The cafe is also home to Dedicated to Youth 
Ministries' church. Through the church, peer counseling, bible studies, and various interactive programs, many 
people have built strong Christian values that often times a traditional church environment had been unable to 
provide. In September, 2010, Above & Bevond Music Store opened, offering music lessons, new and used 
instruments, sound equipment, music accessories and music related gift items. 

On Sunday, August 26U1
, Dedicated to Youth Ministries is launching its first outdoor event called G.LO.B.E. 

Music and Arts Picnic In the Park. The event is being held at Janura Park Baseball Field located at 281h and 
East Avenue in Berwyn. The name "G.L.O.B.E." stands for uGod's Love Over Berwyn Ephesians 5:1-2". The 
mission is to give a gift of God's love to the people in the city. It will be a FREE all ages event. We are inviting 
people to bring a blanket and picnic lunch to the park while experiencing the love of God through various art 
forms of live bands, drama and dance. We are inviting all the Berwyn churches and other Christian ministries 
to participate in this beautiful event with us. This is a very tumultuous, challenging time and many people are 
hurting. Our prayer is that this event will help bring people hope, encouragement and to let them know that 
God loves them and cares about them. 

We are stepping out in faith and trusting God to provide everything needed to make it all happen. We are 
praying for people and businesses to help sponsor this event as we have expenses such as the rental of a 
stage, sound equipment, tents, etc. Additionally, we would like to bless some of performing artists with a love 
offering. Enclosed is a pledge form and envelope. Please prayerfully consider giving a tax deductible financial 
gift towards this event. 

Thank you for taking the time to leam more about our mission. If you have any questions, please feel free to 
personally contact me. In the meantime, our ministry team is praying daily for God to continue to bless and 
provide your business with everything you need. 

I n the love of Jesus, 

~~ 
Janet Cairo 
President and Executive Director 



" 

Dedicated To Youth Ministries Presents 

MUSIO AND ARTS 
PI'CHIC IN THE PARK 

SUNDAY-AUGUST26-2012 
NOON-6PM 

JINURA PAR'K 
28TH AND EAST AVENUE 

FREE ALL AGES EVENT 
I 

• Live Bands, Drama, And Dance. 
• Bring A Lunch And Blanket To Picnic In The Park'! 

For More Info 60 To: 

http://www.facebook.com/GlobeFest 

@KQ)ID)O~ W~ ©~ ~~ m80~ ~gllo~ 

/ 



Dedicated To Youth Ministries Presents 

MDllelNOA 
PICILIC IN THE PARI( 

SUNDAY -AUGUST 2& ~ 
100N-6PM 

JANURAPARK 

http,f/www.tll<i:l)OOI<.com'Glabefest 

OOIWJ ll.ItDWIB ~I? llWfs,l..mtH ~ ~n4! 

YES, COUNT US IN TO HELP BRING GOO'S 
LOVE TO BERWYN! 

Enclosed is our love offering of: 

__ $25 __ $50 __ $100 __ Other 

NAME __________________________ __ 

ADDRESS ____________________ __ 

CITY, ST ATE,ZlP _____________ _ 

PHONE ________ ~ ______________ __ 

E-MAIL ______________ _ 

Please make checks payable to 
Dedicated to Youth Ministries 

Dedicated to Youth Ministries 
7009 W. Ogden 

Berwyn, II., 60402 



Thomas J. Pavlik 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

New Harvest Christian Fellowship (newharvesCchi@sbcglobal.net) 
Wednesday, August 01,20126:30 PM 
Thomas J. Pavlik 
Event "Community Day" 

My name is Edwin Melendez, Pastor of New Harvest Christian Fellowship. It was a privilege meeting you last 
week. I had dropped off a flyer with you regarding an event and you had asked for me to email what it all 
involved. 

We are currently renting Oakpark baptist church where we hold our services located at 310 1 S. Oakpark Ave. 
Berwyn,IL. 

As a way to make our presence known to the community, we would like to hold an event which we are calling 
"Community Day". We want to use this event as a way to let the community know that we are here to help in 
anyway capable. 

The event will be held on Saturday, September 1 st, 2012 from the hrs of 12·3pm. with at least 2 Ius before the 
event for set up and 2 hrs afterward for clean up and break down. It will be held in the parking lot of the church. 

The event will include live music, free hot dogs, chips and sodas and about three tent booths that will serve as 
information booth regarding our church and where the food would be served. 

Any questions please call me at 708-287-7004 

Thank you, 

Edwin Melendez, Pastor 
New Harvest Christian Fellowship 

1 



c 
Sponsored by, New Harvest Christian Fellowship 

3101 S. Oak Park Ave 
Berwyn IL, 60402 

www.newharvestchicago.org (In the church parking lot) 



ACTIV E 
TRAN SPORTATION 
ALLIANCE 

July 19,2012 

City of Berwyn 
President and Board of Trustees 
Attn: Tom Pavlick, City Clerk 
6700 W. 26th Street 
Berwyn, IL 60402 

Dear Mr. Pavlick, 

\I \\t>s\ Hubba rd Stn't'l 
Su it ~ Htl 
Chicago. IL hlltt!O-{i.'4S 

1 ,1I:.!.4n. ;H~ 

F JI:.!,417.4!IOi 
info n attiVf'lranS.com 
WdJw.a(lil7tJrans.org 

The Active Transportation Alliance will hold its 24th annual Four Star Bike Tour 
bicycle ride on Sunday, August 26. 

The Four Star Bike Tour (FSBT) is produced by the Active Transportation 
Alliance, a nonprofit bicycling, pedestrian and public transit advocacy 
organization. We advocate for transportation that encourages and promotes safety, 
physical activity, health, recreation, social interaction, equity, environmental 
stewardship and resource conseJVation. FSBT is a fundraising event produced to 
support these efforts. 

This long-running event is a recreational bicycle ride though the city of Chicago 
and the suburbs. It is not a competitive race. Riders understand they share the road 
with other users and are Instructed to follow the rules of the road. 

PartiCipants select from a 12,22,35- or a 62-mtle route options. The 35 and 62 mile 
ride extends into Berwyn and the neighboring western suburbs. A complete route 
map and a detailed route map through your suburb are attached. 

Riders start from the UIC campus (Morgan and Taylor Streets, Chicago) and are 
released in waves between 6:30 - 8:30 AM. Since the start times are staggered and 
riders travel at varying speeds, they will be dispersed along the route. We expect 
riders to pass through your suburb between 6:45 and 10:00 AM. ApprOXimately 
1800 riders will select the 35 and 62-mile route options. 

We do not require any village resources or support of any kind. We simply wish to 
inform you about the Active Transportation Alliance and our bicycling event. 

Thank you for your time. Please let me know if you require additional information. 

Sincerely. 

Chrjstine Schwartzkopff 
Director of Events 
312/427-3325 x223 
ch risti ne@activetrans.org 



ACTIVE 
TRANSPORTATION 
ALLIANCE 

!J \\bl Hubbard Sln'cl 
Suite 40-1 
Cbicag.l , ! L hO(ill)"u" ,-, 

Four Star Bike Tour 2012 

Sunday, August 26th 

Berwyn Map Routes 

Berwyn Bike Route: 
I 

I Ceitnak Rd Berwyn CBrm~k d 

I y> AI 

~ 
m ~ 

23fd 51 
m 
In 

if 
...... 

~ :::!\ 

i 
Q. 

~ 
r 
0 

J 
3 
~ 

" I ~ 

'f 261h 
26th St ~ 

• 

T .1l:L417 . .i.i:.!!i 
F iLU..l7.4!IOi 
info' ac ti"elra[l~.Co 
WZDw.aclivrlrarlS.Olg 

I 

I 

"" 2~ I 
124~t 

I 
r.n 

I al 
a 
9' 

Iw Q 

~ 

l-Ctyde Fa k IX! 
I I 

t [Jl I 
1 ~ 

~ ~ 

~ B (I) , IU 
--; 
7ft 

I EJ ~ 
I acNe::! H I 
18 0$ tal I 

...".. 
I (') I I if' .... 

~ ~ 
I!J. ::) ~ 

~ I :i ~ 
Ql 

m t'}.I 01 
0 l G at ~ < 
Q.! tl r- ...... !!! 'l :iI'r Q. 9 ~ "b 



ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION ALLIANCE 

Overall View of Berwyn District: 

Ilers • 
ows 

W 2S1hSt 

og6en ~"e. 

Cermak .: 

@) 

Pag,2 

26th St 

The is 

' VII G , 
I 
I 
I 
I 

Cop 

! 
j 



ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION ALLIANCE PactJ 

@ IIHca ' 1T1\!1llt'tiOIIa1 + -- Q W Alrpon 
@ iIIomdge Ravenswood 

Sense vile S<HIet Park @Pcmge Irvuli Pari< 
@ 

Pall keVI_ 
Ounnlllll 

uY V FranklZl @ 
Addison ~ 

Etmwood Be! ! Logan W .. ~ Par1! cragm Squ8Je 8 ucJQown LtIlCOIn Par1t ... 
®@ @W 

Elmhurst Welt Town Near 
North SIde 

Villa ParX WC$I Town 

Lombard 

® 

W W Q 
!/I15l/1 $I @1 

i ~ 

8 ""f:I1'o Bed< of f 
the Yards i @ Garfield 

(§ Surnm~ RIdge ... ~st 

~anng ChictOo Midway Englewood Englswood 

West IntemllJOnll 
W~RcI 001< Alrpon 

% 
@ 

® i i 
jU "' ~ Dan en Burr Ridge Bndgeview 1 odndgo 
~ A5hbum Greu,om SOutll _0' n:t 



® 

MO 
ONE WAY 

a 
M 

ma e Sa e 

FOR YOUTH DEVELOPMENT® 
FOR HEALTHY LIVING 
FOR SOOAL RESPONSIBILITY 

Join u to sell ou · ems, fin a deal and 
5 p art our gymnastics team 
> Saturday, August 18 from 8am-3pm 
> Rain or shine! 
> If raining, event will be moved to gym 
> Spacefee:$25/$~0 
> Table rental: $ 5, no chairs for rent 
> Spaces first come, first served 
> No food sales 
> Contact Katie at ext. 3 1 5 
> 12AUG #09277 -01 

'PAVYMCA 
2947 S. Oak Park Ave. Berwyn, Il 60402 
708.749.0606 Visit pavymca.org 


	pt1
	pt2
	pt3



